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MISSION / VISION STATEMENT

To concentrate on the changing Yarm/Fabric requirements with higher
profitability, both in local as well as in the international market

Maximization of profit regardless of the tumover quantum, reducing the
cost al all levels.

Customer satisfaction is our priority and good return to the shareholders
Is our aim, while maintaining friendly and congenial environment for our

employee.
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———— NOTICE OF THE MEETING e

Notice is hereby given that the 34" Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders of |drees
Textile Mills Lid. will be held on Friday, October 27, 2023 at 04:15 pm at meeting room, Embassy Inn Karachi,
100-B, SMCHS Mursery Main Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:
1. To confirm the minutes of the last Annual General Meeting held on October 27, 2022.

2. To receive, consider and adopt the standalone and consolidated Annual Audited
Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2023, together with
the Directors' and Auditors’ Reports thereon and Chairman’s Review Report.

3. To appoint Auditors for the year ending June 30, 2024 and fix their remuneration. The
retiring auditors M/s Yousuf Adil Chartered Accountants , being eligible, offer themselves

for re-appointment.

4. To elect Seven Directors of the Company as fixed by the Board in accordance with the
provisions of section 159 (1) of the Companies Act 2017 for the term of three years. The
names of the retiring directors are as under:

1. Mr. 5. M. Mansocor Allawala B: Syed Masud Arif

2. Mr. Rizwan ldrees Allawala B. Ms. Azra Yaqub Vawda
3. Mr. Omair Idrees Allawala 7. Mr. Muhammad Zubair
4, Ms. Aamnah Mansoor

SPECIAL BUSINESS

5. To obtain approval of the members to meet the requirement of 5.R.0. 389(1)/2023 dated
March 21, 2023, issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan, for
circulation of Company’s annual audited financial statements through QR enabled code
and weblink.

The Statements of Material Facts as required under Section 134(3) and 166(3) of the
Companies Act, 2017 are annexed to the nolice of meeting circulated to the members of the
Company.

6. To transact any other business that may be placed before the meeting with the
permission of the Chair.

By order of the Board
Karachi

October 03, 2023 /qu.ﬁ/

SYED SHAHID SULTAN
Company Secretary




S
———— NOTICE OF THE MEETING = —

Motes:
(i)
(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

(v)

Shareholders are advised to promptly notify any change in their addresses.

Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from October 19, 2023 to
Qctober 27, 2023 (both days inclusive).

A member eligible to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting is entitied to appoint
a proxy to attend, and vote for him/her. Proxies must be received at the Registered
Office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the time of holding the Meeting

CDC Account Holders will have to follow the guidelines as laid down in Circular No. 1
January 26, 2000. Issued by the Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan. In case
of corporate entity, the Board's resolution / Power of attomey with specimen signature
shall be furnished with proxy from the Company.

The shareholders who wish to atiend the AGM through video link are requested to get
themselves registered by providing the following information via email at
secreiary@idreestexiile.com on or before October 21, 2022,

Name of CDC Account No.J
Sharsholder CNIC # Folio No. Cell Number Email Address

Members shall be registered after necessary verification and will be provided a video link
and login credentials by the Company on the same email address from which they,
emailed to the Company. The login facility will remain open from 04:05 pm till the end of
the meeting.

Shareholders can also provide their comments/suggestions on the proposed agenda
items of the AGM on above email address.

Any member who seeks to contest the election of director shall file with the Company at
its Registered Office, not later than fourteen days before the date of meeting, the
following:

a) A notice of hisfher intention to offer himself/herself for election as a Director together
with consent on Form-28 as prescribed by the Act:;

b) A declaration (copy may be obtained from REegistered Office) on the matters reguired
by the Code of Corporate Governance 2019.

c) Detailed profile along with office address for placement of Company's website.

d) An attested valid copy of Computerized National ldentity Card.

e) A member who seeks to contest for election may select any one category in which
he / she intends to contest election. For the purpose of election of directors of the
Company the voting shall be held separately in the following three categories for the
specified number of seats:
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(vi)

{vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

f) A. member who seeks to contest for election may select any one category in which
he / she intends to contest election in the following three categories for the specified
number of seats:

The member in their discretion may cast vote to any candidate contesting election in
each of the following categories:

Sr. Category Number of Seats Voting Proportion
1 Female Director 01 17

2 Independent Directors 02 2I7

3 Other Directors 04 477

If the number of members who offer themselves in each category is not more than the

number of direcitors to be elected in each category, such members will be elected
unopposed without the voting process.

The Company shall provide its members for, inter alias, all businesses classified as
special business and persons offer to be elected is more than the number of directors fix,

with options of e-voling or voting by postal ballot in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies (Postal Ballot) Regulations, 2018.

Members who intend to exercise their right of voite through E-voting shall provide their
valid cell numbers and email addresses on or before October 19, 2023.

Members are requested to provide their Intemational Banking Account Number (IBAN)

together with a copy of the Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) to update our
records. In case of non-submission all future dividend payments may be withheld.

As per section 72 of the Companies Act, 2017 every Company is required to replace its
physical shares with book entry form within a period not exceeding four years from the
commencement of the Companies Act, 2017 i.e May 30, 2017.

The Securies & Exchange Commission of Pakistan through its circular #
CSD/ED/Misc./2016-639-640 dated March 26, 2021 has advised the listed Companies to

pursue their such members who sfill hold shares in physical form, to convert their shares
into book-entry form.

The shareholder having physical shareholding are accordingly encouraged to open their
account with Investor Accounts Services of CDC or sub-account with any of the brokers
and convert their physical shares into scrip less form. This will facilitate the shareholders
in many ways, including safe custody and sale of shares, any time they want, as the
trading of physical shares is not pemmitted as per existing regulation of the Pakistan
Stock Exchange Limited.

Members can exercise their right fo demand a poll subject to meeting requirements of
Section 143 to Section 145 of the Companies Act, 2017 and applicable clauses of the
Pakistan Stock Exchange Regulation, 2018.

In terms of the Companies Act, 2017, members residing in a city holding at least 10% of

the total paid up share capital may demand the facility of video-link for participating in the
annual general meeting.

5
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If you wish to take this facility, please fill the form appearing below and submit it to the
Company al its registered address al least ten (10) days prior 1o the date of the Meeting.

The Company will intimate members regarding venue of video conference facility at least
5 days before the date of meeling along with complete information necessary lo enable
them to access such Tacility.

IWe of email address

. being a member of Idrees Textile Mills Lid. holder ol
Ordinary Share(s) as per Register Folio No. /CDC Account No.
hereby opt for video conference facility at

(xi) Shareholders who have not yel collected their dividend/physical shares are advised to
contact our Share Registrar to collect/enguire about their unclaimed dividend or shares.
Please noie that in compliance with Seclion 244 of the Companies Act, 2017, afier
having completed the stipulated procedure, all dividends unclaimed for a period of three
(3) years from the dale due and payable shall be deposiled to the credit of the Federal
Govemment and in case of Shares, shall be delivered lo the Securities & Exchange
Commission of Pakistan.

Statement of Material Facts under Section 134(3) of the Companies Act 2017.

Pursuant to the provisions of above SRO No. 383(1)2023 dated March 21, 2023 issued by SECP.
the Company is required to obtain the approval of its shareholders for circulation of its annual
financial statements through QR enabled code and weblink instead of circulating the same
through CD/DVD/USB. Accordingly, the following draft resolution with or without amendments has
been proposed for approval of the shareholders in the general meeting.

“RESOLVED that the approval be and is hereby given to allow the Company to circulate the
annual audiled financial statements including notice of meeling to itls members through QR
enabled code and weblink.”

The Direclors of the Company have no direct or indirect inlerest in the special business. The
special business is only proposed to comply with the relevant provisions of the SRO issued by the
SECP.

Statement of Material Facts under Section 166(3) of the Companies Act 2017.

Seclion 166 of the Companies Acl 2017 provides that a statement of malerial facls is annexed lo
the notice of the General Meelting called Tor the purpose of eleclion of directors which shall
indicate the justification for choosing independent directors. The Company is required to have al
least lwo independent directors on ils board in accordance with the Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulation 2013, The Company shall ensure that the Directors will be
elected in accordance with the procedures for election of directors laid down in Section 159 of the
Companies Act 2017. Once the contestants will file their consent to offer themselves for election
as independent director, the Company shall ensure that:

Names of these contestants are included in the dala bank maintained by Pakistan
Institute of Corporate Governance (PICG) as authorized by SECP and

These contestants meet the independence crileria as mentioned in Section 166(2) of the
Companies Act, 2017.

Directors of the Company have no direct or indirect interest in the above said business other than
as shareholder of the Company and that they are eligible to contest the election of direclor of the
Company.

&
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The Direclors are pleased to present the audited financial statements of your Company for the year
ended June 30, 2023.

FINANCIAL AND OPERATIONAL OVERVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is manufacturing, processing and sale of all kinds of yam. The
Company is also engaged in the business of Home Texlile. During the year under review, there has
not been any material change in the Company’s business aclivities.

During the financial year under review, the Company's turnover amounted lo Rs. 4,200 million
as compared to Rs. 5,166 million in the previous year. Gross profit amounted to Rs. 420.146
million compared to Rs. 798.540 million for the last year. During the year under review, the
Company's revenue decreased by Rs. 966 million and the gross profit has declined by Rs. 379 million.
Loss for the year amounted lo Rs. 12.494 million in FY23 as compared lo profil for the year of Rs.
432 007 million in the corresponding period. Finance cost has increased by Rs. 132 474 million (76
percent) in FY23 to Rs. 306.864 million from Rs. 174.390 million in FY22.

During FY23, the State Bank of Pakislan cumulatively raised the policy rate by 8.25 percent, raising it
to 22 percent by 30" June 2023 from 13.75 percent at the beginning of the financial year under review.
Change in interest rate influences the borrowing cost for consumers and businesses exerting
inflationary pressures in the economy. This, coupled with high energy cost, has eroded the Company's
profitability. On the positive side, the Company's export of hame lextiles is picking up which bodes well
for the future. An amount in excess of Rs. 1.4 billion has been invested by the Company for expansion
of the mills production capacily and its impact on the Company’s revenue will, In Sha Allah, be visible
in FY24 financials.

The global economic and financial crisis has affecled countries all over the world and developing
counlries experienced considerable oulpul losses. Pakislan's textile industry is also grappling with a
slowdown since the economy began facing a balance of payments crisis. Textile exporis of the country
significantly declined in FY23. The Russia-Ukraine war also had a big impact on the energy sector. On
lop of thal, subsidies for gas and eleclricity for the industry were cul amid high inflation and the lough
International Monetary Fund program. Another factor that hil Pakistan's lextile sector hard was the
steep decline in the value of Pak Rupee. It became expensive to import raw materials and other inpuls.
Thousands of shipping conlainers with raw materials remained stuck at Karachi port due to dwindling
foreign exchange reserves. A stable political situation remains a crucial missing piece to fully leverage
the industry’s potential.

LOSS/EARNING PER SHARE

The lossfeaming per share for the year under review worked out fo Rs. (0.63) as compared to loss Rs21.76 for
the commesponding year.

DIVIDEND

In view of loss for the year, the Board of Directors in its meeting held on October 03, 2023, has decided not to
recommend any dividend this year.
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STATEMENT ON CORPORATE AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FRAME WORK

{a) The financial statements, prepared by the management of the Company, present fairly its state of
affairs the result of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity.

{b) Proper books of account of the Company have been maintained.

(c) Appropriate accounting pelicies have been consistently applied in preparation of the financial
statements and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.

(d) International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in
preparation of the financial statements and any departure there from has been adequately disclosed

(e) The Board understands its responsibility to ensure that adequate and effective intemal financial
controls are in place. The internal audit depariment continuously reviews the design and effectiveness
of the controls and corrective action is taken to address the weakness, if found. We believe that the
system of intemal control is spund in design and has been effectively implemented.

{f} There are no significant doubts upon the Company's ability to continue as a going concem.

{g) There has been no material departure from the best practices of corporate governance, as detailed in
the regulation of PSX rule book.

{h) The book value of invesiments made by the Employees’ Provident Fund, being operated for head
office employees, only, as per audited financial statements of the Fund as at June 30, 2022 was Rs.
32,146,790/ (2021 Rs. 30,326 483/-)

Mills employees are entitied to gratuity as per law and appropriate provision has been made in the financial

statements.

{iy As reguired by the Code, we have included the following information in this report:
-  Statement of Pattern of Shareholding.
- Statement of Shares held by associated undertaking and related parties.
- Key operating and financial statistics for |ast six years.

{jy During the year under review, five Board of Directors, four Audit Committee and one Human
Resource & Remuneration Committee (HR & RC) meetings were held and attended as follows:

Mame of Directors Board of Directors Audit Commities HR &RC

At any time during financial year | Meeting Attended Mesting Altended | Meeting Attended
Mr. Muhammad ldrees Allawala 02 MIA MN/A

Mr. S.M. Mansoor Allawala 05 MIA MN/A

Ms. Azra yagqub Vawda 05 04 01

Mr. Rizwan ldrees Allawala o5 02 MN/A

Mr. Omair ldrees Allawala 05 M/A MNIA

Ms. Aamnah Mansoor 03 02 m

Syed Masud Arnf 05 04 01
Muhammad Zubair 03 A /A
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(k) During the year under review, there has been no trading in shares of the Company by CEO, Directors and
their Spouses & minor children except as given below

| Opening Gift Inf{Gift | Balance as
NAME OF DIRECTOR 01-07-2009 Purchase out) an June,
30. 2023
Mr. Omair Idrees Allawala I 5,774 566 bite 8 5,755 146
‘Mr. Rizwan Idrees Allawala i'ﬁ,}"'?'ﬁ,ﬂdﬁ 1500 (250003) | 8,527 143

(1N ‘Wehave an audit committes the members of which are from the board of directors and the chairman is a non-
execulive director

{m) We have prepared and circulated a statement of ethics and business strateqy amongst directors and
employees.

(n) The board has adopted a mission statement and a statement of overall corporate strateqy.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The board comprises of seven directors. The composition of the board throughout the year is as
follows:

a. Male: 5

b. Female: 2

a) Independent Director i) Syed Masud Arif
i) Ms Azra Yaqub Vawda

b) MNon-executive Directors i) Mr. Rizwan |drees Allawala
i} Ms.Aamnah Mansoor
i} Mr. Muhammad Zubair

c) Executive Directors i}  Mr. S M. Mansoor Allawala
i)  Mr. Omair ldrees Allawala

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board of Directors has formed the Audit Committee and Human Resource and Remuneration
Committee in line with the requirements of the Code of Corporate Governance.

The members of Audit Committes is as follows:

Ms, Azra Yagub Vaw da Chairman
Syed Masud Arif Member
Ms. Aamnah Mansoor Member

The members of Human Resource and Remuneration Committee is as follows:

Syed Masud Arif Chaiman
Ms. Azra Yaqub Vawda Member
Mr. Aamnah Mansoor Member
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CASUAL VACANCY

Mr. Muhammad ldrees Allawala, founding Chairman of the Company passed away on December 21, 2022,
Cn behall of the Company, its employees and workers, the Board of Director expressed profound grief on
his sad demise. His services 1o the Company shall be remembered for a long fime lo come.

The Casual vacancy, so crealed, was filled by the Board by appointing Mr. Rizwan Idress Allawala, Non-
Executive Director, as Chairman of the Board and Ms. Aamnah Mansoor was appointed as Non-Execultive
Direclor for remainder of term.

The Board also appointed Mr. Muhammad Zubair, as Non-Executive Director 1o fill the casual vacancy
created due the demise of Mr. Muhammad Israil, director of the Company who passed away on August 21,
2022

BOARD EVALUATION

The Company carmes out annual evaluation of the Board, members of the Board and ils
Commiltees as part of the Code of Corporate Governance. For that purpose, Board has developed
a mechanism for evaluation of Board's own performance, members of the Board and its
Committees. Based on the evaluation, overall performance of the Board, its members and
Committees of the Board for the year under review is satisfaclory.

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION:

The company does not pay remuneration to its non-executive directors including independent
directors except for meeting fee. Aggregate amount of remuneration paid to executive and non-
execulive directors have been disclosed in nole 35 of the annexed financial statements.

SUBSIDARY COMPANY

The Company's wholly owned subsidiary ORA Home LLC (ORA), is located in New Jersey, USA.
One of the Directors of the Company is the member manager of ORA. The principal business
actlivity of ORA is to deal in home textiles.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

Idrees Textile Mills Ltd. being a good corporate cilizen contributing for the welfare of the people in our
society and fulfillment of its corporate social responsibility, During the year under review the Company
contributed Rs. 5.1 million to various organizations serving the mankind in the health and education
sectors.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for oversight over the risks and uncertainties faced by
the Company. To assist the Board in discharging its responsibility, management has been made
rasponsible for identifying, monitoring and managing the Company's risk exposures. Following is a
description of the risks and uncertainties:

® Control over cost of production amid high energy lariff.

e Remaining competitive in the domestic as well as in the international market in terms of cost
effectiveness and pricing of goods.

¢ Managing finance cost in the wake of steep rise in interest rate.

Reduction in demand of goods due lo economic slowdown.

e Credil risk arising principally from trade debls, loans and advances. The carrying amount
represents the maximum credit exposure.

10
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e Liquidity risk arising because of the possibility that the Company could be reguired to pay its
liabilities earlier than expected.

¢ Changes in market prices affecting the Company's income or the value of its holdings.

® Risk of changes in market interest rates relating primarily to the Company's long-term
financing, shori-term borrowings and liabilities against assets subject to finance lease.

e Foreign currency risk arising due to transactions in foreign currency resulting in foreign
exchange losses/gains on translation of foreign currency denominated trade debts and trade
payables.

* Managing capital to safeguard the Company's ability to continue as a going concern and to
support the sustained development of its business.

¢ loss or reduction in country's cotton crop due to floods or other causes resulting in
unavailability of good quality local cotton at viable rates.

e Imposition of new taxes or increase in the rates of existing ones.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

Pakistan's lextile industry is facing a slowdown since the balance of payments crisis began. Soaring
inflation, steep decline in the value of Pak Rupee and Russia-Ukraine war had a big impacl on Lhe
energy sector. High imporl cosl, surge in inleresl rales and low demand in the markel, are having a
negative impact on businesses. Upward revisions in taxes, duties and PDL have increased the upside
risks to the inflation outlook. According to a Word Bank report on Pakistan, food-related shorlages
and transporlation challenges caused by the floods significantly conlributed Lo the inflation. Since
Pakistan heavily relies on imported oil, a constanl decline in the value of the country's currency results
in higher tariffs with every import of oil.

Viable energy tariffs play a key role in business compeliliveness and Pakistan did see a surge in
exports in FY22 because of Regionally Competitive Energy Tarff (RCET) thal was offered by the
Government to the textile exporters. Any reduction in, or withdrawal of, this incentive will raise the cost
of production and our exports will fail to compete in the international markel against other regional
players. Due lo enhanced competitiveness on the back of RCET, the industry has heavily invested in
expansion and new projects. Without a sizable increase in the Country's exports, our balance of
payment position will continue to remain under pressure. Pakistan's eamnings from exporis, foreign
direct investment and remittance from overseas Pakistanis are vital for economic turnaround. A stable
political setup remains a crucial missing piece for us o fully leverage the induslry's potential. A desired
way forward is o creale a supporlive environment and better working conditions for the textie
industry. Our competilors like Bangladesh, Sri Lanka and Vielnam are progressing well in textile
exports bul Pakistan is struggling to even maintain the export performance which is disappointing for
the business community. On CPEC front, so far, of the numerous planned projeclts, only a few have
been completed.

Guoing forward, the current account deficil is expecled o remain confained in the range of 05 1t0 1.5
percent of GDP in FY24. Improved financing mix after the unlocking of multilaleral and bilateral
external financing along with some uplick in economic aclivity may also auger well for business
activity. With August 2023 exports reaching $2.36 billion, marking a 14.3 percent increase from the
previous month, giving indication of a potential lumaround for the lextile sector. A slrategic framework
by the Govemment aimed at bolslering the industry, encompassing RCET, expeditious refund
payments, availability of affordable credit and sales tax zero-rating for the textile chain will help unlock
the industry’s full produclion potential.
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Given the optimism emanating from strong growth seen in textile exporis in the previous years and

announcemenl of incentive schemes by SBP for financing of exporl oriented projecis, the Company
has invested more than Rs. 1.4 billion for expansion of the mills’ production capacity. The resulls of
this expansion will, In Sha Allah, be visible in FY24 revenue numbers.

AUDITORS

The retiing Auditors Mis. Yousuf Adil, Chartered Accountants being eligible have offered themselves for
re-appointment for the ensuing year 2023-2024 The audil committee in its meeting held on September 30,
2023 has recommended the appoiniment of the retiring auditors.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The directors are thankful o the bankers, suppliers and customers of the Company for their continued
support and appreciate the hard work by the employees of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board

MM

Rizwan ldrees Allawala 5. M. Mansoor Allawala
Chairman Chief Executive
Karachi: October 03 , 2023
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| am pleased to present before you my review report on the overall performance of the Board
and effectiveness of the role played by it in achieving the Company's objectives for the year
ended 30" June 2023,

As Chairman of the Board, it is my responsibility lo monitor and strengthen the Company’s
govemnance. For the year under review, based on the evaluation, the overall performance
and effectiveness of the Board has been assessed as Satisfactory.

The Board duly carried out its duty to ensure high standards of corporate govermnance since
a well-defined corporate governance system is vital for enhancing corporate accountability.

The Board duly discharged its responsibiliies with respect to the overall management of the
Company, formulation of significant policies, evaluating its own performance and monitoring
the functioning of the Board's Committees. Evaluation of the Board is aimed to measure its
overall performance and conduct of the Company's affairs in accordance with the best
practices of corporate governance.

Through appropriate oversight and vigilance, compliance with the applicable laws and
regulations was duly ensured. The Company's management constantly endeavored to
safeguard shareholder value.

The Board considered and approved, among other things, guarterdy and annua! financial
statements, capital expenditura including expansion of the mill, berrowings and appointment
of external auditors.

The Audit Committee and the Human Resource & Remuneration Committee duly assisted
the Board in performing its duties. These Committees held meetings and reported to the
Board as per stipulations of the corporate govemance regulafions.

The Board is consistently performing its duties and responsibilities diligently while upholding
high standards of comporate govemance.

| sincerely thank our shareholders, bankers, suppliers and customers for their valued trust
and support and would like 1o express my appreciation for dedicated services rendered by
the employees.

Sad Demise of Mr. Muhammad Idrees Allawala, Chairman of the Board:
The founder of the Company and Chairman of the Board, Mr. Muhammad Idrees Allawala
passed away on 219 December 2022, His vision and valuable services for the Company

shall be remembered for a long time to come. May Allah grant him the highest place in
Jannah, Aameen.

Rizwan |drees Allawala
Chalrman of the Board

Karachi
October 03, 2023
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s
—————— UN-CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE - % ——

Code of Corporate Govemmance for the year ended June 30, 2023

Name of Company: IDREES TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED
Year Ended: JUNE 30, 2023

The company has complied with the reguirements of the Regulations in the following manner:

1.

14,

The total number of directors are sevan as per the following:

a) Male: 05
b) Female: 02

The compaosition of board is as follows:

Category | Name
Independent Directars Syed Masud Arif
Ms. Azra Yagub Vawda
Executive Directors Mr. 5. M. Mansocor Allawala
Mr. Omair ldrees Allawala
Mon-Executive Directors Mr. Rizwan ldrees Allawala
Mr. Muhammad Zubair
Ms. Aamnah Mansoor

*Regulation & (1) of the CCG Regulations stipulates that it is mandatory for each listed company to have at
least two or one-third members of the Board, whichever is higher, as independent directors. In a Board
comprising 7 members, one-third works out to 2.33 persons. The fraction contained in such one-third is not
rounded up as one as the Company has enough experienced and well reputed Independent. Directors on the
Board who perform and carry out their responsibilities diligenthy.

The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven
listed companies, including this company.

The company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been
taken to disseminate |t throughout the Company slong with its supporting policies and
procedures,

The Bgard has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant
policies of the company. A complete record of particulars of significant policles along with the
dates on which they were approved or amended has been maintained,

All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have
been taken by Board/shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and
these Regulations,

The meetings of the beard were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a
director elected by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the reguirements of
Act and the Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and clrculating minutes of meeting
of Board.

The Board of directors have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of
directors in accordance with the Act and these Regulations.

The Board remained fully compliant the provision with regard to their training program. One
member of the Board have the prescribed qualifications and experience required for exemption
from training program of Directors pursuant to Regulation 19(2) of the CCG. Six mambers
of the Board have already completed the Director's Training Program.

The Board has approved appointment of CFQ, Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit,
including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied with
relevant requirerments of the Regulations.
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11.

12.

13.

14,

15,

16,

17.

18,

19,

B
=———— UN-CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE -
Code of Corporate Governance for the vear ended June 30, 2023

CFO and CEO duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of the board.

The board has formed committess comprising of members given below. The Board Audit
Committee and the Board Human Resource & Compensation Committee are chaired by
independent director:

a) Audit Committee
Ms. Azra Yaqub Vawda (Chairperson)

Syed Masud Arif
Ms. Aammah Mansoor

Lid b =

B) Human Resource and Remuneration Committee

Sved. Masud Anf (Chairman)
Ms. Azra Yaqub Vawda
Ms. Aamnah Mansoor

Lad o' =

The terms of reference of the aforesaid committess have been formed, documented
andadvised to the committes for compliance.

The frequency of meetings of the committes were as per following:

Committee Frequency of meetings
Audit Committee Quarterly
HR and Remuneration Committes Annually

The board has set up an independent and effective internal audit function and the audit
personnel are suitably qualified and experienced for the purpose and are conversant with the
policies and procedures of the Company.

The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory
rating under the guality contral review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan {ICAP) and registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they or any of the
partners of the firm, their spouses and miner children do not hold shares of the company and
that the firm and all its partners are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants
(IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the ICAP and that they and the partners of
the firm involved In the awdit are not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and non-
dependent children) of the chief executive officer, chief financlal officer, head of internal audit,
company secretary or director of the company.

The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide
other services except in accordance with the Act, these requlations or any other regulatory
reguirement and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this
regard.

We confirm that the requirements of regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 of the Regulations
have been complied with.

Explanation with respect to compliance with non-mandatory requirements of the Listed Companies (Code
of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 is spedfied below:
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UN-CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE
Code of Corporate Govemmance for the year ended June 30, 2023

5. No. Requirement Explanation Regulation Mo.
1. The Board may constitute the risk The Terms of Reference for Risk 30
management committee, of such Committee are covered by the Board
number and dass of Directors, as it of Directors, which in s guarterly
may deem appropriate in its meetings to reviews the
circumstances, to carry out a review | effectiveness of the Company’s risk
of effectiveness of risk management | management procedures, therefore,
procedures and present a report to as separate committee is not
as the Board. considered necessary.
2. The Board may constitute a separate | The Terms of Reference for 29
committee, designed as the Nomination Committee are covered
nomination committee, of such by the Human Resource and
number and dass of Directors, as it Remuneration Committee, which
may deem appropriate in its timely apprises the Board with
drcumstances. regard to any changes therefore a
separate committes in not
considered necessary,
For and on behalf of the Board
5 M MANSOOR ALLAWALA RIZWAN IDREES ALLAWALA

Chief Executive

Karachi

Dated: October 03, 2023

Chairman

1
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REVIEW REPORT
To the members of Idrees Textile Mills Limited

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corparate Governance)
Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of Idrees Textile Mills Limited {the Company) for
the year ended June 30, 2023 in accordance with the requirements of regulation 36 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company.

Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance refiects the slatus of the Company’s compliance
with the provisions of the Regulations and report If it does not and to highlight any non- compliance with the requirements
of the Reguiations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Company's parsonnel and review of varicus documents
preparad by the Company to comply with the Reguiations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting and internal
control systems sufficient ta plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not regulred to consider
whether the Board of Directors’ statemment on Internal control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the
effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company's corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of the Audit
Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party transactions. We are only
required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions
by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee.

Basad on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of Compliance
does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with the requirements contalned in the
Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended June 30, 2023

Yeisind, Ad A

Charted Agcountants

Place: Karacht

Date: (dctober 04, 2023
UDIN: CRZ0ZIT00990QY GeBkmjH

|hddgeidead ChiTeugets

Delaits Toochs Tohmatog L
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT Sl b= ety
TOTHE MEMBERS OF IDREES TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED www yousutadil.com

Report oo the Audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

Cipinion

We have aodited the annexed unconsolidsied financial szatements of [drees Textile Mills Limited (the Company), which comprise
the unconsolidated statement of financial position as at June 30, 2023, and the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the unconselidued statement of changes in equity, the unconsolidated statement of cash Aows for the yvear
then ended. mnd notes 1o the unconsolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information, and we stage that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge
and beliell were necessary for the purposes of the nudit.

In cair epimion and to the best of our information and according o the explanations given tous, the tnconsolidated statement of financial
position, the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss snd other comprehensive income, the unconsalidsted statement of
changes in equity and the uncensolidated statement of cash flows tepetier with the noles forming part thereof conform with the
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakiston and give the informution regquired by the Companies Act, 2017 (XK1Y
of 2007), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and i view of the state of the Company's afTairs as al June 30,
2023 and of the profit und other comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cosh flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

Wi comdeeted our apdit in accordance with Intemationnl Standards on Aodinng (05As) as applicable in Pakistan. Chur
responsibilities under those standards are further described i the dudiror s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Finaneial Starements
section of our report. We gre independent of the Company m aceordance with the International Ethies Standards Board for
Accountants” Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Charlered Accountants of Pakistan (the
Code), and we have fuliilled our other cthical responsibilities in sceordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidenee we haye
obtaimed is sufficient and appropriste to provide o basis for our opinion.

Kev Audit Matters
Ky mudat miatters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most gsignificance in our audit of the unconsolidated
finaneial stutements of the current period. These matters were bddressed in the comtext of our audit of the uneonsolidated financial

stutenients as a whole, and in forming our opioion thereon, and we do not provide a sepirate opinion on these matiers.

Following 15 the kev audil matter:

o ~ key audit matter B ~ How the matter was addressed in our audit
1. Revenue mugniﬁu-n Our key audit procedures in this area amongst other include the
following:

{Refernote 3, 14 and 24 1o the annexed Finaneial Statements)
+ Asseszed  the  design.  implementation  omd  operating
Met revenue from sale of Company'’s products for the year cffectiveness of the key internal controls involved in revenue
ended June 30, 2023 amounted to R, 4,200 million whch recoEninon

has decreased by approximately 9% as compared to last
NEE + Evaluited the appropriatencss of the accounting policy with
respect 10 revenie recognition.

The Company recomiizes revenue ot point in time when
comtred of the asset is wansferred to the customer, generally | » Performed testing of sales ansactions on a sample basis 1o

on delivery of goods, check thal the related revennes are recorded appropraaicly at the
correct quantity and price when control of goods hos been
Considerning revenue recognition, o significant risk area and transferred to the ¢ustomer,
|hdigeadeat COTeupishis I

Delaiiis Tooohs Tolmates L

18



+ YOUSUF ADIL Vousut Adi

Charlered Accountanis

Key audit matter How the maiter was addressed in our audit
ke perlormance meastite we have identified this as o key I .
audit mateer, = We performed analvtical procedures and tested on a sample
basis, specifiv cevenue tansactions recorded before and aller the
veporting date with underlyving documentastion o nssess whether
revenne was recognized 1n the comect period; and

» Assessed the adequacy of disclosures in accordance with the
applicable finnneial reporling fmmework

2. Capital expenditure Our key audit procedures in this area amongst others included the
following:

{Reter note 3,12 and 4 to the annexed Financial
Statements) = We obtained understanding of the Company's process with
respect to capltal expenditure und evalunted the authorzation
The company's financial statements {or the year endad June and approval procedures for capitol expenditure,

30, 2023 disclosed n significant capital expenditure during
the year amounting 10 Ry, LAS] mullion which primarily | « We tested sumples of capital expenditure transactions to check
attributed to the extension of factory building and plant and the aceuracy and walustion of the amounts recorded in the

taeliinery. fimmneial  stitements  and  examined  the  decumentation
supporting managemient's decisions regarding the capitalizution
The capital expenditure ineurred during the year represents | of expenditure. such as contracts, and invoices.

significant trunsstions und requires approprinte application
as per applicable financial reporting framework. 1o view of |« We considened whether the items.of cost capitalized meet the
the above, we have adentified this matter as 8 key audit recognition criteria of nn asset in accordance with the applicable
Tt finaneial reporting framework.

* Weassessed the sdequacy of disclosures in accordance with the
applicable financial reporting framework.

Information Other than the Uneonsolidated Financial Statements amd Auditor®s Report Thereon

Manngement 18 responsible for the other information. The other mformution comprizes the information meluded m annual report, but
does not include the unconsolidated and consolidaed financial stmtemens and our suditor's report thereon,

Our opimion on the unconsolidated Gnancial statements docs not cover the other mibrmation and we do nol express any form of
paEtrance conclusion thereon,

In comnection with our audit of the unconsolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information-and, in doing
so, pomsider whether the other information is metenslly inconsistent with the uncopsolidated finpneml statements or our know ledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there
is o material misstutement of this other information, we are reguired to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regond.

Responsibifities of Management and Board of Directors for the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

Muanagement 15 responsible for the preparation and fur presentation of the unconsolidmed financial statements m accordance
with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requivements of Companies Act, 2007 (51X of 2017)
and for such internal control as management determings is necessary to enable the preparation oluncensolidated Anancial staternents
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or érror.

In preparing the unconsolidated fnaneial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, ssapplicable, matters related to geing concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management gither intends to liguidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but fo do so.
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The Board of Directors are responsible for oversecing the Company”s financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

Dur phjectives ane 10 oblain reasonable assurance about whether the unconsehidated Gnancinl statements as o whole are free from
material misststement, whether due o fraud or error, and 1o fssue an auditor’s teport that includes our opimion, Reasonable assuance
15 & high level of assurance, but is nol o guarntee that an audit conducted in secordance with 15As a5 applicable m Pakistan will
always detect & materinl misstarement when it existe. Misstatements can arise from fraond or error and are considered material if,
mdividually or m the aggregate. they could reasonably be expected to influence the ceonomic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these unconsolidated finanesal statements.

As part of an sudit in accordanee with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and maintmin
professional skepticism throonghou! the andit, We also:

®  Jdemily and assess the risks of materin] misstmement of the enconsolidated Tnancial stitements, whether due o fraod or
erpod, design and perform audit procedures responsive 1o those nisks, and obtain audit evidence that 15 sufficient and
appropriate to provide a hosis Tor our opinton, The risk of nol detecting o material misstatement resulting from fraud 15
higher than for one resulting from error, 2s fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentiona| omissions, misrepresentalions,
or the override of intermal conlrol.,

®  Obtain an understanding of intemal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumsianees, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's intema! control.

®  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasenableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management,

Conelude on the appropriatensss of munigement’s use of the going coneern basis of accountimg and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncenaimty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company's ability to continue 05 o going concern. 1f we conclude that & material uncertainty exists, we are requirsd to
draw sttention in our auditor’s report (o the related disclosures m the uneonsolidated Rnancisl statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate. o modify our opinon, Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our nuditor’s report, However, future events or conditions may cause the Company 10 cease o conlinue o5 a going eoncern.

®  Evaloate the overall presemtation, structure and content of the unconsolidated Gnancial statements, including the diselosures,
and whether the unconsolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in o manner that achieves
[mir presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other meatiers. the planned scope and timing of the audit and sigmificant
ausliv findings, including any sienificant deficiencies i internal control that we dentify during our audit,

We also provide the board of dinsctors with o statement that we have complied with redeviint ethical requirements regarding independence,
and oy commnicate with them all relationships and other matters that moy reasonably Be thought to bear on our independenee, and where
apphcable, relaed saleguands,

From the matters communicated with the board of direetors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the auwdit
of the unconsolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key sudit matters, We describe these matters

i our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure ahout the matter of when, in extromely rire
circumsiances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report becanse the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expectad to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication,

Report om Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we further report that in cur opinion;

a)  proper books of aceount have been kept by the Company as required by the Companics Act, 2007 (XIX of2007)

by the unconsolidated starement of financial position, the unconsolidated starement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the unconsolidated statement of changes in equity and the uncenselidated statemient of cash flows together with the

notes thereon have been dawn up i conformity with the Companies Act, 2007 (XX of 2010 7) and are in agreement with the
books of pecount und returns;
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¢} anvestments made, expenditere inourred and guarantees extended during the yvear were for the purpose of the Company’s
business; and

dj Mo zakal was deductible al souree and paid in sceordanee with Zakat ond Ushr Ordinance, 19850 (X of 1980).

The engagement parner on the audit resulting in this mdependent auditor™s report 18 M Al Mazeer.

Jossod ek

Plaece: Karachi
Date: October 04, 2023
UDIN: ARZO23 100 BrkufxiKE
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UN-CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at June 30,2023

ASSETS

Non-current Assots

Property, piant and oquipmenl
Long-term deposils
Loty Lerm irvesbmant

Curront Assots

Slores, spares and loose looks
Stock-in-lrade

Trado debis

Loans and-advances
Prepaymenls

Oiher receivables

Oither inancial assels

Cash and bank bakmoes

Total Assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Share Capital and Resorves

Aulhorised capilsl

22 000,000 ordinary shares of Re 10/ each

Isgued, subscrited and pad-up capital

Capital roesorves

Suiplis on revaluaton of propidy, jHant and egudpiment - nol of Lax
Equity portion of [oan from related parbes
Revenue resorves

Total Equity

Mon-curront Liabilities
Lorwg-tarm linance

Loasa Retslily

Defermed governmenl grani
Dalerrad Exaton - mnot
Retromeant benalil cbiigaton

Current Liabilities

I reede and olher payables

Acerued mark-up

Shorl-lorm bomowings

Currenl portion of lang-lamn finance

Current poriton of lease kability

Curren! portion of deferred government grant
Unclamed dividend

Provision lor laxalion

Total Liabilities
Total Equity and Liabilities
CONTINGENCIES ANMD COMMITMENTS

The annaxed noles 1 lo 44 form an nlegral parl ol these nencial stalements.

S s E_S

Chiof Exocilive Chief Firamcisl Officor

13

14

15
16
1r
18
18

21

18
18
17

2023 20722
Rupees Rupeas
31378314871 2,334 245 182
2,898,681 3,129,361
3,381,213,552 2.337,3M8,553
T4 472 461 5/ 521 B46
1.461,817,305 1,207 120,704
655, 583,419 TGH 563,631
124,283,507 171,739,107
1,603,690 1,905,463
223 189 255 184 464 BHF
180,115,660 134 473,034
5952513 5875216
2,727,024 810 2 531 663,748
6.108,238.362 4, B69.042 301
270,000,000 Z200,000,000
198,528,000 158 528,000
BEE, 124,011 BEZ2 490 524
30,064 842 15,895,730
1,470,854,120 1,420 418,461
2,567,570,973 2517 332,1M5
TZ8.952 B28 214,521 468
- 1,962,284
103,735,361 24 .261,234
171,199 478 20,182 802
18,775,115 64,143,460
1,082 662,780 Ba0L071.248
588,989 534 607,349 650
92,205,020 26,323,596
1,511,431,965 BRI 049,126
170,505,607 141,862,034
1.962 284 1rET a2
29,771,083 5,297,304
2750372 2,899 803
60,388,734 125,089 573
2,458 004 809 1.801,638,338
3,540,667 389 2351, 708,586
6.108,238,362 4, 869,042 301
=
e
,ﬁ-—f’:—”‘*
-
Direcior




UN-CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER. COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Far the Year ended June 30, 2023

Note

Revenue from contract with customer - net 24
Cost of sales 25
(Gross profit
Distribution cost 26
Adminisirative expenses 27
Finance cost 28
Other operating expenses 24
Cther income 3
(Loss) / Profit before taxation
Taxation i
(Loss) ! Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income
ltems that will not be reclassified subsequently

to profit or loss
Adjustment of surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment

due o change in {ax rate 14
Remeasurement of retimment benefit obligation 195
Related tax 18
Total comprehensive income for the year

32

(Loss) / Eamings per share - basic and diluted

The annexed notes 1 to 44 form an integral part of these financial statements.

s WE

Chiof Exocilive Chief Firamcisl Officor

T

2023 2022
Rupees Rupees
4,200,140,937 5,166,171,154
(3,779,594,822) (4,367.630,755)
420,146,115 798,540,398
(42,495,566) (45.848,895)
(112,114,284) (96,757,796)
(154,609,850) (142,606,691)
265,536,265 55,933,708
(306,864,446) (174,390,261)
(38,514,004) (67.393,550)
(79,842,275) 414,149,897
45,322,054 137,702,674
(34,520,221) 551,852,771
22,026,220 (119,845,916)
(12,494,001) 432,006,855
39,602,265 19,262,595
(4,022,874) (982 374)
1,166,633 284 856
(2,856,241) (697 478)
36,746,024 18,565,117
24,252,023 450,571,872
{0.63) 21.76




UN-CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the Year ended June 30, 2023

A CASHFLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

{Loss) [ profit before Bxaion

Adjestments for :
Deprecistion
Prowision for relirement benefi obligation
Finance cost
Prowision for slow moving stores, spares 8nd loose lools
Expeciad credil loss - trade recsivable
Expected credil loss - other receivable
Unrealized gain on Cotlon clams
Unraalizad loss §{ (gain) on other financial assats
Profit on deposits
Gain on disposal of propary, plant and squipment
Linwinding of discount on other receivables
{lncrease) [ decrease in current ssseis
Stores, spares and loose ools
Stock-in-frade
Trade debls
Loans and advances

Prepaymanis
Other receivables

{Decresse) | increase in current Babilities
Trade and other payables

Cash generated from operations

Finance cost paid

Reatirement benefil obligation paid

Income tax paid

Long-lerm deposis - nel

Met cash (used in) / generated from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchasa of property, plant and egquipmenl

Proceads from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Purchass of term daposii recaipt - nel
Purchase of shams

Profil on deposils recaived

Wet cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Long-t=rm finance repaid o financial institufions
Expor refinanca repaid - nel
Long-lerm finence obiained from fnancial insttuficns

Long-term finance repaid to eiated parlies

Long-l=rm finance obtaned from relatad parties

Short lsrm bormowings cbiained - nat

Lease lishiliies repaid during lhe year

Dividend paid

Mail cash genersted froem / (used in) inancing acinabes
Met {decreass) / increase in cash and cash sguivalents
Cash and cash equivslents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

The annexed noles 1 to 44 form an infegral part of these financial stalemenis.

A8 s E_S

Chiof Exocilive Chief Firamcisl Officor

Note

4.1
194

27

27

an

30

T

2023 022
Rupeas Rupees
[24,520,221) 551,852 771
107,243,091 105,204 201
24,691,262 10,765,703
306,564, 445 174,300,251
= 1,368,306
1,645,333 .
1,144,367 =
{3,024,315) -
{688, 290) 2 055 406
(18,261,881) (5.521,448)
(7,478,050) {1,233, 155}
- (B.401,253)
37T RIS TAZ B4t 571,152
(16,257 615) (15,080 585)
{254 656,601) (117,000,712}
111,334,879 (66,842 420}
A7 455 GOD (78,270,764)
301,773 133,605}
(36,844,620} {21.711,462)
(149,406, 524) (208 530 557)
(18,360,116} 371,824 244
(167,766, 700) 72 B84, BAT
210,100,042 914,455 E30
(229,165, 594) (158,047, 560)
{6,218,600) {16,402 560}
(60,800,822) (65,292 553}
230,680 (241,374)
[B5.944,596) 874,471,602
(1,157,305,720) {394,050, 875)
13,175,000 1,787,500
(44,978 050) {32,300, 000)
- (7,133,910
15,472,517 3865410
{1,173,636,257) (427 B3 ETH)
{112.768,553) {83,604,014)
757,256 682 209,173,634
{6.745,226) (2,00, 000)
1,450,000 =
366 457 419 {102 508 412}
(7,767 062} {21,355,768)
{149,531) (19,377, 782)
1,017,732, 669 (19,672,342}
(241,848, 183) 226 067 472
(183,476 856) (420,.444,328)
(435,325,039) (193.476,858)
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UN-CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the Year ended June 30, 2023

Capitat Revenue
rEserve rESErve
Surplus on

ot revaluation of  Eguity portion
property, plant  of loan from

Unappropriated Total

L and equipment related parties
-nel of tax
Hite Rupees
Balance = at July 1, 2021 168 528 000 910,710,758 25813 862

Prosfit fior the year - - -

Oiher comprehansive income for the year

851,551,823 2006613543

A42 D06 855 32 D6 BSS

Adjustment of surpius on revaluation of propesty, plant and equipment = 19,262,585 = (B9 4T8) 18,565,117
due fo change in tax i
. 10 262 505 - BI7ATE 18,565,117
Tetal comprehensive income for the year - 19,262 505 - 431 3046 377 A50.571 672
Transfer to | from surplus on revaluation of property
plant and equipment on account of
- incremental depreciation charged thereon - net of iax 14 - (AT A51,E20) - A7 49185
Transactions with shareholders
Final dividend &t a1 per share for the year endad Juns 30, 2021 - - - (#0.B52 800) (19,852 800}
Transactions with relsted parties
Urwinding of dscount on long-term koan from related parties 152 - - (S:918_132) 0.0918,132
Fair value affact of infereat free loan provided by relsisd pardies 152 - - - - -
Balance as at June 30, 2022 168528 000 B82 490 524 15,885 730 1420 418461 2517332 715
Prodit for the year - - - (12,494, 001) {12,494 001)

Oiher comprehansive income for the year

Adjustment of surpius on revaluation of propesy, plant and equipment = 39,602, 265 = {2,856 241) 36,746,024
due fo change in tax reile
- 34 602 265 - {2,858 241) 36,746 024

Totsl comprehensive income for the year - 39,602 265 - (15,350, 242) 24 257 023
Transfer to | from surplus on revaluation of property,

plant and equipment on account of
- incremental depreciation charged therson - net of ax 14 - (53.968,7T8) - 53.968.7TTH -
Transactions with related parties
Unwinding of discount on lang-term nan from related parties 152 - - (11,817,123 "M,817.123 *
Fair value affect of interest free lban provided by redsted paries 15.2 - - 25086235 - 25086235
Balance as at June 30, 2023 198,528,000 BE8. 124,011 30,064 842 1ATO BS54 1200 2567 570,973

The annaxad roles 1 bo 44 form an nlegral par of thess findncal stalemeants.

AL A P

Chiof Exocilive Chief Firamcisl Officor
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UN-CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year ended June 30, 2023

STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

ldrees Texdile Mills Limiled {the Company) was incorporaied in Pakistan as an unguoled public fmited company on Jung 5, 1990
undeor the repoaled Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now Companies Act, 2017) and was listed on Pakisian Stock Exchange Limited
on Apnl 28, 1992, The registered office of the Company is situated at 6-C, lamail Cenire, 1st floor, Central Commeercial Area,
Bahadurabad, Karachi in the Province of Sindh. The principal aclivity of the Company is manufacturing, processing and sale of afl
kinds of yam. The Company is also engaged in business of Home Texdile.

These are separate financksl statements of the Company in which investment in subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses,
if ary.

Faollowing are the goographical focafion and address of all business units of the Company.

Karachi Purposs

6-C, Ismail Cantfre, 1st fioor, Coentral Commercial Area, Bahadurabad Head Ofice

Hankana Sahib Purpose

Kot Shah Muhammad, Tehsil & District Nankana Punjab Regional Office and Producton Plant / Factory

In the year ended June 30, 2022, the Company acquirnd 100% ownership in ORA Home LLC (ORA), a limited liabiiity company
incorporaied in New Jorsey, USA on January 5, 2022 One of the direciors of the Company is the member managor of ORA.
Pursuant to the acquisition, ORAhas bocome whally owned subsidiary of the Company {rofer note 5).

BASIS OF PREPARATION
Staterment of compliance

These financial statomonts have boen propared in accordance with the accounfing and reporting Standards as applicable in
Pakistan. The accounting and reporting sfiandards as-applicable in Pakisian comprse of;

- International Financial Roporfing Standards (IFRS Standards | issued by the Infemational Accounting Siandards Board (IASE)
as nofified under the Companios Act, 2017, and

- Provisions of and direclives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

Where. provisions of and direcfives issued undoer the Companies Acl, 2017 differ with requiremenis of IFRS Slandards, fhe
provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Acl, 2017 have been followed.

Basis of measuromont

These financist siatements have been proparod under historical cost convenfion except that ceriain categories of proporty, plant and
equipment are siated at rovaleed amoonts-and the Company's Bability under defined benofit plan (gratuity) is stated at present value
of defined bonefit cbligation.

Presontation and functional currency

Items included in the financial statements are measured wsing the cumency of the primary economic envimnment in whichk the
Company operates. These fineneial sistemenis: are presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is the Company's funclional and
presentzfion cumency. All financial mformation presented in Pakisian Rupoes has been rounded off 1o the nearest rupec.

Uze of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial siafoments in conformity with the accounting and reporfing standards, as applcable in Pakisian,
requires management o make judgments, esimaies and assumptions that affect the application of policies and the reporied
amounts of assets, kabilities, income and expenses.

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical expericnce and varioos other factors that are belioved to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the result of which form the basis of making the judgments about the camying values of assots
and liabilifies fhat ane not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from thoso estimates. The ostimates and
underying assumptions are reviewnd on an ongoing basis. Revision io accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which
the estimate iz rovised if the revision afiocts only that pernod, or in the period of revision and future periods if the rovision affects both
currant and fulure periods.
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UN-CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year ended June 30, 2023

Judgements made by management in the application of the accounting and reporting standards, as applicable in Pakistan, that have
a significant effect on the financial statements and esimates with significant risk of material judgmont in the next inancial year are
st forth babow:

- assumplions and esfimates used in accounting for defined benefit plan (notes 3.10.1 and 1901);

assumplicns and estimates usod in detormining fair value, residual value, useful lives and recovorable amount of proporty,
plant and eguipment (noles 3.1, 3.6 and 4.1);

assumpiions and esfimates used in detormining provision for teation including defermed taxation (notes 3,11, 18 and 31);

- aszsumptions and esfimates used in determining provision for slow moving slores and spares (notes 3.2 and 6.1),
- assumplions and esfimates used in wriling down items of stock-in-trade 1o their net realizable value (notes 3.3 and 7);
- confingencies and commitments (note 23); and

- impairment of inancial assets (noles 3.5.4)
Changes in accounting standards and interpretations
Mew accounfing standards / amendments and IFRS inlorpretafions that are effective for the year ended June 30, 2023

The following standards, amendments- and interpretations are effective for the year ended June 30, 2023. These standards,
amendments and interpretaions are either not relevant to the Company's operations or are not expected to have significant impact
on the Company's financial statements other than ceriain additional disclosures.

- Amendments to IFRS 3 "Business Combinations’ - Reference to the conceplual framework
= Amendments fo IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment’ - Procoeds before infended use

= Amendments fo 1AS 37 'Provisions, Contingant Liabilities and Contingont Assats’ - Onerous Contracts — cost of fulfilling a
contract

= Annual Improvemants to IFRS Standards 2018-2020 Gyclo (related to IFRS 3, IFRS 16 and 1AS 41)

New accounting standards and amendmeants that are not yet effective

The following standards, amendments and inferpretations are only effective for acoounting periods, beginning on or after the date
manticnad agains! each of them. These standards, inferpretations and the amendments are aither not rafevant o the Company's
operations or are nol expecied to have significanl impact on the Company's financial statemenis other than cerlain additional
disclosures:
Effective from accounting period
beginning en or after:

= Amendments fo IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements’ - Disclosure of accounting January 01, 2023

paoficies

- Amendments fo IAS 8 ‘Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Janusne 01 2023
Emors” - Definifion of accounting estimates NER
= Amendments fo "TAS 12 Income Taxes' - defemed tax related o assets and liabiliies January D, 2023
arising from a singie fransaction. NS
= Amendments fo IAS 12 7 Incoma faxes” - international Tax Reform — Pillar Two Modaol

Janusry 01, 223
Rules

- Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Stalements’ - Classification of

liabilitics as curment or non-current 4 Iy o1, 202

- Amendments to IFRS 16 * Leases' -Clanfication on how scller-lesses subsoquantly

measures sale and leaseback transactions January §1, 2024

= Amendments:to IAS 7 "Statement of Cash Flows' and "TFRS 7 "Financial instrumonts

January 01, 2024
disclosures’ - Supplior Finance Amangemants Y

Amendments fo IFRS 10 and 28 - Sale or Cantribution of Assets botwean an Investor

and its Associate or Joint Venture Defemed indefinitely

27
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UN-CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year ended June 30, 2023

Ciher than the aforessid amendmonts, ASE has also issued the following slandards which have not been adopled locally by the
Socurifies and Exchange Commission of Pakistan:

- IFRS 1 - First Time Adoption of International Financial Reporfing Standards
= IFRS 17 — Insurance Contracls

SUMMARY OF SIGMIFICANT ACCOUMNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are the sama as those applied in the
preparation of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2023

Property, plant and equipment

Owned assels

Property, plant and equipment are stated as follows:
- Land iz stated at revaiued amount

- Building, Labour colony, plant and machinery, electric installations and mill cquipment amo stated at revalued amounts less
accumulaicd depreciation and impairment losses, i any, and

- DOffice equipment, furniture and fodures and vehicles sre staled at cost less sccumulated deprociafion and impairment losses,
if any.

Cost includes oxpenditune that is directly attributable to the acquisifion of an assel including borrowing costs, i army. When paris of
an item of property, plant and equipmant have difforent useful lives, thoy are scoountod for as separate items (Major componenis)
of property, plant and eguipment.

Subsequent costs are included in-an assef’s carmying amournt or recognisod a& a separale assol, a5 appropnate, only when if is
probable that fiture economic benofils associated with the item will flow 1o the Company and its cost can ba measurnd reliably. Cost
incurred fo replace a component of an itoem of property, plant and equipmenl is capitalized and the assel so replaced is
dorccogrised. Mommal repairs and maintenance are charged to the statemont of profit or loss during the poriod in which thoy are
incurred.

Bepreciation s charged o the staiement of profit or loss on a simight fine basis af the rates specified in noto 4.1 Deprecizkon on
addifions is charged from tho month an asset is available for use upto the month pror o its disposal.

Depreciafion methods, vseful fives and residual values of each item of property, plant and equipment that is significant in relafion o
the total cost of the assot are roviewed and adjested, if sppropriate at each reporting dato.

Surplus on revaluation of assels 1= recognised et of tax, n statement of other comprehensive Icome (OCH) and presented as a
separaie component of equity as “surplus on evaluation of property, plant and equipment”, except that it reverses a revaluation
deficit for the same assel proviously recognised in the sistement of profit or loss, in which case the surplus s crediled to the
statemont of profit or loss to the extent of the deficit charged previousty.

Deeficit on revaiuation of assels is recognised in the statement of profi or loss, except that it reverses a3 revaluation surplus for the
same assel previously necognised in sialement of other comprehensive income, in which case the deficit is charged to othor
comprehensive income (o the extent of the surplus credited previously. The revaluation reserve is not available for distribution to the
Company's sharcholders.

Revaluation is camiod out with sufficiont regularnty to ensure that the camying amount of assots does not differ matonally from the
estimaled fair value. To the cxdent of the incremenial depreciation charged on the mvalued asseis, the melaled surplus on
rovaluation of assots (net of deformed taxation) is transformed directly o retained eamings (unappropriated profit). Furihor,
accumutated depreciaion as at the revaiuafion date is elimineied against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the pet amoont
is restated to the revalued amount of the asset. Upon disposal, any rovaluaion surplus refafing to the particular asset boing sold is
transferred to retained eamings (unapprophated profit).

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognisod upon disposal or when no fulure economic benefits are expected from if=s
use or disposal. The gain or loss on disposal of an item of proparty, plant and eguipment s determined by companng the proceods
from disposal with the camying amount of the property, plant and equipment, and is recognised in ofher income { othar cxpanses in
the statement of profii or loss. When mevalued assels are sold, any refated amount included in the swplus on revaluation is
fransformed to retained eamings (unappropriated profit).

28
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UN-CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year ended June 30, 2023

Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-m-progress 5 stated af cost less impaimment loss, if any, and consists of axpenditune incurred and advances made in
respect of assets in the course of their acquisifion, constnicion and installation. Transfers are made lo refevant assel calegonies as
and when asseis are available for intended use.

Leased assots

Plant and machinery acquired under finance lease s stated al revalued amounts less accumulaled depreciation and impairment
lazses, if any. Vehiclos acquired under firance lease are staled al cosl less accumulated depraciation and mpairment losses, if any.
As=nts that will be transiemred at the end of the lease torm are deprecated over the wuseful life of the assets commeancng from the
yoar in which the leased assets are pul info operation. Depreciation and other policies are same as for the owned assols described
abwerve.

Stores, spares and loose tools

Thesa arg stated at lower of woighled average cost and net realizable value. ltems in transit ane slated at cosl comprsing invorcse
value plus othor charnges incurred thoreon upto the reparting date. Provision for obsolate and slow moving siores, spares and loocsoe
lools iz detormined based on the management's estimate regarding thedr fulure usability.

Mot realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business iess the niet estimabed costs necessary (o
be ncurred 10 make the sale.

Slock-in-trade

These are stated at lower of cost and nel realizable value applying the Tollowing basis:
Coost signifies in relation to;

- Raw malerial (imported) Lower of cost (specific identification basis) and nel realfisable value
- Raw mataral (local) E_ﬂ of cost (woighted average) and NRY

- Siock-in-transit Cost accumulated up o roporting dato

- Waork-in-process and finished goods Lowar of cost and NRV

- Wasle Nol reafizablo valua (NRV)

Cosl in refation o work-in-process and finished goods represenis annual average manufacturing cosl which consists of prime cost
and appropriate manufaciuring ovorheads.

Mot realizable value (NRV) signifios the estimated selling price i the ordinary course of business less the not estimated costs
necessary o be incurmed 1o make the sale.

Trade debis and other recelvables
Trade debis and othar recewables are recognised imtially atl fair value and subseqguently measured al amorized cost less loss
allowance; if any. The Company measures the loss allowance for rade dobls atan-amount equal o lifeiime expeciod credil losses
(ECL). The expected credil losses on irade debls are estimaled using a provision matix by reference fo pasl defaull experience of
the dablor and an analysis of he deblor's current financial posilion, adjusted for factors that are specific o the debtors, general
economic- condifions of the ndustry in which the deblors operate and an assessment of both the curment as well-as the forecast
direction of conditions al the reporling date.
Trade debts and other recevables considered imecoverable ane writhen off.
Financial instrumants
Classification of financial assets
Tha Company classifies s inancial assels into following thres calegories:

Alamortized cost ("ACT),

Fair value through other comprehoensive income ("FVTOCT) and

Fair value through profit or loss ("FVTPL").
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UN-CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year ended June 30, 2023

Financial asssts al amortised cost

Afinancial assol k= measured at amortized cost if it mests both of the Tollowing conditions and = not designaled as FVTPL:
1) the asset s hold within a business modol whoso obpective 1S to hold assels o collect conftractual cash flows, and

2) the contractual terms of the financial assel give rise on specified dales o cash fows that are solely payments of principal and
inferest on the principal amount outstanding.

The amorfised cost of a financial asset is the amount at which the financial assol 1 measured at inikal recognibon mimus the
principal repayments, plus the cumulative amorisalion using the effeclive inleres] method of any difference between thal initiat
amount and the maturily amount, adjusted for any loss allowancoe. The gross carrying amourt of a financial assol is the amortised
cost of a financial asset before adiusting for any loss allowance.

Financial assets at FVTOCI

Afnancal asset i measured at FVTOCH ondy if it meets both of the following condiions and s nol designatod as FYTPL

1) the assel is held within a business model whose objectve s achieved by bolh collecting contraciual cash flows and selling
Tinancial assols; and

23 the contractual terms of the financial asscel give nse on speciied dates o cash fiows that are solely payments of prncapal and
inlerest on ihe principal amount oulstanding.

On inifial recognition, for an equily investment that is nol held for trading, the Company may irevocably oect lo present subsoquent
changes in fair vatue m OCl, only dividend income is recognised in income statement. Thiz election iz made on an investmant-oy-
Investmont basis.

FWTOCH financial assets are subseguenlly measured at fair value with gains and losses ansing due lo changes in fair value
recognisad in OCL

Financial assets at FVTPL

All ather financial assels are classified al FYTPL (for example. equily held for rading and debl secunties nol dassified either as AC
ar FVTOCT).

In addition, an iniial recognition, the Company may irevocably desigrate a financial asse! that ofherwise meets the requirements 1o
be measured al amorfized cost o al FYVTOCH as al FVTPL if doing 5o elimnales or significanlly reduces an accounbing mismatch
thal would otherwise anso.

Fmancial assols ane not reclassified subsoguent to thoir imtial recognition, except n the ponod afier the Company changes its
business mode! for managing financial assels.

Recognition and initial measuremonl of financial instruments

Fmancial assels and financal habilifies are recognised in the Company's statement of assots and labiities when the Company
becomes a party lo the contractual provisions of the instrumenl. Financial assefs and financial Eabilities are initially moasured at fair
value. Transsction cosls thal are directly altributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and fimancial abilites (other than
financial assets and financial fabilities at fair value throogh profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the linancial
assets or financial kabiliies, as appropriaie. on inilial recognition. Transaction cosis direclly attributable 1o the acquisition of financiat
assots or financial kabdities-at f@ir value thiough profit or loss are ecognised immedistely in profit or loss.

Subsequoent measurement of financial assets
Financial assels al amortised cosl
Financial assels at amortised cost are subsequently measured at amortised cosl. Amortised cost is calculated using the offecive

interest rate method. The effective interest rate = the ale thal exaclly discounts esimated fulure cash receipts through the
expected life of the finandcal instrumant to the ned carmying amaount of the financial assot.

Financial azsets at FVTOCI

All financial aszets at FYTOCH are subsequently measured at fair value with gains and losses ansing duo to changes in f&@ir value
recognieed in olher comprehonsive iNcoms.
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UN-CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year ended June 30, 2023

For dabl instruments dassified as financial assets at FVTOCH, the amounts: in other comprahensive incoma are recassifed o
income staterment on derecognition of financkal assets. This treatmant ks in confrast o oguity instruments classifiod as financiat
azzels al FYTOC!, where here is no roclassification on derecognilion.

Financial assets at FVTPL

All financial assols designated at fair vatue through profil or loss are subsequently camed at fair valuo, with gains and losses ansing
from changes in fair value recorded in the income stalemenl

Impairment
impairment of financial assels

Linder expectod credit foss (ECL) modal of IFRS 9, the Company recognises loss allowances for ECLs on firancal assets. The
Company measures hoss allowances al an amount equal lo lifetime ECLs, excepl for the fellowing, which are measured al 12-monith
ECL=:

- Financial assets that are determined 1o have low credit nsk at the reporting date; and

- Other financial assets for which crodit nsk (Le. the nek of defaull occumng over the expected life of the asset) has not
increased significantly since nllial recognition.

When delermining whelher the credil risk of a financial assel has increased significantly since initial recognition and when estimating
ECLs, the Company considers reasonabie and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or afforl.
This imcludes bolh quantitalive and guaslitative information and analysks, based on the Company's hestoncal cxpenence and mfornmed
credil assessmen! and Including forward-looking information.

Classification and measurement of financial labilities

All financial Habilities are measured subsequenlly al amorlised cost using the effectvi nlerest method or at FYVTPL. The effeclive
inleresl method & a method of calculating the amorised cost of a financial labdity and of aocating inferest expense over the
relovant ponod. The affective intorest rats is tho rate that oxactly discounts estimated future cash payments {including all foes and
points pakd or received thal form an inlegral par of the effective inleres! mte, ransaciion cests and other premiums o discounis)
through the expectad life of the financial kability, or (whore appropriate) a shorter period, to the amorfised cost of @ firancizl labikty

Derecognition

Financial assels are derecognised when the rights 1o receive cash Mlows from the financial assets have axpired or whoero the enlity
has transferred substantiaily all risks and rewards of ownership.

A nancial Habdity is derecognised whieh the obligation specificd in the conlract ks discharged, cancelled of exrred.
Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and financial labililies are offset and the net amount is reporied in the stalement of asseis and Nabiliies when there
is-a legally enforceable right o set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention o setle on a net basis or realise the assets
and sottle the Habilitos simultanoousty.

Impairmont of non-financial assets

The carmying amounts of the Company's non-financial assets, othor than deforred lax asseds and inventones ane reviewed -at each
batance sheel date lo delermine whether there s any indication of impairmenl. i such indicalion eudsts, the assel’s recoverable
amount, being higher of value in wse and fair value less costs 1o sell, s estimated  In assessing value in pse, the esimated future
cash flows are discounted fo thor present valuo using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of tho ime
value of money and the risks specific o the assel For the purpese of impaiment lesting, assels thal cannol be lested individually
are grouped together indo the smallest group of asseis that goneraies cash inflows from continwng use that are largely independent
of tho cash inflows of other assots or groups of assets. An impamment oss s recognised whonever the camying amount of an asset
excecds (s recoverable amount. Impairmenl losses ane recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Forelgn currency transactions and translation

Transactions in foreign curencies are franslaled inlo reporling currency al the rales of exchange prevailing on the dale of
transactons. Monetary assels and liabiliies denominated in foreign currenoes are me-translated into reporting currency eguivalents
using foroign currency rates ruling on the reporting date.  Exchange differences on foreigh cumency ranssclions and transtation ane
Ircludied i e ioormie cumently.
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UN-CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year ended June 30, 2023

Provisions.

Provisions are recognised n the statement of financial position when the Company has a prosent, legal or constructive obligation as
a resull of a past event, il is probable thal an oulfiow of resources embodying economic bencfiis will be required 1o scille the
oblgation, and &4 reliable cstimate can bo made of the amounl of obligaton. Provisions are revicwed al cach reporting date and
adjusted o refiect the curent best estimate.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash eguivatenis used in siatement of cash flows include cash in hand batances with banks in current and deposit
accounts and short torm bomowings. Shart-term bomowings avallod by the Company, are payvablo on domand and form an integral
part of the Company's cash managoemant

Retirement benofit obligation
Defined benalit plan

The Company operates an unfunded gratulty scheme covering all iis factory workers who have completed the minimum gualifiing
perod of sorvice as defined under the scheme. The Company's obbgation under the scheme is determined hrough actuarial
vaiuation camed oul at each year end under the Projected Unit CGredit Method. Remeasurements which comprise actuanal gains
and osses are recognised immediately in other comprehenshve ihcomo.

The Company delermines the interest oxpense on the defined benafit kability for the period by applying the discount rale usad
measure the defined bonofit cbligation at the beginning of the-annual poried to the then defined bencefit Hability, taking inlo account
any changes in the defined benefil kability during thi period a5 a resull of benefil paymenis. Interes! expense and current service
cosl are rocogrised in the statement of profit or loss.

Defined contribution plan

The Company operates an approved funded contributory provident fund scheme for all head office staff. Equal monthly contributions
arg made both by the Company and the employess at the rate of 8.33% of basic satary per annum.

Taxation
Current tax

Provigion for current iaxation is based on faxable income at the current rales of taxation, after taking into account tax rebates and
tax credils available, if any, or lurnover at the specified rate or Alternate Corporate Tax as defined in section 113C of the Income
Tax Ordinance, 2001, whichever s higher. Charge for cumrent tax also includes adjustments, whene necessary, relating lo prior
yoars which arise from assessment framed [/ inalized during the year. However, fof income coverad under finsl Lo regima, (axation
iz based on applicable tax rates under such regime.

Deferred tax

Defomred tax s recognised wusing tho liability method, providing for toemporary difercnce botwoen the camying amounts of assets-and
liabillities for fnancial reporting purpeses and the amounts used for faation purposes. The amount of deferred tax provided is based
on the expecled manner of realization or setfement of the carrying amount of assels and Habiliies wsing the lax rates enacted or
substanively emacted al the reporting date.

Thi Company recognises a deformed tax assed 1o the edont that it is probable thal eable profits in the foresesable futurs will be
avaitable against which the assots can be ulilized. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable thal the
relaled tax benofit will be realised.

Furthar, the Company aiso recognizes a defermed (ax assot [/ lability on deficl / surplus on revaluabon of property, plant and
equipment which is adjustod against the rolaled defict § surplus.

Trade and other payables

Trade and othor payables are recogrdsed initally at fair value plus directly attibutable cost, if any, and subsequenlly measured at
amortized cost.

Borrowing costls

Bomowing costs direclly atirbutable 1o the acquisition, construction o production of gualifying assets, which are assels that
nacassarily take a substantial period of lime 10 get ready for their intended use or sale, ame capitafized as pan of the cost of the
raspective assats until such time as the assets are substantally ready for their intended use or sale. All othar borrowing costs ane
recognised in statement of profit or loss inthe pariod in which they ame incurred.
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UN-CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year ended June 30, 2023

Revenue recognition

The Company manufactures and contracts with customers for the sale of yam which generally include  single performance
oblkgation. Management has assessed that revenue from sale of goods bo recognised at the point in time whon control of the asset
iz transfemed fo the customer, which is when the goods are dispaiched to the cusiomer in case of local sales and date of bill of
lading in case of export sales.

Interost income is accrued on fime proportionate basis, by referenco 1o the principal outsianding and at the applicable effoctive
intorest rate.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised whan the Company’s Aght o receive payment have boen established and is recognised in statemeant
of profit or loss and included in othar incoma.

Dividend and appropriation to / from reserves

Dividend distribution o the Compamy’s sharcholders and approgriations to / from reserves is recognised in the period in which thoso
aro approved.

Earnings per share

The Company presents basic and difuted eamings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is caiculated by dividing
the profil or loss atinbuisble to ordinary sharcholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ardinary shares
cutstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is dotermined by adjuesting the profit or loss atiributable to ordinary sharcholders and the
wighted average number of ordinary shares outsiamding for the effects of all diutive potential ordinary shares.

Leases - Lease liabilities and right-of-use asseis

The Company recognises loases as a nght-of-use asset and corresponding fability at the date at which the leased asset iz available
for use by the Company.

The lease lability is subsequently measured (at amortised cost) by increasing the camying amount to reflect interast on the lease
fiability using the offective infercsf method and by redocing the camying amount to reflect the lease payments made. It is
remeasured when thore is a change in fulure lease payments arising from a change in fixed lease payments or an index or rate,
change in the Company's estimale of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guaranies, or if the Company
changes ifs assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, exiension or lferminafion opbion. The comesponding adjustment is
made to the cammving amount of the rght-of-use asset, or is recorded in statement of profit or loss if the carmving amount of right-of-
use asset has been reduced to zaro.

For short term leases and leazes of low | immaterial value assets, the Company recognises the lease payments as an operating
oxpense on a siraight-ine basis over the term of tho lease unless another systematic basis is more represeniative of the time
pattam in which economic benefits from the lcased assets are consumed.

The right-of-use assel is initially measured based on the initial amount of tho leaso liability adjustod for any lease payments made at
or before the commencement date, plus any mnitial direct costs ncomed and an estimate of cosis o dismante and remove the
undariying asset or 1o restore the underiying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentive received. The right-of-
use assetl is deprectabod on a straght ine method over the assets economic life.. The nght-of-use asset is reduced by impaiment
losses, ifany, and adjusted for cortain re-maasurements of the lease fiability

Investment in Subsidiary

Investment in subsidiary is measured at cost less any identified impairmeaent loss in the Company's separate financial statements.

Al each reporting date, the Company reviews the camying amount of the investiment in subsidiary to assess whothor there s any
indication that such investments have suffered an impairment foss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. The recoverablo amount is the higher of an assof's fair
value less costs o sell and value in use. Impaiment losses are recognised as expensa in the Unconsolidated Stslement of Profit ar
Loss_ Investment in subsidiary that suffered an impairment, is reviewead for possible reversal of impairment at each reporting date.
An impairment loss is reversed if there has bean change in esfimates used to determing the recoverable amount but fimited to the
oxient of Initial cost of invesiments. A reversal of impairmant boss ks recognised inthe Unconsolid ated Staioment of Profit or loss
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UN-CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year ended June 30, 2023

The carrying amount of an investment camied at cost is derecognised when if is sold or othorwise disposed of. The difforence
betwesen the fair value of any consideralion received on disposal and the cammying amount of the invesiment is recorded in the
Unconsofidated Profit or Loss account as a gain or loss on disposal.

Governmont grant

The benofit of interest rate lower than the market rate on bomowings obtained under State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) Refinance
Scheme for Payment of Wages and Salares to the Workers and Employees of the enfily and Temporary Economic Refinance
Facility (TERF), is accounted for as a govermnment granl which is the difference botweon amount of loan received and the fair value
of the loan on the date of disbursement. The diferential amount presented in statement of financial position as deferred government
grant. The amoriisation of defermed govermment grant is netied off with finance cost within in the statement of profit or loss.

Government grants are recognised at fir value, as defored income, when thero is reasonable assurance that tho grantz will be
received and the Company will be able to comply with the conditions associalod with the granis.

Grants thal compensate the Company for oxpenses incumed, ame recognised on a systemafic basis in the income for the year in
which the relsied expenses ame recognisod. Granis that compensale for the cost of an asset ane recognised in incomo on a
sysiemalc basis over the expected useful Iife of the related asset

A loan is initially recognized and subsequently measured in accordanco with IFRS 3. IFRS 9 requires loans at below-market rates o
be initially measured at their fair value - eqg. the present value of the oxpected fulure cash flows discounted 8t @ markel-related
interest rate. Tho bonefil, that is the govermment grant, is measured as the differcnce botween the fair value of the loan on inifial
recognition and the amount received, which is accounted for according fo the nature of the grant.

Dperating Segment

An operafing segment is @ component of the Company that engagoes in business activities from which it may eam revenues and
incur expenses that relales io transactions with any of the othor compononts of the Company.

The Board of Directors and the Chiof Executive Officer of tho Company have been idontifind as the chief opaerafing decision-makiors
(CODM), who are responsible for allocating resources and assessing the performance: of the operafing segments. Management has
determined that the Company has a single reporiable segment as tho CODOM views the Company's oporations as one rmportable
segment

Commitmenits
Commitments for capital expondifure contractod for but not incumed are disclosed in the financial statements at committed amounts.

Commitments for leticrs of credit and |elicrs of guaraniee denominated in forsign currencies are expressed in rupee erms at
committed amounts (Moie - 23.2).

2023 2022
Note Rupees Rupees
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Operating fixed assels
< Ownied 4119 1,894 700,281 1.940.313,063
- Right of use assels 412 2,362,004 37,614,719
1,897, 152,285 1977027782
Advance against vehicle 413 . 17,320,000
Capital work in progress:
- Building 199,111,306 125,529,930
- Plant & Machinery 1,282,051,280 213,451 480
414 1,481,162,586 338.981 410
3.378,314.87M 2,334.245.192
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UN-CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year ended June 30, 2023

Forced sale values as per the latest revaluation report as of June 30, 2021 as mentioned in note 4.4 are as follows:

T

Asset Class Rupees
Land - freehold 204,318,750
Mili= building on freehold land 185,838,053
Labour colony on freghold land 18,148,731
Plant and machinery 1,157 488 400
Blectric installations 17,580 200
Mill equipment 4. 201,200
Particulars of immovable asset of the Company are as follows:
Location Addresses Usage of immovable Total Area (Acres)
property
Mankana Sahib Kot Shah Muhammad, Tehsil & Disinct  Produchion Plant and facility 20.03
Mankana Punjab
2023 2022
LONG TERM INVESTMENT Mote Rupees Rupess
Cost 51 -

In the year ended June 30, 2022, the Company acquired 100% ownarship in ORA Home LLC (ORA), a mited liability company
incorporated in New Jersey, USA on January §, 2022. The Company paid nil consideration for the scouisifion of subsidiary due fo
net liability position in the books of subsidiary and accordingly assumed all liablities of the subsidiary as on January 5, 2022,

2023 2022
Mote Rupees Rupees
STORES, SPARES AND LOOSE TOOLS
ESfores and spares B1,690,595 53,044 427
Siores and spares in transit 467,498 12,156,051
Loose tools 64,585 64 555
B2222 678 65 265063
Less: provigion for slow moving fems (7, 743,217) (7. 743.217)
74,479,461 57,521,846
STOCK-IN-TRADE
Raw material - Cotton
= In hand 726,253,683 TB7, 024122
- In trans:t 153,022 484 99 948 162
Raw material - Home Textile
- In hand 11,224,752
Work-in-process - Yam 76,496,220 56,022 198
Work-in-process - Home Textile 28,702,503
Finished goods - Yam
- In hand 315,503,103 163,228,844
- In transit 28,754 217 27 545324
. Third party 97,473,722 57,888,374
Waste - Yam 18,380,621 15,463,680
1,461,817,305  1,207,120,704

38



8.1

8.3

841

UN-CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Year ended June 30, 2023

TRADE DEBTS
Considered good

Export - secured
Local

Considered doubtful
Local

Less: Expecied credit loss

MNote

136,441,517 308,726,383

519,141,902 450 837 248

8.1 655,583,419 768,563,631
14,058,548 12413215

669,641 967 TB0.976 846
B2 {14,058,548) (12,413,215)

655,583,419 768,563,631

Trade debis are non-interest bearing and are generally on 60 to 90 days terms.. Trade debis are unsecured other than the export
and local rade debts that are secured against letter of credits as mentioned in note 8.4.

Expected credit loss

Balance as at July 1,
Charge during the year
Balance as at June 30,

Ageing of trade debts past due but not impaired

Mot past due

0 - 90 days
81-180 days
Above 180 days

2023 2022
Rupees Rupees
12,413,215 12413215
27 1,645,333 s
14,058,548 12,413,215
436,421,781 766,818,903
138,928,038 10,001,125
B9, B34 37T 45 o45
4,457,771 4,060,823
669,641,967 THO, 976, B46

Foliowing are the details for local and export related trade debts cutstanding as at June 30 2023, which are secured sgainst letter

of credit:

Indirect Export
Exports

LOANS AND ADVANCES

Considered good
Loans o employees - unsecurad
Advance to employees

Advances - unsecured
- to supphers

- for expenses

Advance income fax

Maode of arrangement 2023 2022
Rupees Rupees
Confirmed LC 81,539,158 A4 7B0 578
Confirmed LC 136,441,517 308,726 383
2023 2022
MNote Rupees Rupees
9.1 387,000 359,000
9.1 420,000 474481
39,791,000 93,029,920
924,154 6,602942
40,715,244 09,632,862
82,761,263 71,272,764
124,283,507 171,738,107

These represents unsecured, interest free, shori-term loan and advance given to employees of the Company.
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UN-CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Year ended June 30, 2023

2023 2022
Mote Rupees Rupees
OTHER RECEIVABLES
Sales Ex
- considered good 185,987,592 150,850,073
- considered doubtiud 3,774,996 2630620
Export rebate - considered doubtful 2,194,344 2184 344
Less: expected credit loss 101 (5,969,340} (4,824 973)
185,987,582 150,850,078
Duty draw back receivable 5,872,932 5872932
Cotion daim receivable 30.1 23,767,311 22 851,349
Profit on deposits 6,576,634 3,757,270
Dthers 084,786 1,133,058
37,201,663 33,614,609
223.189.255 184,464 687
Expected credit loss
Asat July 01, 2022 4,824,973 4 824 973
Charge during the year 1,144 367 -
As at June 30, 2023 5,969,340 4,824,973
OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
- At amoritised cost
Term deposit receipts 11.1 174,372,670 129,354 620
- Fair value through profit or loss
Shor term investment in listed company 112 5,742,950 5075414
180,115,660 134 473,034

These represent term deposit receipts with various banks for a period ranging from six months io one year camrying mark-up at the
rates ranging from 4.2% to 21.00% (2022: 5.9% to 13.75%) per annum. The banks have lien on these term deposit receipts on
account of guarantees provided by such banks as disclosed in note 23.1.1 to the financial statements. These will mature iatest by
June 16, 2024 (2022; Juns 16, 2023).

This represents investment in shares of Lucky Cement Limited a listed company on Pakistan Stock Exchange. Shares acquired
last year and held as at June 30, 2023 are 11,000 al & cost of Rs. 7,133.910. The shares are categorised under fair value through
profit or loss as the Company intends to receive short term profits through trading of shares. The unreatized gain on June 30, 2023
was Rs. 695 280 (2022: unrealized loss of Rs. 2,055,496).

2023 2002
MNote Rupees Rupess
CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash in hand 707,343 1,351,699
Cash at banks
- in current accounts 12.1 5,029 589 A 43T ATT
- in savings account 122 215,581 86,100
5,952,513 5 875,276

This includes an amount of Rs. 6.68 million (2022: Rs. 6.68 million) on which the bank has created fien on account of guarantee
provided by such bank as disclosed in note 23.1.1 to the financial statements.
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UN-CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Year ended June 30, 2023

12.2 It camies markup of 13.5% to 20.5% (2022: 5:5% fo 12.25% ) per annum.

13. SHARE CAPITAL

2023 2022
MNumber of shares
Authornised
22,000,000 22 000,000 Ocdinary shares of Rs. 10/- each

Issued, subscribed and paid-up

Ordinary shares of Rs_ 10/ each fully

19,852,800 19,852,800 paid in cash

T

2023 2022
Rupees Rupees
220,000,000 220,000,000
188,528,000 188,528,000

13.1 The Company has one class of ordinary share, which camy egqual voting rights but no right to fixed income. Voting rights, board

selection efc. are in proportion to their shareholding.

14. SURPLUS ON REVAL UATION OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT - net of tax

As at July 1,

Less: transferred to unappropriated profit en account of-

- incremental depreciation - net of tax
- related deferred tax linbility

As at June 30

Less: miated deferred tax iability onc

Revaluation surplus az at July 1,
Adjusiment due to change in tax rate
Incremental depreciation charged during the year

As at June 30

15. LONG-TERM FINANCE

Long term portion

Financial mstitutions
Related parties

Current portion
Financial mstitutions
Related parties

18

18

131
152

131
152

2023 2022
Rupces Rupees
1,036,250,427  1,004.962 264
(53,968,778) (47 491.829)
{8,922 569) (11,220,008)
(62,891,347) (58,711,837)
973,359,080  1,0356.250427
153,759,903 184,242 506
(39,602,265) (18,262 595)
(8,922,569) (11,220.008)
105,235,069 153,759,903
868,124,011 882,490,524
693,818,843 173,058 675
35,133,985 41461793
728,952, 828 214,521 468
128365121 88,583,953
42 140 486 55278 076
170,505,607 143 862,034
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UN-CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year ended June 30, 2023

The loan is secured by way of first par passu charge over Compact Spinning, imported Gen set and locally purchased
carding machines with 0% to 25% margin.

The loan is utifized for renewable energy installation in the factory. The loan is secured against 1st exclusive charge over
imporied assels of solar equipment.

The loan is secured by way of first exclusive and specific hypothecation charge over imporied machinery of the Company
(Compact Spinning Assembiy) with 0% margin.

The loan is for finrancing salaries and wages under SBPF Refinance Scheme. The loan is secured against existing land and
building and plant and machinery of the Company with 25% margin. The loan is fully repaid as at 30 June 2023.

The loan is obiained to mest the capilal expenditure requirement of the Company. The loan s secured by way of firsi
exclusive and specific hypothecation charge over imporied machinery of the Company

The Company has entered into a Temporary Economic Refinance Facility (TERF) agreement with an islamic bank and
conventional banks, with the fotal fimit aggregating to Rs. 537.5 million (2022 537.5 million). This incledes Rs.150 million
being the sub-facility under the letler of credit facility agreement amounting to Rs. 157 million with the islamic bank. The
unavailed facility as at year end was Rs. 0.B7 million (2022 373 2). These faciliies carry mark up of SBP Base Rate + 4%
(2022 SBP Base Rate + 4% ). The tenure of these faciliies ranges from 5 1o 10 years with grace peniod up o 2 years. These
faciliies are secured against vanous assels including exclusive charge over imported machinery, first par passu charge over
land & building, hypothecation charge over specific equipment and machinery, and also the personal guaraniee of all the
directors and mortgagors of the Company.

The ioan is secured by way of first exclusive charge of PKR 134 million over specific machinery with 25% margin:
The loan s secured by way of first pan passu charge with 0% to 25% margin.

The loan is secured against 1st specific charge over imported plant and machinery for PKR 125 million, and by way of first
par passu charge with 0% to 25% margin.

The loan is secured against 1st specifiic charge over importied plant and machinery for PEKR 3263 million

15.1.10 These represent plant and machinery and vehicles acquired under musharaka armangement. The rates of mark-up ranges
from 14.5% to 22 14%._
2023 2022
Noto Rupees Rupees
15.2 Loan from related parties - unsccured
Opening as at July 01, 96,735,869 88,821,737
Recsipts during the year 1.450,000 -
Repayments during the year 1522 {6,746, 28E) (2,000,000}
Unwinding of discount 28 11,817,123 5918132
Less: Fair value adjustment (25,986,235} -
Tr.2r447 Of 739,869
Payable within one year 15 (42,140, 4BE) (55, 278.076)
Closing as at June 30, 35,133,985 41 461,753
15.21 S.No Designation Date of agreement Loan Prosent Value Fair value
1 Director 3-Jun-23 800,000 385,802 414 1898
2 DirectorfCED 30-Jun-23 25,380,000 12,244 ADG 13,145 504
3 Director 4 Jun-23 14, 3586 D00 6,923 7225 T 432775
4 Sponsor 4-Jun-23 8,165,000 3,952 064 4242 036
5 Director I-Jan-23 1,450,000 699 267 750,733
50,191,000 24 204,765 25,986,235
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UN-CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year ended June 30, 2023

15.2.2 During the year. the Company has repaid loan amounting to Rs. 6.746 million o directors and their close family members.

16.

16.1

17.

174

As at June 30, 2023, the loans. received from directors are due to be paid as follows, uniess otherwise the terms of
repayment are further extended:

Due Date Loan Present
received value
Rupees Rupees
December 08, 2023 45,000,000 42 140,436
December 16, 2024 12,148,312 11,151,378
June 30, 2027 50,191,000 23,982,607

107,339,312 77,274 AT1

2023 2022
Note Rupees Rupees
LEASE LIABILITY
Present value of minimum lease payments 161 1,962,284 9,729,346
Less: current portion shown under current liabifiies {1,962 284) (7,767 ,062)
- 1962 284

These represent plant and machinery and vehicles acquired under leases from leasing companies and financial institutions.
Fulure minimum lease paymenis under lease together with the present value of the net minimum |lease payments are as
follows:

2023 2022
Future Future
minimum Finance Present MHnEmLm Finance
lease cost value lzase cost ' =
payments payments
Rupees
Not later than one year 2,119,304 157.020 1.982 284 B.536, 294 68,232 T, 767,062
Later than one year but not
later than five years - - - 2,081 437 129 153 1,862 284
Total future mini I
s TRV W 2,119,304 157,020 1962284 10,626,731 897,385 9,729,346

payments

The rates of mark-up ranges from 17.29% to 24 .91% (2022 16.49% to 22.99%) per annum and are used as discounting
factor. The lease terms are upio 3 years. The Company intends to exercise its option to purchase the leased assets upon
completion of the lease perod. Liabiliies sre secured against leased assets, demand promissory notes and security
deposits,

2023 2022
Mote Rupees Rupess
DEFERRED GOVERNMENT GRANT
Deferred grant against temporary economic refinance facility 133,506,454 40 558 628
Current portion of deferred government grant {29,771,093) (5,257,384)

103,735,361 44 261,234

Deferred government grant relates to the difference between the Fair value and actual proceed of temporary economic
refinance facility loan obtzined under SBP's refinance scheme. If s being amortised over the penod of ten years from the
date of loan disbursement with an amount equal to the difference between the finance cost charged that would have been
chamed to statement of profit or loss at market rate and the interest paid as per the scheme.
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UN-CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year ended June 30, 2023

DEFERRED TAXATION - NET

Balance as al July 1,

Reversal to profit or loss

Staff gratuity charged Io other comprehensive income (OC1)
Tax rate adjustment on surplus (routed through OCT)

Balance as al June 30,

This compnses of the following:

Taxable lemporary differences:

- aocelerated depreciation on property, plant and equipment
- surplus on revaluation of property, plant and eguipmenl

Deductible temporary differences:

- provision for doubtful irade debi=

- provision for slores and spares

- provision for doubtful other receivables
- provision for staff gratuity

= minimum tax

- WWE Liability

- Other financial asset

RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATION

At
Head office

Retirement benefit obligation - defined benefit plan

31

14

102
19.10

T

2023 2022
Rupees Rupess
229,182,802 252 700,211
(17,214,428) (3,969 918)
(1,166,633) (284 BOG)
(39,602,265) (19,262 595)
171,199,476 229 182 802
97305972 130,878,597
105,235,069 153 759,903
202,541,048 284,736,500
1,904 525 2372048
1,100,260 1,470,656
846 887 922 007
11,176,043 11,492,847
12,291 464 34 204 334
3,650,024 4 690,738
282,369 392,068
(31.341,572) (55,553,608)
171,199,476 279,182 802
78522743 549,891 088
252372 252 372
78,775,115 £0,143.460

The Projected Unit Credit Method based on following significant assumplions was used for valuation of the scheme. The
basis of recognition together with details as per actuarial valuation conducted as al June 30, 2023 are as under:

The principal assumptions used are as follows:
- Discount rale
- Expected rate of salary increase

- Mortality rale

Liability recognized in the statement of fimancial position

Present value of retirement benefit obligation (RBO)

193

2023

16.25%

15.25%

year

2023
Rupees

78,522,743

2022

13.25%

12 25%

SLIC 2001-2005 SLIC 2001-2005

set back one sal back one

year

2022
Rupees

59,891,088
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UN-CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year ended June 30, 2023

Movement in Refirement benefit obligation (RBO)
during the year

Balance asz at July 1,

Expense recognized in profit or loss

Total remeasurements recognized in other comprehensive incomea
Benefits paid

Benefits due but not yet paid

Expense recognized in profit or loss

Current service cosl
Interest cost

Total remeasurements recognized in
other comprehensive income

Actuarial gain on liability ansing on

- financial assumptions
- expenence adjustments

Sensitivity analysis

Note

194
195

204

T

2023 2022
Rupees Rupees
59,891,088 54 680,081
24,691,262 19,765,793
4,022,874 982 374
(6,218,600) (13,197 ,160)
(3,863,881) (2,340,000)
78,522,743 59,891,088
17,423,657 15,074,643
7,267,605 4,691,150
24,691,262 19,765,793
650,596 566 441
3372278 415833
4,022,874 982,374

The senositivity analyses below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions

occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant

Current year

Discount rate
Salary growth rate

Prior year

Dscount rate
Salary growth rate
The gratuity scheme exposes the Company to the following risks:

Change in

assumption

1%
1%

Change in
assumpion

1%
1%

increase [ (decrease) in defined

benefit obligation due to
Increase in Decrease in
assumption assumption
Rupees Rupees
(4,574,629) 4,040,522
4,758,369 (4,279,034)

Increase [ (decrease) in defined

benefit obligation due to

Incraase in Decrease in
assumpion assumpiion
Rupees Rupees
{3,183,543) 3,620,844
3,768,227 (3,374.,901)

Longevity risks: The risk anzes when the actual lifetime of refirees s longer than expectation. This risk s measured at the

plan level over the antire retiree population.

Salary increase risk: The most common type of retiement benefit is one where the benefit is linked with final zalary. The rizk
anses when the actual increases are higher than expectation and impacts the liebility accordingly.

Withdrawal riskc The nsk of ectual withdrawals varying with the actoanal assumptions can impose 8 nisk to the defined

banefit obligation. The movement of the liability can go either way,
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20.3
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UN-CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Year ended June 30, 2023

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation as at June 30, 2023 is b years (2022: G years).

Number of employees covered by the scheme are 727 (2022 T33).

This amount relates to the unfunded gratuity scheme for the head office staff which has been freezed since 2002, as per the

Company policy.
2023 2022
Note Rupeces Rupees
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Creditors 201 78,620,482 104,646.065
Accrued habilities 137,470,025 69,030,738
Contract liabilities 189,026,671 259420029
Woorkers' profit parficipation fund 202 . 28,773,840
Workers" welfare fund 25,729,586 24 437 816
Infrastruciure cess 20.3 141,343,416 104,121,092
Payable 1o provident fund 605,419 458,574
Withholding tsx payable 16,193,935 16.411,356
588,989,534 607,345,650
Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normailly settied on 50-days term.
2023 2022
Note Rupeces Rupees
Workers' profit participation fund
Balance as at July 1, 28,773,940 12,275,733
Allocation during the year 28 - 28,773.840
Interest on funds ulilized in Company's business 28 1,756,823 299 326
30,530,763 41,34589053
Paid during the year {30,530,763) (12,575,053)
Balance as at June 30, - 28773840

The Government of Sindh through Sindh Finance Act, 1994 provided for imposition of an infrastructure fee for the
development and maintenance of infrastructure on goods entering or leaving the Provinoe throogh air or sea at prescribed
rates. The levy was challenged by the Company along with other companies in the High Court of Sindh through civil suits
which were dismissed by the single judge of the High Court of Sindh through its decision in Oclober 2003. On appeal filed
ihere against, the High Gourl of Sindh has held through an order passed in September 2008 that the levy as imposed
through the Sindh Finance Acl, 1984 {amended time to time) was not valid till December 28, 2006, however, thereafter cn
account of an amendment in the Sindh Finance (Amendment) Ordinance, 2006, it had become valid and is payable by the
Appefiants. The Company, along with other companies, fied an appeal in the Supreme Court of Pakistan against the
aforementioned order of the High Court of Sindh. The Supreme Court granted stay by passing an interim order on January
22 2009 The order passed by the High Court of Sindh was set aside by the Supreme Couort vide its order dated May 20,
2011 Consequently, a new pebiion has been filed in the High Court of Sindh. Through the interim order passed on May 31,
2011, the High Courl has ordered that for every consignment cleared afier December 28, 2008, 50% of the value of
infrastructure fee shoukd be paid in cash and a bank guaranitee for the remaining amount should be submitted until the final
omder s passed. Refer noles 12 & 23.

Dn April 06, 2021, the High Court of Sindh vide order C.FP.No D-3309 / 2011, summaoned to encash all the bank guarantees
furnished by the petiioners. The SHC issued this order reasoning that the entire cargo being imporied in the Country routes
through the Province of Sindh, and for that the Provincial Legislature thought it appropriate to impose a cerfain amount of fax
in the form of a cess. It is though being collecied from an imporier of goods; but in essence it is not on imports; bul for
mainterance and development of infrastructure on imported goods. However, during the year, the Supreme Court of
Pakistan vide ils order daled September 01, 2021, suspended the onder issued by SHC stiating that it suffers from
constitufional and legal defects and granted the interim refief to the Company and other petitioners. The order issued by the
Supreme Courl of Pakistan siates that the pefiboners shall keep the bank guarantees already submitted pursuant io the
earlier order of SHC and. shall fumish the fresh bank guarantess eguivalent to the amount of levy claimed by the Sindh
Govemnment against release of all future consignments of imported goods.
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UN-CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Year ended June 30, 2023

T

The Management is confidenl for a favorable outcome. However, as a matter of prudence, the Company has made

provision as follows:
2023 2022
MNote Rupees Rupees
Balance as al July 1, 104,121,092 73,680,135
Charge for the year 37222324 34 548 641
141,343,416 108,228,776
Payments made during the year - (4,107 684}
Batance as al June 30, 141,343,416 104,121,092
ACCRUED MARK-UP
Long-term finance 22,476,597 3,030,069
Short-term borrowinags 69,728.423 23,293 527
92,205,020 26,323 596
SHORT-TERM BEORROWINGS
Banking companies - secured
Running finance 441, 277,552 199 352 132
Cash finance 230,082,741 94,728 455
Finance against Imported Merchandise (FIM) B40.071,672 588,968 539
221 1,511,431,965 883,049.126

Facilities for running finance, cash finance, FIM and Murabaha are available from various banks up o Rs. 2,825 million
(2022: Rs.. 2 682 million). These facilities are subject io mark-up at 3 month KIBOR plus 1% to 5% (2022: 3 month KIBOR
plus 1% o 2.5%) per annum payable quarlerdy. These are secured againsl various assets including first par passu
hypotheeation chame over present and future stock-in-trade, pledge of cotion, first hypothecation charge over present and
futlure book debts, ranking charge on the stocks and receivables of the company. plants and machinery, equitable morigage
on various propertes and personal guarantees of all the directors of the Company.

The aggregate unavailed short-term borrowing facifities amounted to Rs.1,314 miliion (2022: Rs. 1,792 million).

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Contingencies
2023 2022
Letters of guarantee issued by banks on behalf of the Company to: Rupees Rupees
- Lahore Electric Supply Company Limited 34,095,568 15,310,588
- Sui Northern Gas Pipelines Limited 74,000,000 FT.576.000
- Excise and Taxation Office 139,558,660 103,258,600
Post dated cheques given to Collector of Customs as indemnity 880,158,170 380,853 295

In August 2013, the Oil and Gas Regulatory Authority (OGRA) vide its S.R.O. # 726(1)/2015 notified the sale price for sale of
natural gas at Rs. 573.28/MMBTU for captive power consumption (CPP) with immediate effect Subseguent lo the said
S.R.O., the Company received gas bills at Rs. 57328/MMBTU, being considered as CPP by the ulility company: The
Company, considenng itself as industnal consumer paid gas charges at the rate applicable before August 2013 on the basis
af the stay order obtained from the Court.
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UN-CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Year ended June 30, 2023
Subsequentty, on Septamber 1, 2015, OGRA wvide ts S R.O. & 876{12015 notifiad the pnoe for sale of natural gas at Rs: G00MMMBTU
for indusinal consumers and on capiive power consumption, with coffect from September 1, 2015 Aggricved by the nofification, the
Company filad a suit in tha Lahore High Court contending that the mandatory procedures as faid down in the OGRA Ordinanco, 20062
and Rules mada thercunder ware not fulfilled while issuing the nobfication. Hence, the Company paid [ accrued gas charges al rates
applicable before the above S.R.O. # 726{1Y2015 an tha basis of siay orders oblained from Lahore High Court, Multan bench, from time
o time, until November 2015,

From December 2015, the gas company has siartod supplying imported Liqueficd Natural Gas (LNG) resulting in the change in rates
over which no dispute has been rased by the Company.

On July B, 2020, the OGRA |ssued a decision whereby, the Company {the petiioner) was directed o pay the cutstanding amount o the
utility company within 30 day period from the date of decision. In response to the above decision, 3 writ pefition was filed before the
honourabbe Lahore High Court (LHGC) by the Company and the LHC issued a stay order on Oclober 8, 2020, which suspended the
OGRA's decision, however, the case is still pending before LHC.

The Federal Governmant issued Gas Infrastructure Development Cess (GIDC) Acts in the years 2011, 2014 and 2015. All GIDC Acts
have boon. subject of thorough debate and consideration at honorable High Courts of the Couniry as well as the Suprame Cowrt of
Pakistan (SCP).

On Avgust 12, 2020, the SCP issued iis verdict (Judgement) and held that “the levy imposed under Gas Infrastructure Development
Cess Act, 2015 (the Act) is in accordance with the Provisions of the Constitulion™. The Supreme Court has also held that “the Provisions
of section 8 of tha Act, which give retrospecfive affect fo the charge and recovery of GIDC ievied from the year 2011 ane also declared fo
b vatid being within the legislaiive competonce of the Parfiament.” However, since the Comparny is an industrial concom and it did not
pass on the burden of GIDC to its consumers prior to the GIDC Act, 2015 (or even thereafter), management befieves that tho Company
is entitied o the exemplion under the first proviso to Section 8(2) of the GIDC Act, 2015 from payment of the GICC levied under the
GIDC Act, 2011 and GIDC Ordinance, 2014. As such, amears due from the Company may only include amounts levied under the GIDC
Act, 20115 from the date of its commencement, .o, May 22_2015.

Subsaquent fo the Order passed by tho Honorable SCP on August 12, 2020, Sui Northem Gas Pipelines Limited (SNGPL) submitted
bills to the industry ncfuding the Company claiming armesrs of first instaiment in deference to the said Judgement of the SCP. As the
bills of arrears were calculated for monthly instalment on the basis of antire total payable amount from 2011 to July 2020 by charnging
Cess on the higher rate of tanff applicable to Capive Connections apart from the fact that the implication of Section 8 of the said Act,
2015 was not taken into consideration whereby it was provided that the industry, which has not collected the Cess from the Custorners
prior to 2015 shall not be habie to the payment of GIDC for the sad penod from 2011 1o 2015, Dunng the year, a writ pefition No. 42176
{ 2020 was filed by All Pakistan Textiie Mills Association {APTMA) (whore the Company is also a party to tho petition) before Honorabie
High Court at Lahore against imposition of GIDC Act 2015 and the recovery of Cess from Decomber 2011 o May 2015. Further, during
the year, SMNGEPL started biling for GIDC to the Company against which payment was made by the Company il March 2021 based an
the order issued by Honorable Lahore High Court against the aforementioned wit petition. Pursuant to the order, Lahore High Court
restrainod SNGPL from charging the Cess at the higher tarff rate of Captive Connection and directed to issue revised bill calculated at
tho rate applcable to industrial connection. Besides. the payment for the perod from 2011 te 2015 was also suspended in viow of tho
impfication of the said provision of faw. Further, the Company made payment which = applicable to indusinal consumers and for the
difference between the amount charged to industrial consumers and captive power consumors, post-dated chogues are being issued by
the Company in favour of SNGPL. For the amount refating to the payment of GIDC based on the actual calculation prior to 2015, the
decision was made by the Lahore High Court on June 27, 2021 whareby it has restrained the SNGPL to collect the cess prior to 2015,

On Septomber 27, 2021, the Honorable Lahore High Court issued a judgment onowni petition Mo, 42716 / 2020 whereby it was
concluded that all the parties to the pofition (including the Company) fall under the category of Industrial Consumers rather than Captive
Power Plant and shall remain liable to the tarifT applicablo 1o Industrial Consumeers,

During the year, the Company filed an appeal bafore the Honorable High Court of Sindh on the ground that no burden of GIDC had been
passed to s customers [/ clients and thus the Company is not Bable to pay GIDC under GIDC Act 2015. The Court granted stay order
against recovery of GIDG payable by the Company till the finalization of matter by Sindh High Court: The matter is eurently pending n
the Sindh High Couwt Howowver, as a matter of abundant caution and without projudice to the sults filed, the Company has made
angrogate provision of Rs. 5.4 million (2022: Rs. 5.4 million) in raspect of GIDC up to June 30, H)23.

An order dated November 11, 2020 was passed agamnst the Company by Collector of Customs, Karachl creating a demand of Rs.
13.023 million along with a ponaity of Rz, 0.5 million. The Company has chalienged the above order by way of filing an appeal bafore tha
Customs Appeffate Tribunal at Karachi, which is pending for final adjudication. However, a stay order was successfully obtained from
Honourable Sindh High Court on December 22, 2020 by filing Consfitutional Petifion number 6618 / 2020, which is still operative.

In current and previous years, several cases filed against the Company before vanous court of law / tax forums, the amount of wiich
cannot ba determined. The managoment, based on the opinion of ifs legal counsel, expect that the outcome of all those casos will ba in
favor of the Company, as they have a reasonable defense in the cases filed. Acchrdingly, no provision has been made in these
unconsofidatad financial statement.
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UN-CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Year ended June 30, 2023

Commilmenls

Leliers of credil opened and oulstanding for impor of:

plant and machinery
slores and spares
rinw roatomial

Local bills discounted

Revenue from contract with customer - net

Yarm
- Local
- Expart
- Indirect expaort

Haome Textihe
- Loeal
- Expaort

Raw material - Local (Trading)
Wasle - Locat

Loss:
Salos tax

Brokerage and cOmMmssion
Discount

COST OF SALES

Raw material consumed

Salaries, wages and bencfils

Fuel and power

Deprociation

Slores, spares and locse tools consumed
Packing malorkal

Insurance

Repairs and mamienance

Provasion of slow moving store & spare
Vehicles runming and mamionancs

Other manufacturing overheasds

Cpening slock
Closing siock

Cosl of goods manufaciured

Finished goods
Opening stock
Yarn purchasod
Yarn Transfored o Home Textile

Closing siock

Cost of Home Textilo
Cost of raw malerial sold

231
252

4.2

2023 2022
Rupeoes Rupees
28,609 191 665 256 522
9,629,233 30,067,092
695,126,790 581,096 452
214,897,633 292,314,555
1,739.336,498 1474315047
814,716,140 946 120 335
1,781,233,061 3,033 B19.964
4 335 265600 5,454 264 346
B30.697
B4 479 818 x
B5.310,515 -
50,680,596 191,348 293
343,032 489 290 228 814
4,814 309 239 5.935 841 453
{600,595 598) (738,665,360)
{13,545,673) {31.004,939)
{27.091) -
4.200,140,937 5466171154
2,846,955,5T4 3466, 763,979
225 014,31 203 528 270
506, 566,345 488 123,680
94 572 910 93,527 805
50,851,122 50,344 788
56,533,868 62,188 408
10,906,433 10,772 496
3.652.309 ‘2,956 441
- 1,368,356
5,276,941 2,696,067
3,660,354 3,406,336
1,047 034,652 27 953 681
3.893,990.225 4384 717 660
56,022 198 41,992 838
{76,496 220) {56,022, 198)
{20, 474,022) (14,029,360)
3.873.516,203 4 380,688,300
264 126,222 106,757 831
17,117 578 38,150,500
{14.104.500) -
(460,111,663} (264,126 222)
(192,971,963) (119.217.891)
62,213,961 -
37,236,621 106, 160,346
3,779.984,822 4 367 630,755
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UN-CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Year ended June 30, 2023

Raw material consumed

Dpening stock
FPurchases - net

Closing stock

2023 2022
Rupees Rupess
787,024,122 785,996,519
2,786.191.135 3467791582
3,573,215,257  4,253,788,101
(726,259,683) (7E7.024,122)
2,846,955574  3.466,763,979

Salaries, wages and benefits include Rs. 24.69 million (2022: Rs. 19.77 million) in respect of charge for retirement benefit

obligations.

DISTRIBUTION COST

Freight and octro

Commission and other charges
Cleanng and forwarding
Business promotion expenses
Export development surcharge

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries and bensfits

Fees, subscription and periodicals
Entertainment

Traveling and conveyance
Postage and teiephone

Eleciricity, gas and water

Vehicles running and maintenance
Depreciation

Expected credst loss - trade receivable
Expected cred:t loss - other receivable

Legal and professional
Auoditor's remuneration
Primting and stationery
Computer
Adverisement
Donation

Others

21

432
82

272

273

2023 2022
Rupees Rupees
20,796,170 22,231,803

3,897,918 4,055 662

5.247.415 4985937

9,876,207 12715671

2,677,856 1,876,020
42,495 566 45,848,895
69,314,953 &0, 182 9448

4,491,538 4812716

1,262,374 861,579

418,498 437 208

1,600,129 1.429.310

1,280,706 990,532

9,227,638 B.358167
12,670,181 11,766 486

1,645333 -

1,144 367 -

170,000 527 858
1,641,000 1.541,000
1345129 F9077

187,980 74,520

190,500 146,900
5,093,000 4,382,000

430,958 349309

112,114,284 96,757,796

Salaries and benefits include Rs. 2.02 million (2022: Rs. 1.80 million) in respect of chamge for employer's contnbution to

provident fund.
Auditors' remuneration

Audit Services
Annual audit fee

Consolidation fee
Haif year review fee

Review of code of corporaie govermance

Cut of pocket expenses

2023 2022
Rupees Rupees

1,050,000 50,000
250,000 250,000
175,000 175,000
55,000 55,000
55,000 55,000
56,000 56,000
1,641,000 1,541,000

51
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UN-CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Year ended June 30, 2023

T

MNo director or their spouse had any interest in the donees’ fund. Dunng the year, the Company has donated Rs. 1.55

million (2022 Rs. 1.55 million) to The Citizens Foundation.

FINANCE COST

Mark-up on long term finance

Mark-up on short-term bormowings

Interest on lease liability

Umsnding of discount on long-term finance from related parties
Workers' profit paricipation fund

Hank charges, guarantee commission and other related charoes

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Workers' profit participation fund
Workers" weifare fund

Infrastruciure cess

Unreglized loss on other financial assets
Other

OTHER INCOME

Income from financial assets

Profil on deposits with bank

Exchange gain - nel

Unrealsed gain

Unwinding of discount on other receivables
Unrealized Gain on other financial assels

Income from non-financial assets

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Scrap sales

Other revenue

Contract setffement

MNote

152
202

202

203

2023 2022

Rupees Rupees
6,847,546 7774821
276,986,541 146,168,030
968,661 1,676,785
11,817,123 8,918,132
1,756,823 249 326
8,487,752 8,553,167
306,864,446 174,390,261
- 28,773.940
1,291,770 5,826,157
37,222,324 30440957
- 2,055,406
- 267,000
38,514,094 67,393,550
18,291,881 5,521,448
15,149,992 13,710,169

3,024,315 -

- 6401253
698,290 -
37,164 478 25,632,870

7,178,050 1,233,155
517,160 G677 499
462 366 160,274

- 108,999,076
8,157,576 112,070,004
45,322,054 137,702,874

In year ended June 30, 2022, cerain supplers defaulted on the cotton supply confract due lo increase in coltton prices n
the international market whereas the contracts were made at a significantty lower price. Upon such defaull, the Company
nagotiated with the suppliers and as a result the suppliers agreed to pay damages to the Company.

TAXATION

Current
- for the year
- prior year

Deferred

MNote

3.3

18

2023 2022
Rupees Rupees
46,507,601 125,193,345
(51,319,407) (1,377,511}

{4.811,8086) 123,815,834
(17.214,414) (3,969,918)
(22,026,220) 119,845,916
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UN-CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Year ended June 30, 2023

2023 2022
Rupees Rupoes

111 Relationship between tax expense and accounting profit
Profit before taxation (34,520,221) 551852771
Tax rate % 29% 29%
Tax on accounting profit (10,010,864) 160,037,304
Prior year tax adjustments {51,319.407) (1.377.511)
Pormanant differences 4,903,936 4147038
Impact of FTR income 44 152 419 (44.151,929)
Impact of tax credit on donabions (1,476,97T0) (581,060)
Adjustmont of effective rale (7,658,148) (12.058,147)
Impact of utiksation of Minimum Tax cradits under Saction 113 = (28.021.331)
Impact of supor tax - 42 202831
Cthors (617,185} (351.279)

(22,026.219) 119,845 916
31.2 Subsequent 1o the amendment of section 5(A) of the Income tax Ordinance, 2001, tax at the applicable rale shall be
imposed on every public company which derives profit for the year. Howaver, this tax shall not apply in case of a company
which distnbutos at least specified percentage of after tax profits within six months of the and of the tax year in tha form of
cash dividend. In 2019, the Company had obtained stay order from Sindh High Couwrt (SHC) in respect of application of such
ciausie. During the year, SHC has passed an order and sel aside show cause [ demand notices seeking enforcement of
sochan SiA).

31.3 During 2022, the Govarnmenl of Pakistan, through Finance Act. 2022 introduced section 4C in the Income Tax Ordinance,
2011 through which super lax was levied on high eamings persons (inciuding tho Company). The ax s appihcable at
differeni rates on all persens (including the Company) earnming more than Rs. 150 million. Further, enfiies oparating in
varous sectors, including textile sector, and saming more than Rs. 300 million are liable to super tax at 10% (for tax year
2022) of income as-specified in the Act. Accordingly, the Company had made a provision of Rs. 422 millhion on account of
supor tax during year ended Juno 30, 2022
On Decembar 22, 2022, the Sindh High Court {(SHC) issued an order declaring that section 4C shall nol be applicable for TY
2022 and would apply from TY 2023 (Le., financal year ending June 30, 2023). However, the SHC had suspended the
operabon of the judgement for a penod of sixty days. On February 16, 2023, the Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan
(SCP) through an interim order direcled to pay super tax 1o the cxtent of 4% for tax year 2022, Accordingly, tho Compsany
paid parl of liability imposed o the extont of 4% super tax and has revisod its provision for the super tax to be kepl at 4% on
the taxable income for the year ended June 30, 2022

3z, EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED
There s no dilutive effiect on the basic loss | camings per share of the Company which is based on:
2023 2022
(Loss) / profit for the year Rupees {12,494 001) 432 DO6.,B55
Werghted averago number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the year 13 19 852 800 19 852 800
(Loss) / oamings per share Rupees | Share 0.63 2176
2023 2022
33. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS Note Rupees Rupecs
Cash and bank balances 12 5,952,513 5.875.276
Short-term borrowings 22 (441,277,552) (199,352,132)
(435,325,039) {193 476 856)
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UN-CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year ended June 30, 2023

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

The total and average number of employees during the year and as at June 30, 2023 and 2022 respectively are as follows:

2023 2022
Total number of employess of the Company as al reporting date 768 T
Average number of employees of the Company during the year T4 786
Employee's working in Company’s factory as at reporting date 727 T3
Average number of employees working in Company's factory during the year 674 74T

PROVIDENT FUND

The investments out of provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of Section 218 of the Companies

Act, 2017 and the condiions specified thereunder.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
Financial assets as per statement of financial position

At fair value through profit or loss
Other financial assels
At amortised cost
Security deposits
Trade debi=
Loans and advances
Other receivables

Other financial assels
Cash and bank balances

Financial liabilities as per statement of financial position

At amortized cost

Long-term finance

- from banking companies
- from related parties
Lease liabilty

Trade and other payables
Unclaimed dividend
Mark-up accrued
Short-term borrowings

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

2023 2022

Rupees Rupees
5,742,990 5073414
2,898,681 3,129,361
655,583,419 T68.563,631
207,000 B33 481
31,328,731 27,741,677
174,372,670 129,304 520
5,952,513 5,875,276
876,686,004 940,616,460
822,183,964 261,643,633
TT,27T4.4T1 896,739,863
1,962,284 9,729,346
216,695,926 174,185,377
2,750,372 2.899.903
92,205,020 26,323 596
1,511,431,965 8H3.049,126
2,724 504 002 1,454 570 850

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and owversight of the Company's. financial nsk
management. To assist the Board in discharging its oversight responsibility, management has been made responsible for
identifying, monitoring and managing the Company's financial risk exposures. The Company has exposure to the following

nisks from its use of financial instruments:
- Credit risk

- Liguidity risk

- Market risk

b5
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40.1.2

40.1.3

UN-CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year ended June 30, 2023

Credit risk

Credit risk is the nisk that one party to a financial instrumeant will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the other party to
incur-a financial loss, without taking inlo account the fair value of any colisteral. Concontration of credit risk arses when-a
number of financial instruments or contracts are entered into with the same parly, or when counter pariies are engaged in
simitar business aclivifies, or aclivities in the same geographic region, or have similar economic features that would cause
thair ability to- moot contractial obligations to bo simitarly affocted by changes in economic, political or other conditions.
Concentrations of credit rnsk indicate the relafive sensitivity of the Company’s perfformance o developments affecting a
particular imdustry.

Credit risk of the Company anses principally from the trade debis, loans and advancos, othor financial assetfs, othor
recaivables and bank balances. The camying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit expesure. The
maximum exposurae io credit risk at the reporting date is as follows:

2023 2022
Note Rupees Rupees
Security deposits 2,898,681 3,129,361
Trado dabls 40.1.1 655,583,419 768,563,601
Loans and advances 4012 807,000 833 481
Other receivables 31,3287 2T 741677
Other financiat assets 40.1.3 174,372,670 129,394 620
Bank balances 40.1.3 3,245,170 4.523,57T7
B7T0,235,67T1 934 186,347

Trade dabts

The trade debis at year ond aro due from local and foreign customers against local sales and export sales respoectivoby
Trade debt due from foreign customers are secured against letter of credil. For local customers management assesses the
credit quality of customers, taking into account their financial position, past exponience and other factors. The Company’s
exposure to credit sk arising from trade debtors i mainly influenced by the individual characteristics of each customer. The
Company has no major concentration of credit risk with any single customer. The Company establishes an allowance for
impairment that represents fifelime oxpected credit losses (ECL) based on analysis of recovery patiem and adjustment of
trade dobts socured against letter of credils.

Leoans and advances

These include loarns and advances given primarily to employeos against salarios, which will be adjusted against their futune
salarnies or in case of resignation against thoir post retirement benefit balances.

Other financial assets and balances with banks

The Company deposits its Tunds and invests in term deposit receipts (other financial asseis) with banks carrying good credit
standings assessed by reputable credit agencies. Theso banks are credit rated as follows:

Bank Name Date of Rating Rating Agency Short term Lang term
Bank Al-Falah Limited 24-Jun-23 PACRA AT Abe
Samba Bank Limitod 26-Jun-23 VIS Al AR
Dubai islamic Bank Pakistan Limited 26-Jun-23 VIS Al AR
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited 23-Jun-23 PACRA Al Abye
The Bank of Punjab 26-Jun-23 PACRA Al Ad
MCE Islamic Bank Limited Z3-Jun-23 PACRA Al A
Mational Bank of Pakistan 23-Jun-23 PACRA Al ABS,
Silk bank Limited 16-Jun-23 VIS A2 A
Bank Islami Pakistan Limited 24-Jun-23 PACRA Al A
Sindh Bank Limited 27-Jun-23 VIS Al A
Meeczan Bank Limitod 27=lun-Z23 VIS AT AAs,
J.5 Bank Limited 23-Jun-23 PACRA Al Ad-
Habib Bank Limited 27-Jun-23 VIS Al ABA
Bank Al-Habib Limited 23-Jun-23 PACRA Al ABS,
Soneri Bank Limited 23-Jun-23 PACRA AT Ad.
Askar 23-Jun-23 PACRA LA Al
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40.3.2

UN-CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year ended June 30, 2023

Liquidity risk

Liguidity nisk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities that
are settled by delivering cash or ancther financial asset. Liguidity risk arises because of the possibility that the Company
could be required to pay its liabilities earifier than expected or would have difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments
associated with financial liabiliies as they fall due. The Company's approach to managing fiquidity is to ensure, as far as
possible, that it will always have sufficient liguidity to meet its liabilities when due without incurring unaccepiable losses or
risking damage io the Company's reputation. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash and bank
balances and availabiiity of financinl through banking arrangements.

The following are the contraciual maturifies of financial fabilibes, including interest payments:

2023
Carrying Contractual Maturity upto Maturity after
amount maturities one year one year
Rupaes
Long-term finance
- from related parties 77,274,471 107,339,312 42,140,486 65,198,826
- from banking company 822,183,964 1,118,803,062 238,202,116 880,600,946
Lease liability 1,962,284 2119304 2,119,304 -
Trade and other payables 216,695926 216,695,926 216,695,926 e
Unclaimed dividend 2,750,372 2,750,372 2,750,372 .
Markup accrued 92,205,020 92,205,020 92,205,020 -
Short-term borrowings 1,511,431,965 1,511,431,965  1,511,431,965 E
2774504002 3,051,344.961  2,105,545,189 045 799,772
2022
Carmying Contractual Maturity upto Maturity after
amount maturiies one year one year
Rupees
Long-term financing
- from refated parties 96,739 860 112,635,588 55 278,076 57 357522
- from banking company 261643633 352 735037 110,862 578 241,373,361
Lease liability 9729 346 10,661,050 8 317,563 2343 438
Trade and other payables 174,185,377 174 185 377 174 185377 -
Linclaimed dividend 2,890 903 2,888 903 2.893.903
Markup accrued 26,323 596 26.373 508 28,323,506
Short-term barrowings BB3,049,128 843,049,128 883,049,126
1,454,570,850 1,561.990,587  1,260,916217 301,074,370
Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as share price, foreign exchange rates and interest rates will affect
the Company's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The Company is primarily exposed o interest rate

nsk and currency risk.

Price risk

Price risk is the nsk that the far value or the fulure cashflows of a financial Instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market prices {other than those ansing from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors
specific to the mdividual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the

markel. As al June 30, 2023 the company is not exposed to pnce risk.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate nisk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a2 financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market interest rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest mtes relates primarily to the
Company's long-term financing, short-term borrowings, liabilities against assels subject to finance lease, other financial
aszeis and bank baiances in saving account.

LT
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B
UN-CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year ended June 30, 2023

At the reporting date the interest rate risk profile of the Company’s interest-bearing financial instruments is:

Carrying Amount
2023 2022
Rupees Rupees

Fixed rate instruments

Fmancial assets - at amortised cost 174,372,670 129,394 620

Financial liabilities - at amortised cost 527 462 547 287,628 100
Variable rate instruments

Financial assets - at amorlised cost 215,581 86,100

Fimancial liabilities - a1 amortized cost 1,885,390,137 963,533,775

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabiliies at fair valuve through profil or loss: Therefore,
a change in interest rale at the reporting date would nol affect profit or loss.

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

A change of 50 basis poinfs in KIBOR basad financial liabilities al the reporting date would have increased [ (decreased)
equity and profit before tax by Rs. 9.56 million (2022: Rs. 4 .82 milllon). This-analysis assumes that all other variables remain
constant

Currency risk

Foreign currency risk arises mainly where receivables and payables exist due o transactions with foreign undertakings and
bank batances in foreign currency. The Company’s exposure to foreign currency risk is as follows:

2023 2022
Rupoes:
Trade debts 136,441,517 308,726,383
Trade payable 28,609,191 -
A.veragd rate Hﬂpﬂﬂing date rate
2023 2022 2023 2022
Rupees

usD 245.30 177.65 283.73/283.97 203 92067

Al June 30, 2023, if the Pakistani Rupee had weakened / strengthened by 5% against the US Dollar and Euro with all other
vanables held constant. profit before tax for the year would have been lower [ higher by Rs. 530 million (2022- Rs. 154
million), mainly as a resull of foreign exchange losses [ gains on lranstation of US Daollar and Euro - denominated trade debls
and lrade payables.

Capital risk management

The objective of the Company when managing capital is lo safeguard its ability to continue as a going concemn so that il can
continue o provide returns for shareholders and benefils for other siakeholders and to maintain a sfrong capital base o
support the sustained development of iis businesses.

The Company manages its capital structure by monitoring retum on net assets and makes adjustments to it in the light of
changes in economic conditions. n order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of
dividend lo the shareholders or issue bonus [ new shares.
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UN-CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year ended June 30, 2023

During the year, the company's strategy was o maintain leveraged gearing. The gearing ratio as at 30 June 2023 was as
foliows:

2023 2022
Rupees

Tolal Borrowings 2,546,359,138 1,300,720,602
Cash and Bank balances (5,952,513) (5.875276)
Met Debt 2,540,406,625 1,294 845326
Total Equity 2567570973 2517332715
Total Capital 5107,977,598  3.812,178,041
Gearing Ratio 50% 34%

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

{a) Fair valie is the amount for which an assef could be exchanged, or a liability settied, between knowledgeable willing
parties in an arms length transaction.

(b) Fair value estimaltion

The Company discloses the financial instruments measured in the belance sheet ol fair value in accordance with the
following fair valie hierarchy:

- Level 1: Quoled prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assels or liabilities.

- Level 2: Inputs other than guoted prices included within Level 1 that are cbservable for the assel or liability,
either directly (iL.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derved from prices).

- Level 3: Inpuls for the asszel or iability thal are nol based on observable marke! data (unobservable inpuls).

As at June 30, 2023 the Company held the following instruements al fair values:

June 30, 2023
Fair value
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Rupees
Financial assets
measurad at fair
Equity securities - listed 5,742,920 - - 5,742,990
June 30, 2022
Fair value
Leval 1 Leve 2 Level 3 Totai
Rupees
Financial aszeis
measured at fair value
Equity securities - listed 5078414 - - 5,076,414

The carrying values of all financal azsels and liabilities reflected in the financial stalemenis approximale their fair values.
There are no iransiers betwesn the levels during the year

There are no other assets or liabilities to classify under above levels except the Company's land, mill building, Izbour colony,
plant and machinery, electric installations and factory equipment are stated al revalued amounts, being the fair value at the
date of revaluation, less subsequent depreciation and subseguent accumulated impairment losses, if any. The fair value
measurements of these assels carried oul as al June 30, 2021, were performed by Tristar Inlemational Consultanl (Pvl.) Lid.
nol relaled o the Company. The valuer s listed on panel of Pakislan Banks Association and they have appropriate
quaiification and experience in the lair value measuremenl of properties, plani and machinery. Value determined by
mdependent valuer is classified as Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy

5B
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UN-CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year ended June 30, 2023

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
The Group constitutes a single reportable segment since the executive management monitors the operating results of the
entity for the purpose of making decistons aboul resource allocation and performance assessmenl. The entity-wide
disclosures required by IFRS 8 'Operating Segments’ are given below:

(s) Company sales comprise of Terry towels and yam whereby more than 99% sales pertains to Yam.

(b} AsatJune 30, 2022 and June 20, 2023, all non-current assets of the company were located in Pakistan.

(c) Significant sales are made by company in the follwing countries:

2023 2022
Rupees
Pakistan 3,303,202,504 4.276.670.992
China 812,458,615 932 847 592
Other countnies 84,479 818 6,652 570
420,140,837 _ 5,166,171,154

CORRESPONDING FIGURES

In these unconsolidated financial statements, the corresponding figures have been rearmanged and reciassified, wherever
considered necessary for the purposes of companzon and better presentation.

DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements were authorized for issue on October 03, 2023 by the Board of Directors of the
Company.

Chiof Executive Chaeel Financial Officer Dhrector
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———— DIRECTORS' REPORT - —

The Directors are pleased to present the consolidated financial statements of ldrees Textile
Mills Limited (the Holding Company) and its subsidiary company, ORA Home LLC (ORA},
together referred lo as 'Group’ for the year ended 30™ June 2023.

The Holding Company has annexed its consclidated financal statements along with its
separate financial statements in accordance with the requirements of International Financial
Reporting Standards and Companies Act, 2017.

The Directors’ Report on the unconsolidated financial statements of the Holding Company

contains a review on the performance of ldrees Textile Mills Limited for the year ended 30"
June 2023. It also includes a brief description of the subsidiary company, ORA Home LLC.

For and on behalf of the Board

AL

Rizwan ldrees Allawala S. M. Mansoor Allawala
Chairman Chief Executive
Karachi: October 03 , 2022
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& YOUSUF ADIL Yousuf Adil

Chartered Accoiintants

Cavish Court, A-35, Block
KCHSU, Shahrah-e-F aizal
Karachi-75350

Pakdstan

Tek +92 (D) 21 3454 6494

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
Fox: +92 (0) 21-3454 130

TOTHE MEMBERS OF IDREES TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED www_yousutadil.com
Report v the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have sodied the annexed consolidated financial stmements of Idrees Textile Mills Limeted and sis subsidiary (the Group),
which compress the consolidated statement of financial position e at June 30, 2023, and the consolidated statement of profic or
s el other comprehensive meome, the consolidated statement of chonges 1nequity, the consolidated sttement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and notes 1o the consolidated Grsncial statements, including o summacy of signifieant secounting policies and
othier éxplanatory infbrmation,

I owr opinion., eonsolidated financial statements give o true and fair view of the conselidated finaneial position of the Group as al
June 30, 2003, and of'its consalidiuted finuneisl performanee and its consoliduied cosh Mows for the vear thea endad in accordance
with the aceounting snd reporting standards as applicable in Pukistan.

Rasis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in secordomee with Internntional Standards on Auditung (F5A=s) as applicable 1in Pakestgn, Our
responsibilities under those standiards sre farther deseeibed in the Awdieor s Responsibilities for the Audis of the Consolidated
Finamciol Sratemenis section of our repart, We are independent of the Group in aceordance with the [nternational Frhics Standards
Baoard for Accountamts” Code of Ethics for Professionzl Accounsants bs adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistun (the Coced, and we hove fulfilled our other ethicod responsibilities i accordomoe with the Code. We beheve (hat the audit
evidonee we hirve obtained is sufficient amd sppropriste to provide 3 basis for our opinion,

ey Audit Matters
Koo mudit mutiers are those mattors thot, moour professionol judgment, were of most significance m our audit of the consoliduted
fimancial stalements of the corment pericd. Thiese matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consalidated financial

statements as a whole, and in forming our opunon thereon, amd we do not provide a sepamate opimon on these matters,

Following is the key sudil maner:

Koy andil matier How the matter was addressed in our audit
1. Revenwe recognition Chur key andit procedures in this area omongsi vther inclade the
ol by
{Refor note 3,14 and 24 to the annexed Financial
Statemmenls) o Assessed  the  design,  implementation  and  opermimg
effectiveness of the key intermal controfs mvelved 10 revenue
Pecogmition.

Mot revenue from sale of Group's products for the year ended

June 30, 2023 amounted 1o Rs. 4,211 mllion which has | . gealusted the approprinteness of the sccounting policy with
decreased by approximately 19% a8 compared to last yeorn Fespeet 0 fevenue recognition

= Performed testing of sales mansactions on aosemple basis 1o
check that the reluted revenues bre recorded approprintely
the eorrect quantity wod price when conteol of peods has been
iramsferred (o the costonier,

The Group recognizes revenue at point (ntime when control
ol the nssel 15 tromslemed o the costomer, genemally on
delivery of goods.

Considering revenue recognition, asignificant risk arca amd | = We performed analytical procedores amd 1ested on a sample
key performance measure we have identified this as o koy basis, specific revenue tmnssetions recorded before and after
it rstter, the reporting dote with wmderving docomentation 1o assess
whether revenue was recognized in the correct period: wnd

|hidgeaiend O iTwugiestsl §

Dilaitis Toughs Tohmatug L
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Key audit matter Row the matier W afilresed inosirandlt
= Assessed the pdequacy of disclosures inaecordanee with the
spplicable finaneial reporting framewaork

2. Capital expenditure Chue key audit procedurncs in this ares amengsy others included the
following:

{Reler note 4 1o the annexed Financial Siatements)
* We obtained an underseanding of the Group's process with
The Group's financial stiterments for the vear ended June 30, | respect jo capital expenditure and evaluated the anthoriztion
2023 diselosed o significant capital expenditure during the | and approval procedures Toe capila] expendilure,

yvear amounting to Rs 1481 million which primarily
amtributed to the eXtenston of factory building wod plant and | « We fested samplesof capital expenditure transactions 1o check
muchinery, the necursey and valwtion of the wmouns recorded in the
financial statements  ond  exomined  the  documentation
The cupitat expenditure incurred dunng the wer represents supporting  managements  decisions regarding the
significant transactions and requires appropriate application | capitalization of expetuliture, such as contricts, and invoices.
a5 por applicable financial reporting framewark, In view of
the above, we have identified this matter as a key audit Wi considered whether (he items of cost capitalived meet the
Imer. recognition oriteria of ano assei in accordance with  the
apphicable fimancial reportimg framework

We assessed the adequacy of disclosures in accordanee with the
applicable imancial reporting rmework.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Anditor’s Heport Thergon

Munagement is responsihle for the other informeation, The other infimmstion comprises the informustion meluded in anmaol report.
hut does not inclucle the conselidated mod vnconsolidated Gnancial statemenis and owr anditors report thereon.

Our opimion: on the conselidated fnancial stutements does oot cover the other information and we do mt express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon

I connection with our mudit of the consolidated Fnoncial stntement:, our responsibabity 15 toread the other mformstion and, m domg
s, comsider whether the other information s materially inconsistent with the consolidated finncial staterments or our knowledse
abtained in the audit, o otherwise eppears 1o be matenally ausstated, 1 based on the work we hove perfmed, we conclude that
there 14 o material misstatement of this ofher informmtion, we are required fo report that facl, We have nothong (o report in ths e g,

Responsibilitics of Manapement and Beard of Directors for the Consalidated Financial Statements

Munagement i5 respomsible for the prepartion und fair presentation of the conselidited financial stalements in secordance
with necounting and reporting standards us spplicable in Pakistan and Companies Act, 2007 (XIX of 2017} and for such intemal
control as management determines is necessary o cnable the preparation of consolidated financinl statements that are free from
matenal misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

[n preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group's ability to confimie asa
going eoneern, (iselosing as applicable, matters related (o going comcern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
mongpement efther intends w liguidate the Group or to cease operations, or his no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Dircetors 15 responsible for oversceing the Group's finoncial reporting process,

Anditor's Responsibilities (or the Awdit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Chur objectives are (o obliun rasonnble asssuronce sbout whelher the congolidoted financia] shilements o5 0 whole ore free from
material misstatement, whether due to frowd or emor, and to ssee on ooditor's report that inelodes oo opimon. Reasonable
assurance 15 o high level of assurance, bt is not o guaromtee that an audit conducted in secordinee with [3As as applicable in
Pakistan will always detect s material missmtoment when it exists, Misstaterments con arise from frand or error and are considered
material if, ndividoally or in the sgrregate, they could reasonably be expected o influence the economic decisions of mers tiken

2
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o the basis-of these consohdated finnmon! statements:

As part of an awdit in sccordanee with 15SAs as applicable in Pukistan, we exercise professional judement and maintain
professional skeplicism throughout the sudit. We also:

Identify anid assess the risks of muterin] mhsstatement of the conyelidated finmneial seatements. whether doe 1o frad o
error, design mnd perform audit procedures responsive (o those risks, and obtoin sudit evidence that i sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting & material misstatement resulting from fraud 15
liigher thaun For one resulting from erar, as fraud may invil ve collusion, forgery, mtentiona] omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control,

Ohbeain an undersianding of internal control refevant to the awdit i order to design audit procedures that see spproprsce inthe.

circumstanees, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal comtrol,

Evaluate the approprioteness  of  accounting  policies  used and e reasonableness  of  aecounting
estumates and related diselosures made by management,

Conclude on  the sppropristensss of moansgement’'s use of the going concern  basis of  accounting
amd, based on the pudit evidence obtamed, whether a materinl uncertainty exisis reluted 1o events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt oo the Group's abality 1o continue as a gomg concern, If we conclude that o material
uneertainty exists, we sre reguired to dreaw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures i the eonsolidated
fimangial stotements or, i§ such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opimion. Our conclasions are based on the
andii evidesce ohtained up o the dute of our suditor’s report, However, Tuture events or conditions may cause the
CRroup Lo eese 1 continue 4s § going concem.

Evaluate the overall presentiation, structure and eantent of the consolideted finaneial sttements, including e disel osures.
aid whether the consolidaed financial statements sepresent the oaderlvng transactions and events ina manner that achieves
fair preseniution,

Obtain sufficient appropriote sudit evidence regarding the finoneisl Tnfornstion of the entitics o business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidoted financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performanee of the sroup audit. We remuin solely responsible for owe sudic opinion,

W comumumicate with the Board of Directors regsrding. among other matters, the planmed scope and tming ofthe aodit and signi Geant
audit fimdimgs, including any significant deficiencies in intermal control that we identify during our audit,

We also provide the Board of Directors with o statement that we have complied with retevant ethieal requirementsregarding independence.
angl to eommunieaie with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonobly be thoueht o bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safepupds,

From the malters communicaled with the Board of Directors, we determine those mallers that were of most sigmificance m the
audit of the consolidated finaneial statements of the eurrent period ond are therefore the key audit matters, We deseribe these
matters in our audile s report unless law or regulition precludes public disclosore about the matter ar when, in exiremely rare
elreumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
winild reasanubly be expected 1o outweigh the public mlerest benefits of such communicition,

The engagement partper on the awdit resulting in this independent suditor’s report is Mr. Anl Mazeer,

Y | AlA

Charted ntants

Pluce: Fuarachi
Date: Oclober 04, 2023
UDIN: ARZOZI100990UQ End Plo




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at June 30, 2023

ASSETS

MNon-curment Assets

Propery, plant and oguiprment
Long-lanm deposits

Current Assets

Stonas, spanes and loose lools
Stock-in-lrade

Irade dabls
Loans and advances
Propaymenis

Ohar roceivablas

Other financial assels

Cash and bank balances

Total Assets
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Share Capital and Resarves
Authorised capllal
22 000,000 ordinay shewes of Rs_ 104 sach

s, sibsoibed s pand-up capital

Capital reserves

Surplus on revaluslion of property, plant and equipment - nel of ax
Equity portion of loan from relatod paries

Revanue reserves

Exchanoe ransklon resernve

Unapproprated prolil

Total Equity

Mon-current Liabilities
Long-larm finance

Letase fkability

Deterred govermniment grant
Defermed taxstion - nel
Retmement bomafil obligaton

Current Liabilities

Irade and ather payables

Aecried imark-up

Short-lerm borrowings

Current portion of long-teamn finance

Current portion of leaze labilily

Curmenl povlion of deferred govormrment grant
Unclammed dividand

Provision for taxation

Total Liabifities
Total Equity and Liabilities

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

The annaxed notes 110 43 form an integral part of these financial statements.

S s E_S

Chiof Exocilive Chief Firamcisl Officor

o= & tn

1

12

13

14
15
16
17
1B

18

21
14
15
16

Rupsaes Rusperers:
3378314 871 2,334 249,182
2 B9 681 3,129 361
3,384,.213,552 2007 378 553
74,479 461 57 521 846
1,461.817,305 1,207 120,704
655,583,419 ToH 563 631
124,283,507 174,730,107
1,603,650 1,805 463
223 189,255 184 464 687
180,115,660 134,473 034
18,971,021 18.215,009
2,740,043,318 2,544, 003,511
6,121,256, 870 4 B81,382 D64
220,000,000 220,000,000
198, 528000 108 528 000
BES,124.011 BB2 490524
30.064 Ba2 15,895,730
(8.450.221) (2,366, 429)
1,458.913.091 1,406, 774,561
2547 179,723 2,501,322 386
728 952 828 214 521 468
- 1,962 284
103,735,361 44,261,234
171,199,476 229 182 802
TB.T75,115 §0,143 460
1,082, 662,780 550,071,248
610,959,675 617,000,712
92 205,020 26,121 555
1,522,871.564 BO1.048, 156
170,505,607 143,862 034
1,362 284 ¥ 767 062
29,771,093 5,297,394
2,750,372 2,899 903
60,388,752 125,049,571
2,491 414 367 1,829 088 430
3,574.077,147 2,380,059 678
6,121,256 ETD 4 BE1 382 054
o

AR
&
z
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—
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
Faor the Year ended June 30, 2023

Revenue from contract with custormer - net

Cost of sales
Gross profit
Distribution cost

Administrative expenses

Fimance cost
Impairment of goodwill
Other operating expenses

Other income

{Loss) / Profit before taxation

Taxation

(Loss) / Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently

to profit or loss

Adjustment of surplus on revaluation of property. plant and eguipment

due to change in ax rate
Remeasurement of retiremeant benefit obligation

Related tax

ltems that may be reclassified subsequently

to profit or loss

Foreign operations - foreign currency transtation difference

Total comprehensive income for the year

(Loss) / eamings per share - basic and diluted

The annexed notes 1 to 43 form an integral part of these financial statements.

N

Chiof Exocilive

s W

Chief Firamcisl Officor

i

E

13

185
17

- % |

-
INCOME= ———

2023 2022
Rupees Rupees
4.211,644 274 5177 898 639
(3,785,339,659) (4,376 937,319)
426,304,615 800,961,320
(42,495,566 (45,648, 005)
(115,601,318) (96,757, 795)
(158,096,884) (142 6506,691)
268,207,731 658,354,629
(306,973,730) (174,350,261)
- (16,937 368)
(38,514, 094) (88,787 ,153)
(77,280,093) 398,230,847
45,341,679 130,950 024
{31,938 414) 538,208,871
21,147,284 {119,845 918)
(10,791,130) 418,362,955
39,602,265 19,262,595
(4,022.874) (982.374)
1,166,633 284,096
(2,856,241) {B97.478)
36,746,024 18,565,117
(6,083,792) (2,366,429)
30,662,232 16,198,688
19,871,102 434 561,643
(0.54) 21.07
J;E-:—F'E
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the Year ended June 340, 2023

A CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

(Limsa) | profit before taxeton

Adjustments lor :
Diepreciataon
Frovisan for reliremant benetit obligation
Financa cost
Expected credil loss - giher receivable
Expecied credil loss - rade recehsable
Unraslised gain on cobon e
Unreahzed ioas | (gain) an other financial azasts
Frofit on deposits
Cisan on disposs] of proparty; plant snd edguiprent
Urnasnirding of discount on other necenvables
Imipairment of Goodwil

Operating cash Bows befons working capilsi changes

(Incresse) | decrease in cument assels
Siores, spares and loose loos
Siock-n-race

[rade debis

Loans and advances

Prepaymants

Orther recetvabies

(Decreasze) | increase In current Rabilites
‘Irede snd other payabies.

Cash generaled from operations

Finamca cost paid

Retremant benelit obligation ped
Income tax pad

Long-iem deposits - net
Mat cash (used in) [ generated from operating actwlies

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Furchase ol properdy, plant and equipmsnt

Procesds from dispossl of property, plant and equspmsnt
Purchase of =m deposil receipt - net
Purchase al shares

i*mbl on deposits recehved

Mt cash soquired 0n DUSHESs combinaion

Net cash used i nvesting activiies
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Lewng-ierm finance repasd ko financisl bstiubions
Enport refinance repaid - net
Leong-ierm finance ohtsinad from Snancsl instilutons
Long-iesm fingnce repesd io redaled paries
Lewng-ierm loan repaid
Long-iesm fingnce obtamnad from related partes
Shor e borowings obimned - nel

Lease liabilies repad dunng the year

Utvitdend pad

Mat cash generated from finanoirg acivlies

Hel increase in cash snd cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivaients a1 the beginning of the year
Effects of exchange rate changes in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents al the end ol the year

e annexed notes 1 lo 43 lorm an integral part ol hese Tinancial statements.

A\ S

Chiof Exocubiver Cheof Financial Officer

Mole

BEEY

2023 2002
Rupess Hupess
{31,538 414) 538 204 471
107,243,001 e el |
24 691,262 18, 784,793
J06.973,730 174 360,261
1,144,357 .

1645333 1,364,306
{3,024, 315) -
(E8E,290) 2055 AU
(18,291, 881) {5,521 448)
{7.17E,050) (1,233,155)
- 16,40, 253)
4 16,837,368
380,566,833 44 8564 620
{16.857.615) { 14,080,585 H
(254,696, 601) (108, 1622.813)
111,334,870 {61,327, 5386)
47,455,600 (e, 270, rEa)
1T {33.605)
[36.844,620) (21, 711,462)
[12.9591.620) I G2 3092
(162,308 204) 0, ZI BIT
218,168 629 26,0483 247
(229 275, 183) (158,047 S60)
(B, 215.600) { 16,402, 660)
(61,778, 741) {65, 242 553)
230,680 (241.374)
(T8.673.215) 555,109, 100
(1,157 305, 720) {304,050, 878)
13,175,000 1,787,500
{44, 5TR, 050} {2 300,000)
E (F,133.910)
15472 517 3865410
- 116.531
{1.973.636,253) (427,555,347
(112, 768.553) (83,604, 014)
TST 256 662 200,173,634
(6,746, 285) 2. 0008 06T
{6.555.431) &
1,450,000 -
386,457 410 396,004
(7,767,062 (21,355, T6E)
(140,531} {18,337 a2}
1011173238 766,533,064
{241 336 230} 1,003 DaE A1 T
(181,157,023) (1,206,649, 734)
166,792 1,525 824
422,306, 531) (8L, 137,083)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the Year ended June 30, 2023
Cagoital
resefve Ravenue resstve
Surplus on
5 revnluation of  Equily porfian u skt Exchange
ksl property, plant of loan from i trarislation Tkl
ard eguigpmant  related porties rEseTve
= el of tax
‘Wote Rupees
Balance as ol July 1, 2027 196,528,000 0719758 25,513,862 951,551,923 2,086,613, 543
Pl for the pes 416,352 855 416,362,335
Ot compn et iensive moorie hor By
Addjustimen ol suipilus on revaluslion of progiey, plank nd equipriesnd - 18,282 505 19 262 585
e Iy g i Lax ke
FResneasutemment of refiremenl benel obiisstion (382374} (BEZ3TE)
Feilend L ZB4 BEE 264,896
Foseign operdlkss - oeeigh cuneicy anskalion d@lisence = {2,366 429) |2366,429]
= 10, 282 505 (BOT ATE) (2, 356 A0 15,195 688
Tl cabarali ik e Nt The yeke 10,262,585 417 B85ATT [Z36E4209) 434561543
Transier from suplus on revaleaiion of property
plant and equipment on sccount of
Increrneriial depinecialion chainged Busreon - el of L 13 (4T, 40 B2} AT 421 820 -
Tinnssclions with shareholders.
Fireal dividens of e prer shase o D wear poafed June 30, 2021 - - {19,552 BO) (12853 0]
Trunsactions wiith related parties
Ui of’ dfssmiril o kawy-desimm bomn 12
Froamrt refales] provfiees {2.918,132) B.59718 132
Fou vishie effect of nlredl hes losh provided
by redided pariies 142 = -
Balince 33 ot June 30, 2022 198,528,000 BE2 430 524 15895730 1,406,774, 561 [2. 368 429) 2.501 322 388
Pl for the pes = = * (10,79, 130 s (90,724, 130)
Ol e sk nisresives o for B yene
Adffurstmend of sty on revaslus e of poogesy, planl oo e = 30,602 265 39 50T 265
b by e b L piale
Flestremsuinesmenl of reliternenl besel obisgation (4072 A7) (4.622 BT4)
il by 1, 166833 1,166,633
Fromeigen operdlir - ey coimenty ensbabon dlmencs (6083, 7o) {6,083.792)
- 30,602 765 {2.B56,241) {5,083, 702} 30,567 233
Total comprehensive incoms for the yeor 38,602 F65 {1 XBATITY) (E.083, 702y 19.571,102
Transfer (o / irem surglus oo revalestion of property,
plant and equipment on sccount of
rremernilel depreciion changed B 1= ruel of Lax 13 - {53,988, 7TTH) 51,968,770 =
- Bt iy pedivhed rirt
Urrevmatineg of dEscourd on oog-term ks
Heriri relaked paities Tz - - M.mraan AT 23 -
P siahiis el oif inlesrel T losh provided
by rsdtiben proriens 2 - - 26,586 235 - . 25,986 735
Ealatnce as al June 30, 2023 158,528,000 BEE, 124,011 30,064 Ba2 1.458.913,051 (B.450 221) 2547 178,723

Tha annexed notes 1 o 43 form an mlegral part of these financisl statemants
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1.2

1.3
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B
—————— CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS —

For the Year ended June 30, 2023

THE GROUP AMD ITS OPERATIONS

The Group consists of idrees Textile Mills Limited (the Holding Company) and its 100% owned subsidiary ORA Home LLC
(ORA) ({the Subsidiary). Together refermred Io as "the Group® and individually as *Group entities®.

The Holding Company was incorporated in Pakistan as an unguoted public limited company on June 5§, 1990 under the
repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now Companies Act, 2017) and was listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limiled on
April 28, 1992, The registered office of the Holding Company is situated at 6-C, Ismail Centre. 15t floor, Central Commercial
Area, Bahadurabad, Kamchi in the Province of Sindh. The principal activity of the Holding Company is manufacturing,
processing and sate of all kinds of yarn.

Following are the geographical location and address of all business units of the Holding Company:

Karachi Purpose
6-C, lzmail Centre, 1sl floor, Central Commercial Area, Head Office
Bahadurabad

Mankana Sahib Purpose

Kot Shah Muhammad, Tehsil & District Nankana Punjab Regional Office and Production Plant / Factory
Following is the geographical location and address of the Subsidiarny:

New Jersey, USA Purposs

4 Conklin Lane Raritan, New Jersey 08868-2315 Registered Office

Business combination

In the year ended June 30,2022 the Holding Company acguired 100% ownership in ORA Home LLC (ORA), a limited liability
company incorporated in New Jersey, USA on January 5. 2022. One of the directors.of the Holding Company is the member

manager of ORA_ Pursuant lo the acquisition, ORA has become wholly owned subsidiary of the Holding Company. ORA is
engaged in imporifexport, warehousing and wholesale of lexdile products.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan comprise of;

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Slandards) issued by the Intemational Accounting Standards  Board
(IASB} as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

- Prowisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ with requirements of IFRS Standards, the
provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

Basis of measurement
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under histoncal cost convention except that cerain categones

of property, plant and equipment are stated at revaluved amounts and the Group's iability under defined benefit plan (gratuity)
is stated at present value of defined benefit obligation.
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CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year ended June 30, 2023

Basis of consolidation

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entifies controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed to or has rights lo variable
retumns from s involvement with the entity and has the abiiity to affect those returns through s power over the entity
generally accompanying a share of more than fifty percent of the voling righis. Subsidiaries are fully consofidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the Group and up to the date when the controd ceases. These consolidated financial
statemenis inciude ldrees Tedile Mills Limided (the Holding Company) and s subsidiary entity ORA Home LLC, Le., the
entity in which the Holding Company directly owns 100%. Accordingty, there is no non-controlling interest.

The financial statements of the Subsidiary have been consolidated on a line-by-line basis. Inter-company batances and
transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses (except for farsign curmency transaction gains or losses) arsing from
inter-company transachons, are eliminated.

Presontation and functional currency

ltemis included in the consolidated financial statements are measured using the curency of the primary economic
environment in which the Holding Company operates. These financial statements .are presented in Pakisiani Rupees, which
iz the Holding Company's funciional and presentation cumency. All financial information presented in Pakistan Rupees has
een rounded off to the nearest upee.

Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with the accounting and reporting standards, as applicable
in Fakisian, requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumplions that aifect the application of policies and
the reported amounts of assets, abilities, income and expenses.

The estimates and assocated assumplions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances, the result of which form the basis of making the judgments about the camying values
of asseis and fabilifies that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The
estimates and underiying assumpticns are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision to accounting estimales are recognised in
the penod in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that penod, or in the period of revision and future pericds
if the: revision affects both current and future perods.

Judgements made by management in the application of the accounting and reporting skandamds, as applicable in Pakistan,
that have a significant effect on the conschidated financial steiements and estimates with significant sk of material judgment
in the next financial year are set forth below:

- assumptions and estimates used in accounting for defined benefit plan (notes 3.12 and 18.1);

= assumptions and estimates used in determining fair vaiue, residoal value. useful lives and recoverable amount of
property, plant and equipment (notes 3.1, 3.6 and 4.1);

- assumpiions and estimates used in determining provision for taxation including deferred taxation (notes 3.13, 17 and
30x

- assumptlions and eslimates used in writing down items of siock-in-frade to their net realizable value (nodes 3.3 and 6);

- confingencies and commitments (note 22); and

Changes in accounfing standards and interpretations

Mew accounting standards [ amendments and IFRS interpretations that are effective for the yvear ended June 30, 2023

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are effective for the year ended June 30, 2023. These standands,

amendments and interpretations are either not relevant to the Company's operations or are not expected to have significant
impact on the Company's financial statements other than certain addifional disclosures.

- Amendmentsio IFRS 3 ‘Business Combinations' - Reference to the conceplual framework

Amendments to IAS 168 'Property, Flant and Equipment’ - Proceeds before intended use
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CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year ended June 30, 2023

Amendments to IAS 37 'Provisions, Contingent Liabiliies and Contingent Assets’ - Onerous Contracts — costof
fulfiliing @ contract

Annual improvemnents io IFRS Standards 2018-2020 Cycle (retated o IFRS 9, IFRS 16 and IAS 41)

New accounting standards and amendmants that are not yot effective

The foflowing standards. amendments and interpretations are only effective for accounting penods, beginning on or after the
date mentioned against each of them. These standards, inferpretations and the amendments are either not relevant to the
Company's operations or are not expected to have significant impact on the Company's financial statements other than
certain additiona] disclosures.
Effective from accounting period
beginning on or after:

= Amendments to |1AS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statemenis” - Disclosure of January 01; 2023
accounting policies

- Amendments to 1AS B ‘Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates Jamary 01, 2023
and Errors’ - Definition of accounting estimates

- Amendments to 'lAS 12 Income Taxes' - deferred tax related to assets and danuary 01, 2023
[mabilities arising from a single transaction.

- Amendments to IAS 12" Income taxes’ - Iniemational Tax Reform — Pillar Two January 01, 2023
Model Rules

- Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements’ - Classification of danuary 01, 2024

liabilitie= as current or non-curment

- Amendments to IFRS 16 ' Leases’ -Clarification on how seller-iessee Jamary 01, 2024
subsequently measures sale and leaseback ransactions

= Amendments to IAS 7 "Statement of Cash Flows™ and "IFRS 7 "Financial January 01, 2024
instruments disclosures’ - Supplier Finance Armangements

- Amendments to IFRS 10 and 28 - Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Defarred indefinitely
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

Certain annual improvements have slso been made to @ number of IFRSs.

Other than the aforesaid amendments, IASE has also issued the following standards which have not been adopted locally by
the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan:

- IFRS 1 - First Time Adoption of Intemational Financial Reporiing Standands

- IFRS 17 'Insurance Conbracis’
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are the same as
those applied in the preparation of the consolidated iinancial statements of the Group for the year ended June 30, 2023.

Property, plant and equipment

Owned asseis

Property, plant and eguipment are stated as follows:
- Land is stated at revalued amount:

= Building. Labour colony, plant and machinery, electric installations and mill equipment are stated at revalued amounis
less accumulated depreciation and impaimment losses, i any; and

- Office equipment, furniture and fixtures and vehicles are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, i any.
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Cost includes expenditure that is directly atiribatabie fo the acguisition of an asset including bormowing costs, if any. When
parts of an item of proparty, plant and eguipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items (major

componants) of property, plant and eguipment.

Subsequent costs are included in an asset's cammying amount or recognised as a separate assel, as appropriate, only when it
i= probable that fulure economic benefits associated with the dem will fiow to the Group and il= cost can be measured
refiably. Cost incumed to replace 3 component of an item of properly, plant and equipment i= capilalized and the asset so
replaced is derecognised. Mommal repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of profit or loss during the period in
which they are incurred.

Depreciation is charged to the statement of profit or less on a straight ine basis at the rates specified in note 4.1,
Depreciation on addifions is charged from the month an asset is available for use upto the monih prior to its disposal.

Depreciation methods, useful lves and residual values of each item of property, plant and equipment that is significant in
refation to the total cost of the asset are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate at each reporiing date.

Surplus on revaluation of assets is recognised net of tax, in statement of other comprehensive income (OCI) and presentad
as a separata component of equity as “surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment”, except that it reverses a
revaluation deficit for the same asset previously recognised in the statement of profii or loss, in which case the surplus is
credited to the statement of profit or loss {o the extent of the deficl charged preniously.

Deficit on revaluation of assets is recognised in the statement of profit or loss, except that it reverses a revaleation surplus for
the same asset previoosly recognised in statement of other comprehensive income, in which the deficit iz charged o
other comprehensive incoma o the extent of the surplus credited previously. The revaluation reserve is not avaiable for
distribution {o the Group’s shareholders.

Revaluation is cammied out with sufficient regularity to ensune that the camying amount of assats doss not differ materially from
the estimaied fair value. To the extent of the increamental depreciation charged on the revaiued assets, the related surplius on
revaluation of assets (net of deferred taxation) is transferred directly to retained eamings (unappropriated profit). Further,
accumulated depreciation as af the revaluation date is eliminaied against the gross camying amount of the asset and the net
amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset. Upon disposal, any revaluation surplus relafing to the parficular assel
being sold is transfemed to retained eamings (unappropriated profit).

An item of property, plant and eguipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no fulure economic benefits are expected
from its usa or disposal. The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and aquipment is determined by comparing
the proceeds from disposal with the carmying amount of the propery, plant and equipment, and is recognised in other income
{ other expenses in the siatement of profit or loss. When revalued assets are sold, any related amount induded in the surplus
ofn revaiuation is transferred to retained eamings (unappropriated profit).

Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost kess impairment foss, if any, and consists of expenditure incumed and advances
made in respect of assets in the course of their acquisiion, construction and nstallation. Transfers are made fo refevant
as=et categories as and when assets are available for intended use.

Leased assots

Plant and machinery acquired under finance lease is siated at revalued amounts less accumulated depreciation and
impaiment losses, i any. Vehicles acquired under finance lease are stated at cosi less accumulated depreciation and
impaimeant losses, it any. Assels that will be transfemred at the end of the lease term are depreciated over the useful life of
the assets commencing from thi year in which the leased assets are put inlo operation. Depreciation and other policies are
same as for the owned assels described above.

Stores. spares and loose tools

These are stated at lower of weighted average cost and net realizable value. Items in transit are stated at cost compnsing
imvoice value plus ofher charges incurred thereon uplo the reporting date. Provision for cbsolete and slow moving stores,
spares and loose tools is determined based on the management's estimate regarding thedr future csability.

MNet realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the net estimated costs
necessary to be incuwmed to make the sale.
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CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year ended June 30, 2023

Stock-in-trade

These are sizted at lower of cost and net realizable value applying the following basis:

Cosl signifies in relation to:

- Raw material (imported) Lower of cost (specific idenfification basis) and net realisable valus
(NRV)

- Raw materal (local) Lower of cosl (weighted average) and NRYV

- Stock-in-dransi Cost accumulated up to reporting date:

- Waork-in-process-and finished goods Lower of cost and NEWV

- Waste Net realisable value (NRV)

Costin relation to work-in-process and finished goods represents annual average manufactuning cost which consists of prime
costand appropriate manufaciuring overheads.

Met realizsble value (NRY) signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the net estimated costs
necessary to be incurmed 1o make the sale.

Trade debts and other receivables

Trade debis and other receivables are recognised nitielly at fair valve and subsequently measured at amortized cost less
loss allowance, if any. The Group measures the loss allowance for trade debts at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit
losses (ECL). The expected credit losses on trade debts are estimated using a provision matrx by reference to past default
experience of the deblor and an analysis of the debtor's current financial position, adjusted for factors that are spedfic io the
debtors, general economic conditions. of the industry in which the deblors operate and an assessment of both the current as
weli as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date_

Trade debls and othar receivables considered irrecoverable are written off.

Financial instruments

Classification of financial assets

The Group classifes its financial assets info following three categories:

At amortized cost ("AC™),

Fair value through other comprehensive income ("FVTOCT™) and

Fair value through profit or loss (*FVTPL").

Financial assets at amortised cost

A financial assel is measured at amoriized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as FVTPL:

1) the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and

2) the contraciual ferms of the financial asset give nse on specified daies {o cash fiows that are solely paymenis of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount at which the financial asset is measured at initial recognition minus the
principai repayments, plus the cumulative amortisation using the effechve interest method of any difference between that
initizl amount and the maturity amount. adjusted for any loss allowance. The gross camying amount of a financial asset is the
amortised cost of a financial asset before adjusting for any loss allowance.

Financial assets at FVTOCI
A financial asset is measured at FVTOCI onfy if it meets both of the following conditions and s not designated as FVYTFL:

1) the asset is held within a business mode! whose objective iz achieved by both collecting contractusl cash flows and
seiling financial assels; and
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CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2) the contraciual fermse of the financial asset give nee on specified daies {o cash fiows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition, for an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Group may imevocably elect io present
subsequent changes in fair value in OCI, only dividend income is recognised in income statement. This election is made on
an investmeni-by-investment basis.

FYTOC! financial assels are subsequently measured at fair value with gains and losses arising due to changes in fair value
recognised in OCL

Financial assets at FVTPL

Al other financial assets are classified at FVTPL {for example: equity held for trading and debt securities not classified either
as AL or FVYTOCI).

In- addition, on iniial recognition, the Group may imevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the
requirements to be measured at amartized cost or at FVTOCI as at FVTPL i doing so eliminates or signficantly reduces an
accourting mismatch that would otherwize anse.

Financial assets are not reclassiied subsequent to their initial recognition, except in the perod after the Group changes its
business mode! for managing financial assets.

Recognition and initial measurement of financial instrumonts

Financial assets and financial fiabiliies are recognised in the Group’s statement of asseis and liabiliies when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial asseis and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attnbutable to the acquisiion or issue of financial assets and financial
liailities (other than inancial assets and financial Habiiities at f@ir value throwgh profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on inifial recognition. Transaction cosis directly
atfributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabifities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
mmediatedy in profit or loss.

Subsequent measurement of financial assets
Financial assets at amorfised cost

Financial assefs al amorised cost are subseguently measured at amortised cost. Amortised cost = calculated vsing the
effective interest rate method. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash reccipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument to the net carrying amount of the financial asset

Financial assets at FVTOCIH

All fimancial assets at FWVTOCI are subsequently measured at fair value with gains and iosses arising due to changes in fair
value recognized in other comprehensive income.

For debt instruments classified as financial assets at FVTOC!, the amounis in other comprehensive income are reclassified
to income statement on derecognition of financial assets. This treatment = in contrast o equity instruments classified as
financial assets at FVTOCGI, where there is no reclassification on derecognition.

Financial assets at FVTPL

All financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair value, with gains and losses
arnsing from changes in fair vaiue recorded in the income statement.

Impairmont
Impairment of financial assets

Under expected credit loss {ECL) model of IFRS 9, the Group recognises loss allowances for ECLs on financial asseis. The
Group measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifefime ECLs, except for the following, which are measured at 12-
manth ECLs:

Financial asseis that are determined io have low credit risk at the reporiing date; and

Other financial assets for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the expected life of the asset) has not
increased significantly since initial recognition.
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When determining whether the credit nsk of a financial assat has increased significantly since initial recognition and when
estimating ECLs, the Group considers reasonable and supportable information that s relevant and available without undue
cost or efforl This incledes both guantitative and gualitative information and analysis, based on the Group's historical
expernence and informed credit assessment and including forward-looking information.

Classification and measurement of financial liabilities

All financial liabilites are measured subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method or at FVTPL. The
effective interest method is a method of calculating the amorised cost of a financial lability and of allocating interest expense
over the relevanl period. The effective interesl rate is the rate that exaclly discounts estimaled future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received thal form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial iability, or (where approprate) a shorter period, to the
amortised cost of a fmancial l=bility.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the nghis (o receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or where the
entity has tmnsferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obiigation specified in the contract is dischamed, cancelled or expired.
Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assels and financial liabiiies are offset and the net amount s reported in the statement of assets and liabiliies
when there is a legally enforceable nght o set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or
realize the assets and setle the linbilities simultaneoushy.

Business combination

The Group accounts for business combination using the acguisition method when control is transferred to the Group. The
consideration transfemed (including contingent consideration) in the year of acquisition is measured at fair value, as are the
identifiable nel assets acquired. Any goodwill acquired = not amorized but tested annually for impairment. Any gain on a
bargain purchase is recognized in profit or loss immediately. Tmnsaction costs are expensed as incurred, excepl if related to
the issue of debt or equity securities. When the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete al the end of a
reporting penod, provisional amounts are used. Dunng the measurement perod, the provisional amounts are retrospectively
adjusted and additional assels and liabiliies are recognized, o reflect new information obtained about the facts and
circumstanoces that existed at the acgquisition date which would have affected the measurement of the amounts recognized at
that date, had they been known. The measurement pedod does not exceed twelve months from the dale of acgusition.

Goodwill

In & business combination, goodwill is recognised at the acquisiion date and measuned at the fair value of consideration paid
less the fair value ol net assets acquired. After initial recognition, it s carmied at cost less accumulated impairment, if any.
Goodwill is assessed annually for impairmenL

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carying amounts of the Group's non-financial assets. other than defermed tax assets and inventones are reviewed at
each balance sheet date to determine whether there s any indication of impairment. If such indication exists, the asset's
recoverable amount, being higher of value in use and fair value less costs to sell, is estimated. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-lax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the rsks specific to the assel. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets
lhat cannot be tested individually are grouped together info the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from
continuing use thal are lamely independent of the cash inflows of other assels or groups of assets. An impairment loss is
recognised whenever the carmying amount of an asset exceeds ils recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in
the statement of profit or foss.
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CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year ended June 30, 2023

Foreign currency transactions and transiation

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into reporting currency at the rates of exchange prevailing on the date of
ransactions. Monetary assels and fiabiliies denominated in foreign currencies are re-transialed into reporting curmency
equivalents using foreign currency rates ruling on the reporting date. Exchange differences on foraign currency transactions
and transiation are included in the income currentiy.

Provisions

Provigions are recognised in the statemenl of financial position when the Group has a present, legal or constructive obligation
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outfiow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation, and a refiable estimale can be made of the amount of obigation. Provisions are reviewed al each reporting
date and adjusied o reflect the current besl estimate.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cazh and cash equivalenis used in statemant of cash fiows include cash in hand balances with banks in current and deposil
accounis and short term borrowings. Shori-termm bommowings availed by the Group, are payable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group's cash managemant.

Retiremont benefit obligation
Defined benefit plan

The Holding Company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme covering all its factory workers who have completed the
minimum gualifying period of service as defined under the scheme. the Hoiding Company's obligation under the scheme iz
determimed through actuarial valuation camed oul al each year end under the Projected Unit Credit Method.
Remeasurements which comprise actuarial gains and lossas are recognised immediately in other comprehensive income.

The Holding Company determines the interest expense on the defined benefit fability for the period by applying the discount
rate used o measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginming of the annual period to the then defined benefit iability,
taking info account any changes in the defined benefit kability duning the perod as a resull of benefil payments. Interest
expense and current service cosl are recognised in the statement of profil or loss.

Defined contribution plan

The Holding Company operaies an approved funded confributory provident fund scheme for all head office staff. Equal
monthly contnbutions are made both by the Holding Company and the employees at the rate of 8.33% of basic salary per
anmnum.

Taxation
Current tax

Prowvision for cumment taxation is based on taxable income at the curment rates of taxation, after taking into account tax rebates
and tax credite available, if any, or lumover at the specified rate or Alternate Corporate Tax as defined in section 113C of the
Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, whichever is higher. Charge for current tax aiso includes adjusiments, where necessary,
refating to prior vears which arise from assessment framed / finalized during the vear. However, for income covered under
final tax regime, taxafion is based on appiicable tax rates under such regime.

Deferred tax

Defarred tax is recognised using the lability method, providing for temporary difference between the camying amounts of
assels and liahilities for financial reporting purposas and the amounts used for taxation purposas. The amount of defermred tEx
provided is basad on the expecied manner of realization or settlement of the camying amount of assets and lisbilites using
the tax rates enacted or substantively enactad at the reporiing date.

The Group recognises a defermed fax asset to the extent that if is probable that taxable profits in the foresesable future will be
available against which the assals can be ufilized. Defermed lax assets are reduced lo the exient thatl it is no longer probable
that the related tax banefit will be realized.

Further, the Group also recognizes a defermed tax asset / liability on deficit / surplus on revaluation of property, plant and
equipment which is adjusted against the related deficil F surplus.
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Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised Initially at fair value plus direclly atiributable cost, i any, and subseguently
measured at amorlized cost.

Foreign currency
Forgign currency ransactions

Transactions in forelgn currencies are transialed into reporting currency at the rates of exchange prevailing on the date of
transactions. Monelary assels and liabilites denominaled in foreign currencies are re-lransiated inlo reporting currency
equivalents using foreign currency rates ruling on the reporting date.

Forei :

The asseis and liabilities of foreign operations are ransiated to Pakstani rupees at exchange rates prevailing at the date of
the statement of financial position. The income and expenses of foreign operations are ranslated to Pakistani Rupees al

average rales of exchange prevailing during the year.
Transfafion gains and lossos

Gains and losses ansing from foreign cumency fransiafions are taken fo the profit and loss account, except those arising from the
transiation of the nol invesiment in forcign subsidisnes, which are recognized through the sistement of other comprohensive
income as an Exchange Translation Reserve (ETR). Baltances in the ETR are only taken to the profit and loss account on the
disposal of the investment.

Bommowing costs

Bomowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production ol gualifying assels, which are assets thal
necessarily lake a substantial pernod of time lo gel ready for their intended use or sale, are capitaized as part of the cosl of
the respective assets unfil such time as the asseis are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. All other borrowing
costs are recognised in statement of profit or loss in the penod in which they are incurmed.

Revenue recognition

The Group manufactures and contracts with customers for the saie of yarn and other goods which generally include single
performance obligation. Management has assessed that revenue from sale of goods be recognised al the point in time whan
control of the asset is transfemed to the customer, which is when the goods are dispatched fo the customer in case of local
sales and date of bill of lading in case of export sales.

Interest income s accrued on time proporionate basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the applicabie
efiective interest mate.

Dividend income

Oividend income is recognised when the Group's righl to recerve paymenl have been established and is recognised in
statement of profil or loss and included in other income.

Dividend and appropriation fo / from reserves

Dividend distribution Lo the Holding Company's shareholders and appropriations to / from reserves is recognised in the period
in which these are approved.

Earnings per share

The Holding Company presents basic.and diluted eamings per share (EPS) dala for ils ordinary shares. Basic EPS is
calculaled by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Holding Company by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares oulstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profil or Ioss alirbutable
o ordinary sharehoiders and the weighled average number of ordinary shares oulstanding for the efiects of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares.
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Leases - Lease liabilities and right-of-use assets

The Group recogrises leases as a nght-of-u=se asset and cormmesponding lability at the date at which the loased asset is
available for use by the Group.

The lease lmbility is subsequently measured {at amortised cost) by increasing the camying amount to refloct interest on the
lzase liability using the effective interest mathod and by reducing the camying amount to reflect the lease payments made. It
s remeasured when there s a change in future lease payments ansing from a change in fixed lease paymoents or an ndex or
rate, chango in the Group’s ostimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guaraniee, or if the Group
changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or lerminafion opfion. The comesponding
adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the fAght-of-use asset, or is recorded in statement of profit or loss if the camying
amount of right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

For short torm leases and leases of low / immaterial value assets, the Group recognises the lease paymants as an operating
expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the izase uniess another systematic basis s more representative of the time
paitemn in which economic benefils from the leased asseis are consumed.

The right-of-use assect is initially measured based on the inidial amount of the |ease liability adjusied for any lease payments
made at or before the commencement dato, plus any initial diréct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantie and
remove the underlying asset or fo restore the underlying assoet or the site on which it is located, less -any lease incentive
received. The right-of-use asset is doprociatod on a straight ine method over the assets sconomic life. The Aght-of-use assot
i= reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain re-measurements of the lease Tability.

Government grant

The benefit of interest rale lower than the market rale on borrowings obiained under State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) Refinance
Scheme for Payment of Wages and Salaries to the Workers and Employess of the entity and Temporary Economic
Refinance Facility (TERF], 1= accounted for as a government grant which s the difference between amount of loan receved
and the fair value of the loan on the date of disbursement. The differential amount presented in statement of financial position
as deferred governmant grant. The amortisation of defermed government grant is netted off with finance cost within in the
siatoment of profit or loss.

Govornment grants are recognised at fair value, as deforred income, when thoere is reasonable assurance that the grants will
be received and the Group will be abke o comply with the condifions associated with the grants.

Grants that compensate the Group for expenses incurred, are rocognised on a sysiematic basis in the income for the year in
which the mlated cxpenses are recognised. Grants that compensate for the cost of an assot are recognised in incoma on a
systomatic basis over the expacted useful life of the related assot.

A foan is initially recognised and subsequontty measured in accordance with IFRS 9. IFRS 9 requires loans at bolow-markot
rates o be initially measured at their fair value - e.g. the presant value of the axpecied fulure cash fiows discounted at: a
market-related interest rate. The benefit, that is the government grant, is measured as the difforence betwoen the fair value
of the loan on initial recognifion and the amount received, which is accounied for according to the nature of the grant.

Oparating segment

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activibos from which it may eam revenues and
imcur expensas that relates to ransactons with any of the other components of the Group.

The Board of Directors and the Chief Executive Officer of the Group have been identified as the chief operating decision-
makers (CODM), who are respoensible for allecating resources and assessing the porformance of the operating segments.
Management has determined that the Group has a single reportable segment as the CODM views the Group's operations as
one reportable segment.

Commiiments

Commitmenis for capital expenditure contracted for but not incurmed are disciosed in the consolidated financial- statements at
commitied amounts. Commitments for tetters of credit and letters of guarantee denominated i foreign cumencies are
oxpressed in rupee ierme at committed amounts.
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CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Year ended June 30, 2023
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CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year ended June 30, 2023

5. STORES, SPARES AND LOOSE TOOLS

Stores and spares
Stores and spares in transit
Loose tools

Less: provision for slow moving tems

6. STOCK-IN-TRADE

Raw material - Cotlon

- In hand

- In transit

Raw material - Home Texdile
- In hand

Work-in-process - Yam
Work-in-process - Home Textile

Finished goods - Yam
- In hand

- In transit

- Third party

Waste - Yam

e 4 TRADE DEBTS
Considered good

Export - secured
Local

Considered doubtful
Loeal

Less: Expected credil loss

Note

¥

72

T

2023 2022
Rupees Rupees
81,690,595 53044 427
467 498 12,156,051
64,585 64,585
82,222 678 65,265 063
(7,743.217) (F.743.217)
74479461 57,521 846
726,259 683 T8T. 024 122
159,022 484 99 948 162
11,224,752
76,496,220 56,022,198
28,702,503 -
315,503,103 163,228 844
28,754 217 27 545 324
97 473,722 57888374
18,380,621 15463, 680
1,461.817,305 1,207,120,704
136,441,517 308,726,383
519,141,902 459 837 248
655,583,412 768,563,631
14,058,548 12413215
669,641 967 T80.976 846
(14,058,548) {12,413.215)
655,583,419 768,563,631

7.1 Trade debis are non-interest bearing and are generally on 60 to 90 days terms. Trade debls are unsecured other than the
export and local frade debts thal are secured against letter of credits as mentioned in note ¥ 4.

7.2 Expected credit loss

Balance as at July 1,
Charge duning the year

Balance as at June 30,

2023 2022
Rupees Rupees
12,413,215 12413215

1,645,333 -
14,058,548 12,413,215
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CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Year ended June 30, 2023

Ageing of trade debts past due but not impaired

Mot past due

0 - 90 days
81-180 days
Above 180 days

T

2023 2022
Rupees Rupees
436,421,781 766,818,903
138,928,038 10,001,125
89,834,377 95095
4,457,771 4 DE0,823
669,641,967 780,976,846

Following are the detsils for local and export related trade debts oulstanding as at June 30 2023, which are secured ‘agains!

letter of credit

Indirect Export
Exporis

LOANS AND ADVANCES

Considered good

Loans o employees - unsecured
Advance to employees
Advances - unsecured

- o suppliers
- for expenses

Advance income tax

Mode of arrangement

Confirmed LC
Confirmed LC

Mote

B.1
B.1

2023 2022
Rupees Rupees
81,539,158 44 780578
136,441,517 308,726,383

2023 2022
Rupess Rupees

387,000 359,000
420,000 474 481
39,791,090 93,029,920
924,154 6,602 942
40,715.244 99,632 862
82,761,263 1272764
124,283,507 171,739,107

These represents unsecured, interest free, short-term loan and advance given o employees of the Holding Company.

OTHER RECEIVABLES

Sales tax

- considered good

- considered doubtful
Export rebate - considered doubtiful
Less: expecied credil loss

Duty draw back receivable
Cotton claim receivable
Profit on deposils

Others

Note

8.1

291

2023 2022

Rupees Rupees
187,131,959 150,850,078
2,630,629 2 630,629
2,194 344 2,194 344
{5,969,340) (4,824.973)
185,967,592 150,850,078
5,872,932 5872932
23,767,311 22,851 349
6,576,634 3,757,270
984,786 1,133,058
37,201,663 33,614,609
223,189,255 184 464 687




CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year ended June 30, 2023

2023 2022
MNote Rupees Rupees

9.1 Expected credit loss
As at July 01, 2022 4 824973 4 824 073
Charge dunng the year 1,144 367 -
As at June 30, 2023 5,969,340 4 824 973

10. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
- At amoritised cost

Term deposit receipls 101 174,372,670 120 394 520

- Fair value through profit or loss
Short term investment in listed company 1nz 5,742,990 5078414
180,115,660 134,473,034

10.1 These represent term deposit receipis with various banks for a penod ranging from six months to one year camying mark-up at
the mtes ranging from 7.2% to 21.00% (2022; 5.90% to 13.75%) per annum. The banks have lien on these termm deposit
receipis on account of guarantees provided by such banks as disclosed in note 21.1.1 to the consolidated financial statements.
These will mature latest by June 16, 2024 {2022: June 18, 2023).

10.2 This represents investment in shares of Lucky Cement Limided s listed company on Pakistan Stock Exchange. Shares
acqguired last year and heid as at June 30, 2023 are 11,000 at a cost of Rs. 7,133,910, The shares are categonsed under fair
value through profit and loss account as the Group intends to receive shorl term profits through trading of shares. The
unrealized gain on June 30, 2023 was Rs. 698290 (2022: unrealized ioss of Rs. 2 055 496).

2023 2022
Note Rupees Rupees
11. CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash in hand 707,343 1,351,689
Cash at banks
- in cumrent accounts 111 18,048,087 16,777,240
- in savings accournt 12 215,581 86,100
18,971,021 18,215,039

11.1 This jncludes an amourd of Rs. 6.68 million (2022: Rs. 6.68 millicn) on which the bank has created fien on account of
guaraniee provided by such bank as disclosed in note 22.1.1 o the consolidated financial statemenis.

112 U cames markup of 13.5% o 20.5% (2022: 5.5% t0 12 25%) per annum.

12. SHARE CAPITAL

2023 2022 2023 2022
Number of shares Rupees Rupees
Authorised
22 000,000 22 000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each 220,000,000 220,000,000
Issucd, subscribed and paid-up
Ordinany shares of Rs. 100- each fully
19,852 800 19,852 B00  paid in cash 198.528,000 198,528,000
121 The Holding Company has one ciass of ordinary share. which carry equal voting rights but no right to fixed income. Voting

rights, board selection efc. are in proportion to their sharehoiding.
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14.

CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year ended June 30, 2023

SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT - net of tax

Az at July 1,
Less: transferred o unappropriated profit on account of:

- incremental depreciation - nel of tax
- related deferred tax liability

Az al June 30

Less: related deferred tax liability on:

Revaluation surplus as at July 1,
Adjustment due to change in tax rate
Incrementsl depreciation charged during the year

As at June 30

LONG-TERM FINANCE
Long term portion

Financiai institutions
Retated parties

Current portion

Financiag! institutions
Related parties

1w

1

141
14.2

14.1
142

T

2023 2022

Rupees Rupees
1,036,250 427 1,094 962 264
(53,968, (47 491 829
(8,922,569 (11,220 008)
(62,891,347) (58,711,837)
973,359,080 1,036,250 427
153,759,903 184 242 506
{39,602,265) (19,262,595
(8,922,569) (11,.220,008)
105,235,069 153,750,903
866,124,011 882 490 524

2023 2022

Rupess Rupess
693,818,843 173,059 675
35,133,985 41 461,793
728,952 828 214 521 468
128,365,121 88 583,058
42 140,486 55,278.076
170,505,607 143,862 034
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CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year ended June 30, 2023

The loan i secured by way of first pan passu charge over Compact Spinning,. imported Gen set and locally purchased
carding machines with (% to 25% margin.

14.1.1.1 The loan 5 wtilized for rencwable anergy installation in the factory. The lcan i secured against 1st exclusive chargoe over

14.1.2

14.1.3

14.1.4

14.1.5

14.1.6

14.1.7

14.1.8

14.1.89

14.1.10

14.2

1421

importad assets of solar equipmant.

Tho loan is secured by way of first exdusive and specific hypothecation chargoe over imported machinery of the Holding
company (Compact Spinning Assembly) with 0% margin.

The loan s for fimancing salaries and wages under SBP Rafinance Schome. Tha lcan is secured against existing land and
huilding and plant and machinery of the Holding Holding Comparny with 25% margin. The loan iz fully ropaid as at 30 Juno
2023,

The loan iz cbiained o mest the capial expenditure requirement of the Holding Company. The loan is secured by

way of first exclusive and specific hypothecation charge over imported machinery of the Holding Comparny.

The Holding Company has entered into 2 Tomporary Economic Refinance Facility (TERF) agreemoent with an
Istamic bank and conventional banks, with the total limit aggregating to Rs_ 537 5 million (2022 537 .5 million). This includes
Rz.150 milllon being the sub-facility under the letter of credit facility agrecment amounting to Rs. 157 milkon with the islamic
bank. The unavailed facility as at year end was Rs. 0.67 million (2022: 373 2). These facilies carry mark up of SBP Base
Rate + 4% (2022: SBP Base Rate + 4%). The tonure of these facilities ranges from 5 1o 10 years with grace period up o 2
years, Theso facilities are secured against various assals inciuding exclusive charge over imported machinery, first pari
passuy charge over land & building, hypothecation charge over specific eguipment and machinery. and also the personal
guarantos of all the directors and mortgagors of the Holding Company.

The loan is socured by way of first exclusive charge of PEKR 134 million over specific machineny with 25% margin.
Tha loan is socured by way of first pan passu charge with 0% 10.25% margin.

The loan is securnd against 1st specific charge over imported plant and machinery for PKR 125 milllon, and by way of first
pari passu charge with 0% to 25% margin.

Tha loan is sccured against 15t specific charge over imporied plant and machinery for PEKR 326.3 milkon

These represant plant and machinery and vohicles acquired under musharaka arangement. The rates of mark-up rangoes
from 14.5% to 22 14%.

2023 2022
Note Rupeces Rupoes
Loan from related parties - unsecured
Oipening as at Juby 01, 96,739,869 BB 821,737
Receipts during the year 1,450,000 -
Rapaymints during the yoar 1422 {6.746,286) (2.000.000)
Unwinding of discount Z7 11,817,123 9,918,132
Release of equity portion of loan duc o change in terms of loan - -
Less: Fair value adjustment {25,986,235) -
TT.274.471 86,735,869
Payable within one year 14 {42,140, 486) (55,278,078}
Closing as at June 30, 35,133,985 41,481,753
S.No Designation Date of agreement Loan Presont Value Fair value
amount of loan adjustmont
renewediad
dtion
1 Diresctor 3Jun-23 800,000 Ja5.802 414,198
2 DireciorlCED FH-Jun-23 25,390,000 12,244 406 13,145,504
a Director 4-Jun-23 14,356,000 6,923,225 7432775
4 Sponsor 4-Jun-23 8,195,000 3.952 064 4242 936
5 Director I-Jan-23 1,450,000 699,267 750,733
50,191,000 24,204,765 25,986,235

ar



CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Year ended June 30, 2023

14.2.2 During the year, the Holding Company has repaid loan amounfing to Rs. 6. 746 million to directors and their closed family

15.

15.1

16.

16.1

members.

As al June 30, 2023, the joans received from directors are doe to be paid as follows, unless otherwise the terms of

repayment are further extended:

Dure Date Loan received Present value
Rupees Rupees
December 08, 2023 45,000,000 42 140 4B6
December 14, 2024 12,148,312 11,151,378
Jume 30, 2027 50,191,000 23,982,607
107,339,312 TT.2T4 AT
2023 2022
MNote Rupees Rupees
LEASE LIABILITY
Present value of minimum iease paymenis 151 1.962.284 8.729 346
Less: current portion shown under current Eabilities (1,962, 284) (7. 767 ,062)
= 1.962.284

These represent piant and machinery and vehicles acquired under leases from leasing companies and financial institutions.
Future minimum fease payments under lease together with the present value of the net minimum lease payments are as
folfows:

2023 2022
Future Future
minirmum Fimance Present minimum Finance SR
lease cost value lease cost
payments paymenis
Rupees
Mot Iater than one year 2119304 157,020 1,962,284 8,535 204 TBE 232 7,767 062
Later than one year but not
later than five years - - - 2091437 129,153 1.962 284
Total future minimurm lease 2,119,304 157,020 1,962,284 10.626. 731 Ba7 385 89,729,346

paymenis

The rates of mark-up ranges from 17.29% to 24 91% (2022: 16.40% o Z2.99%) per annum and are used as discounting
factor. The lease terms are upto 3 years. The Group intends to exercise its opfion to purchase the leased assets upon
completion of the lease penod. Liabilities are secured against leased assels; demand promissory notes and security
deposits.

2023 2022
Moie Rupees Rupees
DEFERRED GOVERNMENT GRANT
Deferred grant against temporary economic refinance facilihy 133,506.454 49 558 678
Gurmrent portion of deferred government grant (29,771,093) (5,297,354
103,735,361 44 261,234

Deferred govemment grani relates o the difference between the fair value and actual proceed of temporary economic
refinance facility loan oblained under SBF's refinance scheme. It is being amordizsed over the perod of ten vears from the
date of loan disbursement with an amount egual to the difference between the finance cost charged that would have been
charged to statement of profit or loss at market rate and the inferest paid as per the scheme.
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CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year ended June 30, 2023

DEFERRED TAXATION - NET

Balance as at July 1,

Reversal to profit or loss

Staff gratuity charged to other comprehensive income (QG!)
Tax rate adjustment on surplus (routed through QCl)

Balance as at June 30,
This comprises of the following:

Taxzable temporary differences:

- acceterated depreciation on property. plant and equipment
- surplus on revaluation of property, plant and eguipment

Deductible lemporary differences:

- provision for doubtful trade debts

- provision for stores and spares

- provision for doubtful other receivables
- provision for staff gratuity

- minimum lEx

- WWF Liability

- Other financial assel

RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATION

Ml
Head office

Retirement benefit obligation - defined benefit plan

12

182
18.10

T

2023 2022
Rupees HRupees
229,182,802 252 700211
(17,214,414) 13,969.918)

(1,166,633) (284 896)
(39,602.279) (19,262 ,595)
171.199.476 229,182 802

97,305,979 130,976 597
105,235,069 153,755,903
202,541,048 284,736 500

1,994,525 2372048

1,100,260 1,479 656

846,887 922 007

11,176,043 11,492 847

12,291 464 34 204 334

3,650,024 4 690 738

282,369 342 068
{31,341,572) (55,553, 698)
171,199,476 229182 802

78,522 743 50,8491 088

252,372 252372

78,775,115 60,143 460

The Projected Unit Credit Method based on following significant assumplions was used for valuation of the scheme. The
basis of recognition ingether with details as per actuarnial valustion eonducled as al June 30, 2023 are as under

The principal assumptions esed are as follows:
- Discount rate
- Expecled rate of salary increase

- Mortality rate

Liability recognized in the statement of financial position

Present value of relirement benefit obligation (RBO)

183

2023

16.25%

15.25%

year

2023
Rupees

78,522,743

2022

13.25%

12.25%

SLIC 2001-2005 SLIC 2001-2005

set back one szl back one

year

2022
Rupees

59,891,088

a8
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CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Year ended June 30, 2023

2023 2022
Movement in Retirement benefit obligation (REQ) Hote Rupees Fupees
during the year
Batance as at July 1, 59,891,088 54 680,081
Expense recognized in profit or loss 184 24,691,262 19.765,793
Total remeasurements recognized in other comprehensive income 185 4022 874 G82,374
Bencfits paid (6,218,600) (13,197.160)
Bencfits due but not yet paid (3,863,881) {2,340,000)
78,522,743 59,891,088
Expense recognized in profit or loss
Current service cost 17,423 657 15,074 643
Interest cost 7.267.605 4 691,150
24,691,262 19,765,783
Total remeasurements recognized in
other comprehensive income
Actuarial gain on lability arising on
- financial assumptions 650,596 566,441
- pxpenence adjustments 3372278 415,933
4,022 874 Q82 374

Sensitivity analysis

The sonsitivity analysas below have been detormined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions
occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant

Increase | (decrease) in defined

Cuirvard yoar benefit obligation due to
Chango in Increase in Decroase in
assumption assumption assumplion
Rupees Rupees
Discount rato 1% (4,574,629) 4,040,522
Salary growth rate 1% 4. T58.369 (4,279,034)
Bri Increase |/ (decrease) in defined
B benefit abligation due to
Change in Increase in Decrease in
assumption assumpiion assumption
Rupees Rupoes
Discount rato 1% (3,183.543) 3,620,844
Salary growth rate 1% 3,768,227 {3,374.901)

The gratuity scheme cxposes the Holding Company to the following risks:

Longovity risks: The risk arises when the actual ifeime of retirees is longer than expectation. This risk is measured at the
plan level over the entire refirec population.

Salary incroase risk: The most commeon type of miirement benefit i cne whero tho bencfit is linked with final salary. The
risk arises when the aclual increases are higher than expectation and impacts the liability accordingiy.

Withdrawal risk: The rfsk of actual withdrawals varying with tho actuaral assumptions can impose a nsk o the definod
benefit obligation. The movement of the lability can go cither way.

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation as at June 30, 2023 is 5 years (2022 G yoars).
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CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Year ended June 30, 2023
Number of emplayees covered by the scheme are 727 (2022 ¥33).

T

This amount relates to the unfunded gratuity scheme for the head office staff which has been freezed since 2002, as per

the Holding Company poficy.

2023 2022

MNote Rupees Rupees
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Creditors 191 100,212,887 114,997 127
Accrued hiabilities 137,470,025 69,080,738
Contract liabilities 189,404 407 259 420,029
Workers' profit parficipation fund 192 - 28,773,940
Workers' welfame fund 25,729,586 24 437,816
Infrastructure cess 19.2 141,343,416 104,121,092
Payabie to prowdent fund 605,419 458 574
Withholding tax payable 16,193,935 16.411,396
610,959,675 617,700,712

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 90-days term

2023 2022

Note Rupees Rupees

Workers' profit participation fund
Balance as at July 1, 28,773,940 12,275,733
Allocation during the year 28 - 28,773,840
interest on funds ulifized in Company's business 27 1,756,823 299,326

30,530,763 41,348,999
Paid during the year (30,530,763) {12,575,059)
Balance as at June 30, - 28,773,940

The Government of Sindh through Sindh Finance Act 1994 provided for imposition of an infrastructure fee for the
development and maintenance of infrastructure on goods enterng or leaving the Province through air or sea at prescribed
rates. The levy was challenged by the Holding Holding Company along with other companies in the High Court of Sindh
through civil suits which were dismissed by the single judge of the High Court of Sindh through its decision in October 2003,
On appeal filed here against, the High Court of Sindh has held through an order passed in September 2008 that the levy as
imposed through the Sindh Finance Act, 1994 (amended time lo time) was not valid til December 28, 2006, however,
thereafter on account of an amendment in the Sindh Finance (Amendment) Ordinance, 2006, it had become vaid and is
payable by the Appellants. the Holding Holding Company, afong with other companies, filed an appeal in the Supreme Court
of Pakistan against the aforementioned order of the High Court of Sindh. The Supreme Court granted stay by passing an
mterm order on January 22, 2009. The order passed by the High Court.of Sindh was sel aside by the Supreme Court vide
its order dated May 20, 2011. Consegquently, a8 new petition has been filed in the High Court of Sindh. Through the internm
order passed on May 31, 2011, the High Court has ordered thal for every consignment cleared after December 28, 2006,
50% of the value of infrastructure fee should be paid in eash and a bank guarantee for the remaining amount should be
submitted until the final order is passed. Refer notes 11 & 22

On April 06, 2021, the High Court of Sindh vide order CPNo D-3308 / 2011, summoned Io encash all the bank guarantees
furnished by the petiioners. The SHC issued this order reasaning that the entire cargo being imported in the Country routes
through the Provinee of Sindh, and for that the Provincial Legisiature thought it appropriate o impose a certain amount of
{ax in'the form of a cess. Itis though being collected from an importer of goods; but in essence it Is not on imports; but for
maintenance and development of infrastructure on imported goods. However, during the year, the Supreme Court of
Pakistan vide s order dated Sepltember 01, 2021, suspended the order issued by SHC stating that it suffers from
constitutional and legal defects and granted the interm relief to the Holding Holding Company and other petiioners. The
order issued by the Supreme Courl of Pakistan siales thal the petitioners shall keep the bank guarantees already submitted
pursuant io the eardier order of SHC and shafl fumish the fresh bank guarantzes eguivalent to the amount of levy claimed by
the Sindh Government against relesse of all future consignments of imporled goods.
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CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Year ended June 30, 2023

T

The Management is confident for a favorable oulcome. However, as a matter of prudence, the Holding Company

has made provision as foitows:

Balance as at July 1,
Charge for the year

Payments made during the year
Balance as at June 340,

ACCRUED MARK-UP

Long-term finance
Short-term bomowings

SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS

Banking companies - secured
Running finance
Cash finance
Finance against Imported Merchandise (FIM)

Related party - unsecured
Loan from ORA Sapphire |nc.

2023 2022
Note Rupees Rupees
104,121,002 3680135
37222324 34,548 641
141,343,416 108,228,776
- (4,107 684)
141,343,416 104 121,092
22,476,597 3,030,069
69,728,423 23,293 527
92,205,020 26,323 596
441,277,552 199,352,132
230,082,741 94 728 455
840,071,672 588,968,539
211 1.511,431,965 883.049.126
212 11,439,599 17,999,030
1,522,871,564 901,048,156

Facilities for running firance, cash finance, FIM ‘and Murabaha sre available from vanous banks upte Rs.2 825 milion
(2022: Rs.2,682 million). These facilities are subject to mark-up at 3 month KIBOR plus 1% to 2.5% (2022: 3month KIBOR
plus 1% to 2.5%) per annum payable quarterly. These are secured against vanous assels including first pan passu
hypothecation charge over present and future stock-in-trade, pledge of cotton, first hypolthecation charge over present and
future book debls, ranking charge on the slocks and receivables of the holding Company, plants and
machinery, equitable morigage on varous properties and personal guarantees of all the directors of the Holding

Company.

The aggregate unavailed short-term bormowing facilifies amounted to Rs.1 314 milon (2022 Rs 1,799 million),

This Represent short lerm loan oblained by the Subsidiany from related parly. This loan is inferest free. There is no term of
this loan is repayable on demand. Accordingly, it has been cassified as short term.

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
Contingencies

Letters of guarantee issuad by banks on behalf of the Group to:
- Lahore Blectric Supply Company Limited
- Sui Northem Gas Fipelines Limited
-  Excise and Taxabon Office

Posl dated cheques given to Collector of Cusloms as ndemnity

2023
Rupees

34,095,568

74,000,000
139,558,600

980,158,170

2022
Rupeses

15,310,568
77,576,000
103,258,600

380,853 295
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tn August 2013, the Oil and Gas Regulatory Authonty (OGRA) vide its S.R.O. # 726(12015 notified the sale price for sale
of natural gas at As. 5¥3. 28/MMBTU for caplive power consumpbion (CPP) with immediate efiect. Subsequent to the said
S R0, the Holding Company received gas bills at Rs. 573 28MMBTU, being considered as CPP by the utility Holding
Company. The Holding Company, considenng iself as industrial consumer paid gas charges al the rale applicable before
August 2013 on the basis of the stay order obtained from the Court.

Subsequently, on September 1, 2015, OGRA vide its 5.R.0. # BF6{1)/2015 notified the price for sale of natural gas at Rs.
GOO/MMETU for industnal consumers and on captive power consumption, with effect from September 1, 2015, Aggneved
by the notification, the Holding Company filed a suit in the Labore High Court contending thal the mandatory procedures
as lald down in the OGRA Ordinance, 2002 and Rules made thereunder were nol fulfilled while issuing the notification.
Hence, the Holding Company paid / accrued gas chames al rales applicable before the above S.R.0. # 726(1§2015 an the
basizs of stay orders obtained from Lahore High Court, Multan bench, from bme to time, until November 2015

From December 2015, the gas Holding Company has started supplying imported Liguefied Natural Gas (LNG) resuling in
the change in rates over which no dispute has been raised by the Holding Company.

On July 6, 2020, the OGRA issued a decision whereby, the Holding Company (the petitioner) was directed to pay the
outstanding amount to the ubiity Holding Company within 30 day perod from the date of decision. In response to the
above decision, a wnt petition was filed before the honourable Lahore High Court (LHC) by the Holding Company and the
LHC issued a siay order on October 8, 2020, which suspended the OGRA's decision, however, the case is still pending
before LHC.

The Federal Government ssued Gas Infrastructure Development Cess (GIDC) Acts in the years 2011, 2014 and 2015. All
GIDC Acts have been subject of thorough debale and consideration al honorable High Courts of the Country as well as
the Supreme Court of Pakistan [SCP).

On August 12, 2020, the SCP issued its verdicl (Judgement) and held that “the levy imposed under Gas infrastructure
Development Cess Acl, 2015 (the Acl) is in accordance with the Provisions of the Constitution”™. The Supreme Court has
also held that “the Provisions of section 8 of the Act, which give retrospective effect to the charge and recovery of GIDC
levied from the year 2011 are also declared to be valid being within the legislative competence of the Pariament®
However, since the Holding Company is an industrial concem and it did not pass on the burden of GIDC to its consumers
prior o the GIDC Act, 2015 (or even thereafter), management believes that the Holding Company & entitled to the
exempton under the firsl proviso o Section 8(2) of the GIDC Act, 2015 from payment of the GIDC levied under the GIDC
Act, 2011 and GIDC Ordinance, 2014, As such, arrears due from the Holding Company may only include amounts levied
under the GIDC Act, 2015 from the date of itz commencement, i.e., May 22, 2015.

Subsequent to the Order passed by the Honorable SCP on August 12, 2020, Sui Northern Gas Pipelines Limited (SNGPL)
submitted bilis fo the industry including the Holding Company claiming amears of first instalment in deference to the said
Judgement of the SCP. As the bills of amears were calculated for monthly instalment on the basis of entire tolal payable
amount from 2011 o July 2020 by charging Cess on the higher rate of tarff applicable to Captive Connections apart from
the fact that the implication of Section 8 of the said Act, 2015 was not aken into consideration whereby it was provided
that the industry, which has not collecied the Cess from the Customers pror (o 2015 shall nol be liable to the payment of
GIDC for the said period from 2011 (o 2015, Dunng the year, a writ petition No. 42176 / 2020 was filed by All Pakistan
Textite Mills Association (APTMA) (where the Holding Company Is also a parly to the pebition) before Henorable High
Court at Labhore against imposition of GIDC Act 2015 and the recovery of Cess from December 2011 to May 2015.
Further, dunng the year, SNGPL started billing for GIDC to the Holding Company against which payment was made by the
Holding Company till March 2021 based on the order issued by Honorable Lahore High Court against the aforementioned
writ petition. Pursuant to the order, Lahore High Courl resirained SNGPL from charging the Cess at the higher tanff ate of
Captive Connechon and directed o issue revised bill calculated at the rale apphicable 1o indusinal connection. Besides, the
paymenl for the period from 2011 o 2015 was also suspended in view of the implication of the said provision of kaw.
Further, the Holding Company made payment which is applicable to industrial consumers and for the difference between
the amount charged to industnal consumers and capltive power consumers, post-dated chegues are being issued by the
Holding Company in favour of SNGPL. For the amount relating to the payment of GIDC based on the aclual calculation
prior to 2015, the decision was made by the Lahore High Courl on June 27, 2021 whereby it has restrained the SNGPL 1o
collect the cess prior o 2015,
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On Septembar 27, 2021, the Honorable Lahore High Court issued a judgment on writ petiion No. 42716 / 2020 whereby it
was concluded that all the parfies to the petiion (including the Holding Company) fall onder the category of Industnal
Consumers rather than Captive Power Plant and shall remain liable to the tanff applicable to Industrial Consumers.

During the year, the Holding Company filed an appeal before the Honorable High Court of Sindb on the ground that no burden
of GIDC had been passed to its customers ( clients and thus the Holding Company is nol liable to pay GIDC under GIDC Act
2015. The Court granted stay order against recovery of GIDC payable by the Holding Company till the finalization of matter by
Sindh High Court. The matter is currently pending in the Sindh High Courl. However, as a malter of abundanl caution and
without prejudice to the suits filed, the Holding Company has made aggregate provision of Rs. 5.4 milion (2021: Rs. 5.4
million} in respect of GIDC up to June 30, 2023.

An order dated Movember 11, 2020 was passed against the Holding by Collector of Customs, Karachi creating a
demand of Rs. 13.023 million along with a penalty of Rs. 0.5 million. The Holding has challenged the above order by
way of filing an appeal before the Cusloms Appeliste Tribunal at Karachi, which s pending for final adjudication. However, a
stay order was successfully oblained from Honourable Sindh High Courl on December 22, 2020 by filing Consbiutional
Petition number 6618 / 2020, which is still operative.

There are several cases filed against the Group before various courl of law [ lax forums, the amount of which cannol be
delermined. The management, based on the opinion of its legal counsel, expect thal the outtome of all those cases will be
in favor of the Group, as they have a reasonable delense in the cases filed. Accordingly, no provision has been made in
these unconsolidated financial statement.

2023 2022
Commitments Rupees Rupees
Letters of credil opened and oulstanding for import of:
- plant and machinery 28,609,191 665,256,522
- slores and spares 9,629,233 30,067,092
- raw malerial 632,912,977 561,006,452
Local bills discounted 214,897 633 292,314,555
REVENUE FROM CONTRACT WITH CUSTOMER - NET
Yam
- Lacal 1,739,336,498 || 1.474.315047
- Export 814,716,140 046,129,335
- Indirect export 1,781.233.061 3.033.819.964
4,335,285,699 5,454 264 345
Home Textile
- Local 46,516,573 11,727 485
- Expaort 52,136,777 .
98,653,350 11,727 485
Raw matenal - Local (Trading) 50,680,596 191,348,293
Waste - Local 343,032,489 200 228 814
4 B2T 652,134 5,947 568,938
Less:
Sales tax {600.595,598) (¥38,665,360)
Brokerage and commission (13,545,673) (31,004,939)
Discount (1,866,589) -
4,211,644 274 5,177,898 639
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COST OF SALES

Raw matenal consumed

Salanes, wages and benefits
Fuel and power
Depreciation

Stores, spares and loose tools consumed

Packing matenal
insurance
Repairs and mainlenance

Frovesion of slow moving slore & spare

Vehicles running and maintenance
Other manufactuning overheads

Opening stock
Closing stock

Cosl of goods manufactured

Finished goods
Opening siock
Yarn purchased
Yam Transfemed to Home Textile
Closing slock

Cost of Home Textile
Cost of raw matenal =oid

Raw material consumed
Opaning slock

Purchases - nel

Closing stock

24.1
242

42

T

2023 20222
Rupees Rupees
2.846,955.574 3.466,763,979
225,014,371 203,529,270
596,566,345 488 123 680
94,572,910 93.527.805
50,851,122 59,344 788
56,533.868 62,168,408
10,906,433 10,772,496
3,652,309 2,996,441
- 1,368,396
5,276,941 2 696,061
3,660,354 3.406,336
1.047,034.653 §27,953,681
3.893,990,227 4384 717 660
56,022,198 41,992 838
(76,496,220)| (56,022 198)|
(20,474,022) (14.029,360)
3,873,516,205 4,380,688,300
264,126,222 106,757 831
17,117,978 38,150,500
(14,104,500) -
(460,111,663 (264,126,222)
(192,971,963) (119,217 891)
67,558.796 9,306,564
37,236,621 106,160,346
3,785,339,659 4.376,937,319
787,024,122 85,996,519
2,7B6,191,135 3 467,791 582
3,573,215,257 4 253 788 101
{726,259.683) (Fa7,024,122)
2,846,955,574 3.466.763,979

Salaries, wages and benefits include Rs. 24.69 million {2022: Rs. 19.77 million) in respect of charge for retirement benefit

obligations.

DISTRIBUTION COST

Freight and octroi

Commission and other charges
Ciearing and forwarding
Business promolion expenses
Ezport development surcharge

2023 2022
Rupees Rupess

20,796,170 22231803
3,897 918 4 059 664
5,247 415 4 965,937
9,876,207 12715671
2,677,856 1,876,020

42 495 566 45848 895
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2023 2022
Note Rupees Rupees
26. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salanes and benefits 261 69,314,953 60,180,946
Fees, subscription and penodicals 4,491,538 4912716
Entertainment 1,262,374 861,579
Traveling and conveyance 418,498 437,206
Postage and telephone 1,600,129 1429310
Blecincity, gas and water 1,280,706 090 532
Vehicles running and mainlenance 9,227,638 8,358,167
Depreciation 42 12,670,181 11,766,486
Expected credit loss - rade receivable 72 1,645,333 -
Expecied credit loss - other receivahble 1,144 367 -
Legai and professional 1,641,844 527,858
Auditor's remuneration 262 1,641,000 1,541,000
Printing and slationery 1,345,129 80177
Computer 187,980 74,520
Advertisement 190,500 146,900
Donation 263 5,093,000 4,382,000
Others 2,446,148 349399

115,601,318 86, 767,796

26.1 Salaries and benefils include Rs. 2.08 mullion (2022: Rs. 1.80 million) in respecl of charge for employer's contribution o

provident fund.
2023 2022
Rupees Rupees
282 Auditors' remuneration
Audit Services
Annual sudit fee 1,050,000 050,000
Consolidation fee 250,000 250,000
Hall year review fee 175,000 175,000
Review of code of corporate govemance 55,000 55,000
Certifications 55,000 55,000
Out of pocket expenses 56,000 56,000
1,641,000 1,541,000
263 No director or their spouse had any interest in the donees’ fund. Dunng the year, the Holding Company has donated Rs. 1.55
million {2022: Rs. 1.55 milion) to The Citizens Foundation.
2023 2022
27. FINANCE COST MNote Rupees Rupees
Mark-up on long term finance 6,847,546 7774821
Mark-up on short-ferm borrowings 276,986,541 146,168,030
Interest on lease liability 968,661 1,676,785
Urwinding of discount on long-term finance from related parties 14.2 11,817,123 9913132
Workers' profit partoipation fund 19.2 1,756,423 299 326
Bank chamges, guaraniee commission and other related chamges 8,597,036 8.553,167
306,973,730 174,350,261
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2023 2022
Mote Rupees Rupees
OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES
Workers' profit participation fund 192 z 28773040
Workers' welfare fund 1,291,770 5826157
Infrastructure cess 183 37222324 30,440 957
Unrealired loss on other financial assets - 2,055,456
Other - 1,680,603
38,514,094 68,787,153
OTHER INCOME
Income from financial asseis
Profit on deposits 18,291,881 5521 448
Exchange gain - net 15,149,992 13,710,169
Unwinding of discount on other receivables - 6,401,253
Unrealised gain on colion clam 3,024,315 .
Unrealized Gan on other financial assels 698,290 -
37,164 478 258632 870
Income from non-financial assets
Gain on disposal of propery, plant and eguipment 7,178,050 1,233,155
Scrap sales 517,160 677,499
Other revenue 481,991 2426424
Contract setfliement 291 - 108,999 076
8,177,201 114,336,154
45.341,679 138,969,024

In the year end June 30,2022, certain suppliers defaulted on the cotton supply contract due to increase in coton prices in the
inlemational markel whereas the contracts were made al a significantly lower price. Upon such default, the Group negotiated

with Lhe suppliers and as a result the suppliers agreed lo pay damages (o the Group.

TAXATION

Current

- lor the year
- prior year

Deferred

Noto

17

2023 2022
Rupees Rupees
47,386,537 125,193,345
(51,319,407) (1.377.511)

{3,932,870) 123,815,834
(17,214,414) (3,968,918)
(21,147 ,284) 119,845 916
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2023 2022
Relationship between tax expense and accounting profit Rupecs Rupess
Profit before taxation {31.,938.414) 538208 87
Tax rate % 29% 29%
Tax on accounting profit (9.262,140) 156,080,573
Prior year tax adjustments {51,319,407) (1.377.511)
Permmanent differences 4.903,936 4,147,038
Impact of FTR income 44152 419 {44,151,829)
Impact of tax credit on donations {1,476,37T0) {581.060)
Adjustment of effective rate (7,658,148) (12.058,147)
Impact of utlization of Minimum Tax credits under Section 113 - {28.021,331)
Impact of super fax - 42 202 831
Others {486,980) 3805452
{21,147,290) 119,845,916

Subsequent fo the amendment of section 5(A) of the Income tax Ordinance, 2001, tax at the applicable rate shall be
imposed on every public company which derives profit for the year. However, this tax shall not apply in case of a company
which distribules at least specified percentage of after tax profits within six months of the end of the tax year in the form of
cash dividend. In 2013, the Holding Company had obiained stay order from Sindh High Court (SHC) in respect of
application of such clause. During the year, SHC has passed an order and set aside show cause / demand notices
seeking enforcement of section 5(A).

During 2022, the Governnment of Pakisian, through Finance Act, 2022 introduced section 4C in the Income Tax Ordinance,
2001 through which super tax was levied on high eamings persons (including the Holding Company). The tax is applicable
at different rates-on all persons (including the Holding Company) eaming more than Rs. 150 million. Further, entifies
operating in varous sectors, including textile sector, and eaming more than Rs. 300 million are fiable o super tax at 10%
(For fax year 2022) of income as specified in the Act. Accordingly, the Holding Company had made a provision of Rs. 42.2
million on account of super tax during year June 30,2022,

On December 22, 2022, the Sindh High Couart (SHC) issued an order declanng that section 4C shall not be applicable for
TY 2022 and would apply from TY 2023 {i.e., financial year ending June 30, 2023). However, the SHC had suspended the
operafion of the judgement for a period of sixty days. On February 16, 2023, the Honorable Supreme Courl of Pakistan
(SCP) through an interdm order directed 1o pay super tax to the extent of 4% for tax year 2022 Accordingly, the Group paid
part of liability imposed to the extent of 4% super tax and has revised ifs provigion for the super {ax to be kept at 4% on the
taxable income for the year ended June 30, 2022,

EARMINGS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED

There is no dilutive effect on the basgic loss | eamings per share of the Holding Company which is' based on:

2023 2022
(Loss) / profit for the year Rupees (10,791,130} 418 362 955
Weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the year 12 19,852,800 19,852 800
Loss) / eami h o o 0.54) 21.07
i } I eamings per share Shars (0. i
2023 2022
Note Rupees Rupees
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances 11 18,971,021 18,215,039
Shori-term borrowings - running finance 21 (441,277 ,552) (158 352 132)
(422,306,531} (181.137.093)
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CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year ended June 30, 2023

36. NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES - HOLDING COMPANY

The total and average number of employees during the year and as at June 30, 2023 and 2022 respectively are as follows:

2023 2022
Total number of empioyees of the Group as at reporting date 768 [
Ayerage number of employees of the Group during the year 714 786
Empioyes's working in Holding Company's factory as at reporting date 727 733
Ayerage number of employees working in Holding Company's factory during the yvear 674 T4T

ar. PROVIDENT FUND

The investments out of provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of Section 218 of the Companies

Act, 2017 and the conditions specified thereunder.

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
Financial asseis as per statement of financial position 2023 2022
Rupees Rupees
At fair value through profit or loss
Other financial asseis 5,742,990 5078414
At amortised cost
Security deposits 2,898,681 3,129,361
Trade debis 655,553,419 768,563,631
Loans and advances 807,000 833,481
Other receivables 31,328,731 27 TA1 67T
Other financial assats 174,372,670 128,394, 620
Cash and bank balances 18,971,021 18,215,039
889,704,512 052 856 223
Financial liabilities as per statement of financial position
At amortized cost
Long-term finance
- from banking companies 822,163,964 261.643.633
- from related parties 77,274,471 96,739,869
Lease liability 1,962,284 0,729,346
Trade and other payables 238,288,331 184 536439
Unclaimed dividend 2,750,372 2,899 903
Mark-up accrued 92,205,020 26,323,596
Short-term borrowings 1,522 871,564 001,048,156
2,757,536,006 1482920042
39, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board of Directors has overall responsibiiity for the estsblishment and oversight of the Group’s financial risk
management To assist the Board in dischanging its oversight responsibility, management has been made responsible for
identifying, moniloring and managing the Group's financial risk exposures. The Group has exposure to the following nisks
from its ase of financial instruments:

- Credit nsk
- Liguidity risk
- Market risk
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CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year ended June 30, 2023

Credit risk

Credit nsk is the nsk that one panty to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the other party to
incur a financial loss, without taking into account the fair value of any collaieral, Concentration of credit nsk arises when a
number of financial instruments or contracts are entered into with the same party, or when counter parlies are engaged in
simitar business activiies, or activiies in the same geographic region, or have similar economic features thal would cause
their abiity 1o meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditons,
Concentrations of credit risk indicate the retative sensiivity of the Group’s perfformance o developments affeciing a pariicular
industry.

Credit sk of the Group anses pnincipally from the trade debis; loans and advances, other financial assets, other receivables
and bank batances. The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credil exposure. The maximum
exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is as follows:

2023 2022
Note Rupces Rupees
Security deposits 2,898,681 3,129,361
Trade debts 3911 655,583 419 768,563,631
Loans and advances 312 807,000 833,481
Other receivables 31,328, 27 T41.677
Cther financial assets 3913 174,372,670 125,394 620
Bank balances 3813 18,263,678 16,863,340

883,254,179 45 526,110

Trade debts

The trade debts at year end are due from local and foreign customers against focal sales and export sales respectively.
Trade debt due from foreign cusiomers are secured against letter of credit. For local customers management assesses the
credit quality of customers, taking into account their financial position, past experience and other factors. The Group's
expasure to credit risk arising from trade debtors is mainly influenced by the individual characteristics of each customer. The
Group has no major concentration of credit risk with any single customer. The Group establizshes an afliowance for
impairment that represents lifetime expected credit losses (ECL) based on analysis of recovery pattem and adjustment of
trade debis secured against letier of credits.

Loans and advances

These inciude loans and advances given primarily to-employees against salanes, which will be adjusted against their future
satanes or in case of resignation against their post retirement benefit balances.

Other financial assots and balances with banks

The Group deposits its funds and invesis in ferm deposit receipts {other financial asseis) with banks carrying good credit
standings assessed by reputable credit agencies. These banks are credit rated as follows:

Bank Name [Date of Rating Rating Agency Short term Long term
Bank Al-Falah Limited 24-Jun-23 PACRA AT AdA
Samba Bank Limited 26-Jun-23 Vis Al Ay
Dubai Istamic Bank Pakistan Limited 26-Jun-23 VIS AlY Ay
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited ZF-Jun-23 PACRA Al Ay
The Bank of Punjab 26-Jun-23 FACRA AT A
MCE Islamic Bank Limited 23-Jun-23 PACRA Al A
National Bank of Pakistan 23-Jun-23 PACRA At AbA,
Sifk bank Limited 16-Jun-23 VIS AZ A
Bank islami Pakistan Limited 24-Jun-23 PACRA Al A
Sindh Bank Limited Z7=-Jun-23 Vis Al Ad
Meezan Bank Limited AT =-Jun-23 VIS Al s
4.5 Bank Limited Z3-Jun-23 PACRA Al Ay
Habib Bank Limited Z7-Jun-23 Vis AT A,
Bank Al-Habib Limited 23-Jun-23 PACRA At ARS,
Soneri Bank Limiled 23-Jun-23 PACRA At Ay
Askari 23-Jun-23 PACRA Al Ad
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T

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities that
are settled by delivering cash or another financial assel. Liguidity nsk anses because of the possibility that the Group could be
required lo pay iis liabiibes earlier than expected or would have difficulty in raising funds o meet commitments associated
with linancial liabilities as they fall due. The Group's approach to managing liquidity is lo ensure, as far as possible, that it will
always have sufficient liguidity to meet its kabilites when due withou! incurming unacceptable losses or risking damage to the
Group's reputation. The Group manages liguidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash and bank balances and availability of
financing through banking arrangements.

Liquidity risk

The foliowing are the contractual maturities of financial liabiliies, including interest payments:

2023
Carrying Contractual Maturity upto Maturity after
amount maturities one year one year
Rupees
Long-term finance
- from related parties TT.274 471 107,339,312 42140 486 65,198,826
- from banking company 822,183,964 352,235,937 110,862,576 241,373,361
Lease liability 1,962,284 10,661,050 8,317,563 2,342,488
Trade and other payables 238,288,311 238,288,131 238 288,331 -
Unclaimed dividend 2,750,372 2,750,372 2,750,372 -
Markup accruaed 92,205,020 92 205,020 92,205,020 -
Short-term borrowings 1,522 871,564 1,522.871,564 1,522 871,564 -
2,757,536,006 2,326,351,586 2,017,435912 308,915,675
2022
Carrying Contractual Maturity uplo Maturity after
amount maturities one year one year
Rupees
Long-term financing
- from related parties 96,739,869 112635598 55,278,076 57,357,522
- from banking company 261,643,633 352,235,937 110,862,576 241,373,361
Lease abilty 9,729 346 10,661,050 8,317,563 2,343 488
Trade and other payables 184 536 439 184 536,439 184 536 439 .
Unclaimed dividend 2,899 903 2,899,903 2899903 -
Markup accrued 26,323,506 26,323,506 26,323 596
Short-term bormowings 901,048,156 901,048,158 901,048,156
1482920942 1,590,340,679 1,289 266309 301,074,370

Market risk

Market risk s the nisk that changes in market prices, such as share price; foreign exchange rates and interest rates will affect
the Group's income or the value of il holdings of financial instruments. The Group is primarly exposed to inlerest rate risk
and currency risk.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate nsk is the nsk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
marke! interest rates. The Group's exposure o the nsk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Group's
long-term financing, short-term borrowings, liabiliies against assets subject to fimance lease, other financlal assets and bank
balances in saving account
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At the reporting date the interest rate nsk profile of the Group's interest-bearnng financial instruments is:

Carrying Amount
2023
Rupees Rupeeas

Fizxed rate instruments

Financial assets - at amortised cost 174,372 670 129 384 620

Financial iabilities - at amorised cost 527 462 547 287,628,199
Variable rate instruments

Financial assats - at amortised cost 215,581 86,100

Financial iabilities - at amortised cost 1,896,829,736 981,532 805

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fired rate instruments

The Group does not account for any fixed rate financial assefs and labilities at fair value through profit or loss. Therefore, a
change in mierest rate at the reporting date would not affect profit or loss.

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

A change of 50 basis points in KIBOR based financial liabiities al the reporting date would have increased | (decreased)
equity and profit before tax by Rs. 9.55 million (2022: Rs_ 4 82 million). This analysis assumes that ali other varnables remain
constant

Currency risk

Foreign currency risk arises mainly where receivables and payables exist due to transactions with foreign undertakings and
bank balances in foreign currency. The Group's exposure (o foreign currency risk is as follows:

2023 2022
Rupees
Trade debis 136,441,517 308,726,383
Trade payable 28.609,1M1 -
Average rate Reporting date rate
2023 2022 2023 2022
Rupees
usD 24530 177 65 283.73/283.97 20392067

Al June 30, 2023, if the Pakistani Rupee had weakened / strengthened by 5% against the US Dollar and Euro with all cther
varahles held constanl, profil before tax for the year would have been lower [ higher by Rs. 539 million (2022 Rs. 154
million}, mainly as a resull of foreign exchange losses / gains on translation of US Doltar and Euro - denominated trade debts
and trade payables.

Capital risk management

The objective of the group entities when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue a5 a going concemn so that it
can continue {o provide retums for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders; and o maintain a strong capital base to
support the sustained development of its businesses.

The Group manages ils capital structure by monitoring retum on net assets and makes adjustments to it in the hght of
changes In economic conditions. In order to maintain or adjusl the capital structore, he Group may adjust the amount of
dividend to the shareholders or issue bonus / new shares.
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CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year ended June 30, 2023

During the year, the company’s strategy was to maintain leveraged gearing. The gearing ratic as at 30 June 2023 was as
Toliows:

2023 2022
Rupees

Total Borrowings 2,546,359,118 1.300,720,602
Cash and Bank balances (18,971,021) (18.215,039)
Net Debt 2,527,388,0097 1,282 505,563
Total Equity 2547179723  2.501,322 386
Total Capital 5,074,567 820 3783827940
Gearing Ratio 50% 34%

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Fair value i the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability setfied, between knowledgeable willing
parties in an arms length trensacton.

(b} Fair value estimation

The Group discloses the financial instruments measured in the balance sheet at fair value n accordance with the
foilowing fair value hierarchy:

- Level 1. Quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 20 Inputs other than quoted prices included within Lewve! 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e.. derived from prices).

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on obsarvable market data (unobservable inputs).

As at June 30, 2023 the Group held the following instruements at fair values:

June 30, 2023
Fair value
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Rupees
Financial assets
measured at fair valus
Equity securities - listed 5,742,990 - - 5,742,930
June 30, 2022
Fair value
Level 1 Leve 2 Level 3 Total
Rupees
Financial asscis
measured at fair value
Equity securities - isted 5078414 - - 5078414

The: camying values of all financial asseis and habiliies reflected in the finrancial siaiements approximate their fair values.

There are no transfers betwesn the levels during the year.

There are no other assets or liabilities to classity under above leveis except the Group's land, mill buiding, abour colony,
piant and machinery, elecinc installations and factory eqguipment are staled at revalued amounts, being the fair value at the
date of revaluation, less subsequent depreciation and subsequent accumulaied impairment losses, i any. The fair value
measurements of these assets carmied out as at June 30, 2021, were performed by Trstar Infernabonal Consultant (Pvt) Lid.
not related o the Group. The valuer is isted on panel of Pakistan Banks Association and they have appropriate qualification
and expenence in the far value measurement of properties, plant and machinerny. Value determined by independent valuer is
classified as Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
The Group constitutes a single reportable segment since the executive management monitors the operating results of the
entity for the purpose of making decisions about resource aliocation and performance assessmenl The entity-wide
disclosures required by IFRS 8 'Operating Segmenls' are given below:

(a) Group sales comprse of termy towels and yam whereby more than 99% sales pertains to yam.

(b} AsalJune 30, 2022 and June 20, 2023, all non-current assets of the company were localed in Pakistan.

(c) Significant sales are made by Group in the followig countries:

2023 2022
Rupees
Pakistan 3303202504 4296670992
China 812458 615 032 847 592
Other countries 05 983,155 18.380,05%

4.211.644 974 5.177.898 639

CORRESPONDING FIGURES

In these consolidated financial statements, the comesponding figures have been rearranged and reclassified, wherever
considered necessary for the purposes of comparison and better presentation.

DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE

These consolidated financial stalements were authonzed for issue on' October 03, 2023 by the Board of Directors of
the holding company.

Chiof Executive Chaeel Financial Officer Dhrector
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
As on Jume 30, 2023

sumprvomgs  SHARE HOLBINGE .

197 1 100 3,971

400 101 500 86,385

634 501 1000 356,579

146 1001 5000 265,664

7 5001 10000 46,250

11 10001 15000 125,525

3 15001 20000 52,250

a 20001 25000 88,090

2 25001 30000 55,743

2 30001 35000 64,900

1 55001 60000 59,948

1 70001 75000 71,500

4 105001 110000 110,000

1 120001 125000 123,250

1 130001 135000 130,350

1 135001 140000 137,500

4 180001 185000 181,500

1 250001 255000 250,003

1 585001 590000 586,507

1 1440001 1445000 1,442,039

4 4330001 4335000 4,332,557

1 5525001 5530000 5,527,143

1 5755001 5760000 5,755,146

1,419 19,852,800
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———— PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
As on June 30, 2023
: MNo. of Shares
Categories of Shareholders Shisreholdors hetd Percentage
Associated Companies, Undertaking
and Related Paraties
Directors. CFO & their Spouse and
Minor Children 06
Mr. 5. M. Mansoor Allawsala 4,332 557 21.823
M. Rizwan ldrees Allawala 5,527,143 27.841
M. Omair ldrees Allawala 5,755,146 28 989
Syed Masud Arif 500 0.003
Ms_ Azra Yaqub Vawda 500 0.003
M=, Aamnah Mansoor 2,000 0.010
mr. Muhammad Zubair 500 0.003
Mrs. Ambreen Mansoor W/o 5. M. Mansoor Allawala 1,442.039 7264
Executive
Joint Stock Companies Fi 2,531 0.013
NIT & ICP - - -
Other 1 550 0.003
Banks, Development Finance Institutions,
Non-Banking Finance Institutions, Insurance
Companies, Modarabas & Mutual Funds 4 186,340 0.939
Shareholders holding 5% or more voting interest
Mr. 5. M. Mansoor Allawala 4,332,557 21,823
Mr. Rizwan ldrees Allawala 5,527,143 27.841
Mr. Omair |drees Allawala 5,755,146 28989
Ms. Ambreen Mansoor W/0 5. M. Mansoor Allawala 1,442,039 7.264
CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDERS NUMBER | SHARES HELD| PERCENTAGE
Associaled Companies, Underlaking, and Relaled Parties - - -
Directors, CFO & their Spouse & Minor Children 8 17,060,385 85.934
Joint Stock Companies 7 2,531 0.013
Bank, Development Finance Institutions 4 186,340 0939
Insurance Companies, Modarabas
Other 1 550 0.003
Individuals 1,399 2,602,994 13.111
1,419 19,852 800 100.00
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———— FORM OF PROXY

The Secretary

IDREES TEXTILE MILLS LTD.
Ismail Centre, 1st Floor,

6-C, Central Commercial Area,
Bahadurabad, Karachi - 74800

If'We

of

being a member of Idrees Textile Mills Ltd. hereby appoint
of
or failing
of

As my/our proxy in my/our absence o atiend and voie for me/us on my/our behalf
at the 34th Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on
Friday October 27, 2023 and at any adjournment thereof.

As witness my hand this of 2023
Signed by the said in the presence of
1. Witness: Signature on

Five Rupees
Signature Fleveiniio Stay
Name:
Address

Signature of Member

2. Witness:
Signature Shareholder's Folio No.
Name: CDC Participants 1.D./5ub A/C #
Address CNIC No.

(Important: This form of Proxy, duly completed and signed across a Rs. 5/-revenue
stamp, must be deposiied at the Company's Registered Office not less than 48
hours befare the time for holding the meeting).
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Be safe
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4l Stock trading simulator
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